
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 – November 17, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 3 

NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 
will be held at 3:00 P.M., Tuesday, November 17, 2020 

 

VIDEO/TELECONFERENCE MEETING ONLY – NO PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 
Public Participation:   

Video:  https://zoom.us/j/92900399487 
or 

Teleconference Phone Number:  1-669-900-9128 
 Meeting ID:  929 0039 9487# 

 

Video/Teleconference Meeting During Coronavirus (COVID-19) Emergency:  
As a result of the COVID-19 emergency and Governor Newsom’s Executive 
Orders to protect public health by issuing shelter-in-home standards, limiting 
public gatherings, and requiring social distancing, this meeting will occur solely 
via video/teleconference as authorized by and in furtherance of Executive Order 
Nos. N-29-20 and N-33-20. 
 

Important Notice Regarding Public Participation in This Meeting:  For those 
who wish to provide public comment on an Agenda Item, or who otherwise are 
making a presentation to the Board of Trustees, please submit any and all 
comments and materials to the District via electronic mail at general@syrwd.org.  
All submittals must be received by the District no later than 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 
November 16, 2020, and should indicate “November 17, 2020 Board Meeting” in 
the subject line.  To the extent practicable, public comments and materials received 
in advance pursuant to this timeframe will be read into the public record during 
the meeting.  Public comments and materials not read into the record will become 
part of the post-meeting Board packet materials available to the public and posted 
on the District’s website. 
 

For members of the public who may have a particularized need to speak on an 
Agenda Item during the meeting, please submit an advance request to the District 
via electronic mail at general@syrwd.org.  All requests must be received by the 
District no later than 5:00 p.m. on Monday, November 16, 2020, and should 
indicate “November 17, 2020 Board Meeting” in the subject line. 
 

In the interest of clear reception and efficient administration of the meeting, all 
persons participating in this video/teleconference are respectfully requested to 
mute their voices after dialing-in and at all times unless speaking.   

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

III. REPORT BY THE SECRETARY TO THE BOARD REGARDING COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
POSTING OF THE AGENDA 
 

IV. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS, IF ANY, TO THE AGENDA 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT - Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any non-agenda matter within the District’s 
jurisdiction.  The total time for all public participation shall not exceed fifteen (15) minutes and the time allotted for each individual shall not 
exceed three (3) minutes.  The District is not responsible for the content or accuracy of statements made by members of the public.  No Action 
will be taken by the Board on any public comment item.  
 

VI. CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) UPDATE 

A. General Manager’s Report 
 



Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 – November 17, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3 

 

VII. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 20, 2020 
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA - All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved or rejected in a single 
motion without separate discussion.  Any item placed on the Consent Agenda can be removed and placed on the Regular Agenda for 
discussion and possible action upon the request of any Trustee. 

CA-1. Water Supply and Production Report 
CA-2. Central Coast Water Authority Updates 
 

IX. LOS OLIVOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT – PRESENTATION 
 

X. MANAGER REPORTS - STATUS, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING 
SUBJECTS: 
A. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

1. Financial Report on Administrative Matters 
a) Presentation of Monthly Financial Statements – Revenues and Expenses 
b) Approval of Accounts Payable 
 

XI. REPORT, DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING SUBJECTS: 
 

A. AMENDMENT TO RULES & REGULATIONS AND CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES 
1. Draft Resolution No. XXX:  A Resolution of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water 

Conservation District, Improvement No. 1 Approving the Automatic Annual Adjustments to the 
Capital Facilities Charges and Meter Installation Fees Contained in Attachment of Appendix “C” 
and Appendix “D”  of the District’s Rules and Regulations 

 

B. PHASE II LATERAL REPLACEMENT PROJECT – CHANGE ORDER AND NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 

C. MATTEI’S TAVERN PROJECT UPDATE 
 

D. SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT 
1. Eastern Management Area Update 

 

XII. UPDATE FROM ALTERNATIVE POWER / SOLAR AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEE 
 

XIII. REPORTS BY THE BOARD MEMBERS OR STAFF, QUESTIONS OF STAFF, STATUS REPORTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, 
COMMITTEE REPORTS, OBSERVATIONS AND OTHER MATTERS AND/OR COMMUNICATIONS NOT 
REQUIRING ACTION 
 

XIV. CORRESPONDENCE: GENERAL MANAGER RECOMMENDS THE ITEMS NOT MARKED WITH AN ASTERISK (*) 
FOR FILE 

 

XV. REQUESTS FOR ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED ON THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING AGENDA:  Any member of the Board 
of Trustees may place an item on the meeting agenda for the next regular meeting.  Any member of the public may submit a written request 
to the General Manager of the District to place an item on a future meeting agenda, provided that the General Manager and the Board of 
Trustees retain sole discretion to determine which items to include on meeting agendas. 
 

XVI. NEXT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES:  The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees is 
scheduled for December 15, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
 

XVII. CLOSED SESSION: 
To accommodate the video/teleconferencing format of this meeting, the public participation access will 
be closed for forty-five (45) minutes while the Board of Trustees convenes into closed session.  Upon the 
conclusion of the 45-minute period, the public participation access will be reopened for the remaining 
Agenda Items.  The Board will hold a closed session to discuss the following item: 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
Subdivision (d)(1) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code – 1 case 

 

1. Name of Case: Adjudicatory proceedings pending before the State Water Resources Control 
Board regarding Permit 15878 issued on Application 22423 to the City of Solvang, Petitions 
for Change, and Related Protests 



Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No.1 – November 17, 2020 Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3 

 

Public access to the meeting (Weblink, Dial-In Number, Passcodes above) will be reopened forty-
five (45) minutes after the Board of Trustees convenes into closed session.   

 
XVIII. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

[Sections 54957.1 and 54957.7 of the Government Code] 
 

XIX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This Agenda was posted at 3622 Sagunto Street, Santa Ynez, California, and notice was delivered in accordance with Government Code Section 54950, specifically Section 
54956.  This Agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered.  The Board reserves the right to change the order in which items are heard.  Copies 
of the staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business on the Agenda are on file with the District and available for public inspection during 
normal business hours.  A person who has a question concerning any of the agenda items may call the District’s General Manager at (805) 688-6015.  Written materials 
relating to an item on this Agenda that are distributed to the Board of Trustees within 72 hours (for Regular meetings) or 24 hours (for Special meetings) before it is to 
consider the item at its regularly or special scheduled meeting(s) will be made available for public inspection at 3622 Sagunto Street, during normal business hours.  Such 
written materials will also be made available on the District's website, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the regularly scheduled meeting.  If you 
challenge any of the Board’s decisions related to the agenda items above in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public 
hearing described in this notice or in written correspondence to the Board prior to the public hearing. 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review agenda materials or participate in this meeting, please contact the District 
Secretary at (805) 688-6015.  Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  



Agenda Item VI. 

CLIENT ALERT Stradling 

CDC Expands Definition of Close Contact 
Last week the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (the CDC) expanded the 

definition of "close contact." Previously, the CDC defined close contact as spending 15 

consecutive minutes within six feet of a person with a confirmed coronavirus case starting 

2 days before the illness onset, or for asymptomatic persons, starting 2 days prior to the 

positive specimen collection. The updated guidance now defines a close contact as 

spending 15 minutes total with an infected individual over the course of a 24 hour period 

during the same exposure period (2 days prior to illness onset or positive specimen 

collection). For instance, if a person has three five minute encounters with someone 

over the course of 24 hours, then they will be considered to have been in close contact 

wit h that person. The CDC's updated guidance can be found here: https://VvWW.cdc.gov/ 

coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/contact-tracing/contact-tracing-plan/appendix.html#contact. 

The CDC st ates that other situations that count as a 
close contact include: 

You provided care at home to someone who is 
sick with COVI D-19 

You had direct physical contact with the person 
{hugged or kissed them) 

You shared eating or drinking utensils 

They sneezed, coughed, or somehow got 
respiratory droplets on you 

For employers, determining who was a "close 
contact" of a person who tests positive for COVID-19 
has a number immediate implications per the 
guidance of the CDC: 

Contact tracing should be conducted for close 
contacts of a person who tested positive for the 
virus or was diagnosed as having a probable case 
of COVI D-19. 

Close contacts should be instructed to quarantine 
at home for 14 days f rom their last known contact 
with the worker with COVID-19 and shou ld be 
tested for COVID 19. 

Those contacts who test positive (symptomatic 

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, P.C. 

or asymptomatic) should be managed as a 
confi rmed COVID-19 case. 

For most persons with COVI D-19, 
isolation and precautions can generally 
be discontinued 10 days after symptom 
onset and resolution of fever for at least 24 
hours, without the use of fever-reducing 
medications, and with improvement of 
other symptoms 

For persons w ho never develop 
symptoms, isolation and other 
precautions can be discontinued 10 days 
after the date of their first positive test. 

Asymptomatic contacts testing negative sh ould 
self-quarantine for 14 days from their last 
exposure (i.e., close encounter with confirmed or 
probable COVID-19 case). 

If testing is not available, symptomatic close 
contacts should self-isolate and be m anaged as a 
probable COVID-19 case. 

The "close contact" definition change was triggered 
by a report of a 20-year-old Vermont correctional 
officer w ho was diagnosed with a COVID-19 infection 
in August. The guard, who wore a mask and goggles, 

sycr.com 1 



CLIENT ALERT Stradling 

had multiple brief encounters wit h six transferred prisoners w hose test results showed they were positive. At 
t imes the prisoners wore masks, but there were encounters in cell doorways or in a recreational room where 
prisoners did not have them on, the report said. 

An investigat ion that reviewed video footage concluded the g uard's interactions with the prisoners who tested 
positive totaled 17 m inutes during an 8-hour sh ift. The CDC's report on the Vermont guard can be found here: 
https://www.cdc.g ov/mmwrlvolumes/69/wr/mm6943el.htm?s cid=mm6943el w 

This change likely w ill have the greatest impact on schools and workplaces where people try to stay apart but 
may visit communal areas (bathroom, wat ercooler, etc.) several t imes a day, and will likely resu lt in many more 
close contacts being identified. 

Stradling Has Resources To Help You Stay Compliant 
Please do not hesitate to reach out to us for assistance in dealing w ith the effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic on your company. 

Labor and Employment Pract ice Group 

Jeff Din kin Jared Speier 
805.730 .6820 805.730.6804 
jdinkin@sycr.com jspeier@sycr.com 

Corporate and Securities Practice Group 

Ryan Wilkins 
949.725.411S 
rwilkins@sycr.com 

Litigation Practice Group 

Jason de Bretteville 
949.725.4094 
jdebretteville@sycr.com 

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, P.C. 

Intellectual Property Practice Group 

Steven Hanle 
949.725.4126 
shan le@sycr.com 

Public Finance Practice Grou p 

Dav id Casnocha 
415.283.2241 
dcasnocha@sycr.com 

Brian Forbath 
949.725.4193 
bforbath@sycr.com 

sycr.com 2 



ri'iTii Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
biiiii6i CDC 24/7: Saving Uves, Protecting Peoplen• 

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) MENU> 

Appendices 
Updated Oct. 21,2020 Print 

Table of Contents 

Overview Building Community Support 

Scaling Up Staffing Roles Data Management 

Training Evaluating Success 

When to Initiate Confidentiality and Consent 

Investigating a COVID-19 Case Support Services 

Contact Tracing for CO VI D-19 Digital Contact Tracing Tools 

Outbreak Investigations Resources 

Special Considerations Appendices 

Summary of Changes 

Revisions made on October 21, 2020 

• Updated language for the close contact definition. 

Appendix A- Glossary of Key Terms 

Term 

Case Investigation & Contact 

Tracing 

Definition 

Fundamental activities that involve working with a patient who has been 

diagnosed with an infectious disease to identify and provide support to 

people (contacts) who may have been infected through exposure to the 

patient. This process prevents further transmission of disease by separating 

people who have (or may have) an infectious disease from people who do 

not. 



Close Contact 

Confirmed COVID-19 Case 

Contact Elicitation Window 

Critical Infrastructure Worker 

Exposure 

First-responder 

Someone who was within 6 feet of an infected person for a cumulative total 

of 15 minutes or more over a 24-hour period* starting from 2 days before 

illness onset (or, for asymptomatic patients, 2 days prior to test specimen 

collect ion) until the time the patient is isolated. 

*Individual exposures added together over a 24-hour period (e.g., three 5-

minute exposures for a total of 15 minutes) Data are limited, making it 

difficult to precisely define "dose contact;" however, 15 cumulative minutes 
of exposure at a distance of 6 feet or less can be used as an operational 
definition for contact investigation. Factors to consider when defining dose 
contact include proximity (closer distance l;kely increases exposure risk) the 
duration of exposure (longer exposure time likely increases exposure risk) 
whether the infected individual has symptoms (the period around onset of 
symptoms is associated with the highest levels of viral shedding) if the 

infected person was likely to generate respiratory aerosols (e.g., was 

coughing; singing; shouting) and other environmental factors (crowding; 
adequacy of ventilation, whether exposure was indoors or outdoors) 
Because the general public has not received training on proper selection and 

use of respiratory PPE, such as an N95_ the determination of dose contact 

should generally be made irrespective of whether the contact was wearing 
respiratory PPE At this tim~ differential determination of dose contact for 
those using fabric face coverings is not recommended. 

Report of person with COVID-19 and meeting confirmatory laboratory 

evidence. 

The timeframe when the case was likely infectious and not under isolation. 

This is the time period for which possible contacts should be elicited. 

Workers in 16 different sectors • ~ including Chemical. ~ Commercial 

Facilities, ~ Communications, ~ Critical Manufacturing, ~ Dams, [:j 

· Defense Industrial Ba?e, ~ Emergency Services, B Energy, B Financial 

Services, ~ Food and Agriculture, ~Government Facilities, ~ Healthcare 

and Public Health, B Information Technology, ~ Nuclear Reactors, 

Materials, and Waste, B Transportation Systems, ~ and Water and 

Wastewater Systems. B These workers include: (a) federal, state and local 

law enforcement; (b) 911 call center employees; (c) fusion center employees; 

(d) public and private hazardous material responders; (e) janitorial and 

custodial staff; (f) workers and contractors in the food and agriculture, critical 

manufacturing, informational technology, transportation, energy, and 

government facilities industries. Interim Guidance for Implementing Safety 

Practices for Critical Infrastructure Workers Who May Have Had Exposure to 

a Person with Suspected or Confirmed CO VI D-19 • . 

Having come into contact with a cause of, or possessing a characteristic that 

is a determinant of, a particular health problem. Principles of Epidemiology 

in Public Health Practice. 

Law enforcement, fire services, emergency medical services, and emergency 

management officials. EMS Guid_ance. 



Healthcare personnel 

Incubation period 

Isolation 

Multigenerational Household 

Probable COVID-19 Case 

Quarantine 

All paid and unpaid people serving in healthcare settings who have the 
potential for direct or indi rect exposure to patients or infectious materials, 
including body substances; contaminated medical supplies, devices, and 
equipment; contaminated environmental surfaces; or contaminated air. 
Potential Exposure at Work. 

Period of time between exposure to an infection and onset of symptoms 

The separation of a person or group of people known or reasonably believed 
to be infected with a communicable disease and potentially infectious from 

those who are not infected to prevent spread of the communicable disease. 
Isolation for public health purposes may be voluntary or compelled by 
federal, state, or local public health order. 

Households that consist of more than two generations living under the same 
roof 13 . Many researchers also include households with a grandparent and 
at least one other generation. 

Report of person meeting clinical AND epidemiologic evidence of CO VI D-19 

but without confirmatory laboratory evidence. More about Probable COVID-

19 Case • ~ . 

The separation of a person or group of people reasonably believed to have 
been exposed to a communicable disease but not yet symptomatic from 
others who have not been so exposed to prevent the possible spread of the 
communicable disease. Quarantine may be voluntary or compelled by 

federal, state, or local public health order. 

Appendix B- Tips for Locating COVlD-19 Cases and Contacts 

When the locating information provided for a patient or close contact is insufficient, case investigation and contact 

tracing may come to an abrupt halt. The following list includes additional resources that may be used to obtain 
missing locating information and keep the investigation moving forward. 

• State DMV records 

• Online people search engines (may incur additional costs) 

• Health department records 

• Social media/mobile apps 

• Following up with the index case to ask for additional locating information on a contact 

• Jail and other correctional facility records 

• Property tax records 

• Frequent shopper cards 

• Women Infants and Children Program, Food Stamps and other social services records 

• Online white pages 

• Google maps 



How Coronavirus Spreads I CDC 

r.iliT'i1 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
lllliiiillllii CDC 24/7: Saving Uves, Protecting People 1M 

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 

Page 1 of3 

MENU > 

WEAR A MASK. PROTECT OTHERS. 

How COVID-19 Spreads 
Updated Oct. 28, 2020 Print 

COVID-19 is thought to spread mainly through close contact from person to person, includ ing between people who are 

physically near each other (within about 6 feet). People who are infected but do not show symptoms can also spread the 

virus to others. Cases of reinfection with COVID-19 have been reported but are rare. We are st iff learning about how the 

virus spreads and the severity of illness it causes. 

COVID-19 spreads very easily from person to person 
How easily a virus spreads from person to person can vary. The virus that causes COVID-19 appears to spread more 

efficiently than influenza but not as efficiently as measles, which is among the most contagious viruses known to affect 

people. 

COVID-19 most commonly spreads during close contact 
• People who are physically near (within 6 feet) a person with COVID-19 or have direct contact with that person are at 

greatest r isk of infection. 

• When people with COVID-19 cough, sneeze, sing, talk, or breathe they produce respiratory droplets. These droplets 

can ra nge in size from larger droplets (some of which are visible) to smaller droplets. Small droplets can also form 

particles when they dry very quickly in the airstream. 

• Infections occur mainly through exposure to respiratory droplets when a person is in close contact with someone 

who has COVID-19. 

• Respiratory droplets cause infection when they are inha led or deposited on mucous membranes, such as those that 

line the inside of the nose and mouth. 

• As the respiratory droplets travel further from the person with COVID-19, the concentration of these droplets 

decreases. Larger droplets fall out of the air due to gravity. Smaller droplets and particles spread apart in the air. 

• With passing time, the amount of infectious virus in respiratory droplets also decreases. 

COVID-19 can sometimes be spread by airborne transmission 

https:/ /www. cdc. gov I coronavirus/20 19-ncov /prevent -getting-sick/how-covid-spreads.html 11112/2020 



How Coronavirus Spreads I CDC Page 2 of3 

• Some infections can be spread by exposure to virus in small droplets and particles that can linger in the air for 

minutes to hours. These viruses may be able to infect people who are further than 6 feet away from the person who 

is infected or after that person has left the space. 

• This kind of spread is referred to as airborne transmission and is an important way that infections like tuberculosis, · 

measles, and chicken pox are spread. 

• There is evidence that under certain conditions, people with COVID-19 seem to have infected others who were more 

than 6 feet away. These transmissions occurred within enclosed spaces that had inadequate ventilation. Sometimes 

the infected person was breathing heavily, for example while singing or exercising. 

o Under these circumstances, scientists believe that the amount of infectious smaller droplet and particles 

produced by the people with COVID-19 became concentrated enough to spread the virus to other people. The 

people who were infected were in the same space during the same time or shortly after the person with COVID-

19 had left. 

• Available data indicate that it is much more common for the virus that causes COVID-19 to spread through close 

contact with a person who has COVID-19 than through airborne transmission. [1] 

COVID-19 spreads less commonly through contact with 
contaminated surfaces 

• Respiratory droplets can also land on surfaces and objects. It is possible that a person could get COVID-19 by 

touching a surface or object that has the virus on it and then touching their own mouth, nose, or eyes. 

• Spread from touching surfaces is not thought to be a common way that COVID-19 spreads 

COVID-19 rarely spreads between people and animals 
• It appears that the virus that causes COVID-19 can spread from people to animals in some situations. CDC is aware 

of a small number of pets worldwide, including cats and dogs, reported to be infected with the virus that causes 
COVID-19, mostly after close contact with people with COVID-19. Learn what you should do if you have pets. 

• At this time, the risk of COVID-19 spread ing from animals to people is considered to be low. Learn about COVID-19 

and pets and other animals. 

Protect yourself and others 
The best way to prevent illness is to avoid being exposed to this virus. You can take steps to slow the spread. 

• Stay at least 6 feet away from others, whenever possible. This is very important in preventing the spread of COVID-19. 

• Cover your mouth and nose with a mask when around others. This helps reduce the risk of spread both by close 

contact and by airborne transmission. 

• Wash your hands often with soap and water. If soap and water are not available, use a hand sanitizer that conta ins at 

least 60% alcohol. 

• Avoid crowded indoor spaces and ensure indoor spaces are properly ventilated by bringing in outdoor air as much as 

possible. In general, being outdoors and in spaces with good ventilation reduces the risk of exposure to infectious 

respiratory droplets. 

• Stay home and isolate from others when sick. 

• Routinely clean and disinfect frequently touched surfaces. 

Pandemics can be stressful, especially when you are staying away from others. During this time, it's important to maintain 

httos:/ /www .cdc. gov /coronavirus/20 19-ncov /prevent -getting-sick!how-covid-spreads.htrnl 11112/2020 



How Coronavirus Spreads I CDC Page 3 of3 

social connections and care for your mental health. 

Learn more about what you can do to protect yourself and others. 

1Pathogens that are spread easily through airborne transmission require the use of special engineering controls to prevent 

infections. Control practices, including recommendations for patient placement and personal protective equipment for 

health care personnel in healthcare settings, can be found in Section 2 of Interim Infection Prevention and Control 

Recommendations for Healthcare Personnel During the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

More Information 

Scientific Brief: SARS-CoV-2 and Potential Airborne Transmission 

ASL Video Series: How does COVID-19 Spread? 

Last Updated Oct. 28, 2020 

Content source: National Center for Immunization and Respiratory Diseases (NCIRD), Division of Viral Diseases 

https :/ /www.cdc. gov/coronavirus/20 19-ncov /prevent -getting -sick!how-covid-spreads.htrnl 11/ 12/2020 



'" "'\ \ r., ..:.. ~ · -·; .:.-.... ?~/ ., ... ) .. r r""'-: .: ~.. ~ 
.- ~ .... R. '. ~. . :r·,,• -:> 3 . . 3;:; . ~{ ; ~ .... . c-~ ··>, . ;_ 

'I ;:-• •r (Y ...., 

r ~~.--=. , ..... 
11.1/-l)lt' 

county Barbara 

:"ttealth 
JOINT INFORMATION CENTER 
(805) 696-1188 
eocpiostaff@countyofsb.org 

PRESS RELEASE 
October 28, 2020 

PUBLIC HEALTH REMINDS COMMUNITY TO CELEBRATE 
HALLOWEEN SAFELY 

(SANTA BARBARA, Calif.)- The Santa Barbara County Public Health Department would 
like to remind the community that Halloween will need to be celebrated differently this year 
to keep people safe. Take part in this holiday in a manner that reduces the risk of spreading 
COVID-19. Gatherings of people outside of your household are currently not permitted. 
Santa Barbara County is in the Red Tier, which means virus transmission remains 
substantial. 

There are many ways to celebrate creatively this year! The Safer Halloween Guidance 
provides a variety of ideas for those hoping to enjoy the holiday. Some examples include: 

• Watch Halloween movies at home or virtually with others 
• Join a Halloween movie night at drive-in theaters 
• Attend a virtual costume party or virtual craft projects event 
• Decorate your house or apartment inside and out 
• Visit a trunk or treating event 
• Attend a car costume parade 

"Traditional trick-or-treating can be a high-risk activity and alternatives are strongly 
encouraged this year. We must remain diligent during this holiday season and ensure that 
we are wearing face coverings, practicing social distancing, and avoiding mixing with people 
that do not live in our household," shared Van Do-Reynoso, Director for the Santa Barbara 
County Public Health Department. 

Environmental Health Services will be sending teams out on Halloween night to conduct 
assessments at restaurants and bars. Violations observed may result in enforcement 
action . County Rise Ambassadors will be providing information and resources to the 
public and businesses to ensure compliance with COVID-19 guidance. 

-30-

Stay Connected: 
County Public Health: www.PublicHealthSBC.org, Twitter and Facebook 
County of Santa Barbara: www.CountvofSB.org, Twitter. Facebook 
2-1-1 Call Center: Dial211 or outside the area, call (800) 400-1572 
Community Wellness Team Information and Referral Line: (805) 364-2750 
Behavioral Wellness Crisis Line: (888) 868-1649 

Follow us on Twitter: @SBCPublicHealth Facebook: @SBCountyPublicHealth lnstagram: @SBCPublicHealth 



HEALTH OFFICER ORDER NO. 2020-10.4 
COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FOR THE CONTROL OF COVID-19 
FACE COVERINGS 

WITHIN SANTA BARBARA COUNTY 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4 Supersedes and Replaces Health Officer Order No. 
2020-10.3 

Effective Date: October 17, 2020, 5:00pm PDT 

(Changes are underlined.) 

Please read this Order carefully. Violation of or failure to comply with this Order may 
constitute a misdemeanor punishable by fine of up to $1,000, imprisonment, or both. (Health 
and Safety Code§§ 101029, 120295 et seq.) Violators are also subject to civil enforcement 
actions including fines or civil penalties per violation per day, injunctive relief, and attorneys' 
fees and costs. 

This Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4 supersedes and replaces Health Officer Order No. 
2020-10.3 that was effective September 18, 2020. Nothing in this Health Officer Order No. 
2020-10.4 supersedes State Executive Orders or State Heath Officer Orders or guidance 
provided by the California Department of Public Health available at: 
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/Guidance.aspx# 

Summary: As required by the State Public Health Officer as of June 18, 2020, revised 
June 29, 2020, this Health Officer Order orders individuals in the County of Santa 
Barbara continue to wear face coverings when in high-risk situations that may 
contribute to the spread of COVID-19, unless an exemption applies. 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency for 
conditions caused by a novel coronavirus, COVID-19, and on March 11, 2020, the World 
Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic, and on March 12, 2020, the 
County of Santa Barbara declared a local emergency and a local health emergency in relation 
COVID-19 in the community; and 

WHEREAS, there has been significant community-based transmission in California; and 

WHEREAS, in the County of Santa Barbara as well as throughout California and the nation, 
there are insufficient quantities of critical healthcare infrastructure, including hospital beds, 
ventilators and workers, capable of adequately treating mass numbers of patients at a single 
time- should the virus spread unchecked; and 

WHEREAS, in direct response to the lack of healthcare infrastructure, governments across 
the nation are taking actions to slow the spread of COVID-19 in order to "flatten the curve" of 
infection and reduce the numbers of individuals infected at any one time by minimizing 
situations where the virus can spread; and 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4, County of Santa Barbara 
Face Coverings, Page 1 of 6 



WHEREAS, in furtherance of this effort, on March 19, 2020, Governor Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-33-20 requiring all persons residing in the State to remain in their homes 
or places of residence, except as needed to maintain the continuity of operations for critical 
infrastructure (the "State Stay-at-Home Order"); and 

WHEREAS, on May 4, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-60-20 to allow 
reopening of lower-risk businesses and spaces in stages. On May 7, 2020, the State Public 
Health Officer ordered that upon certification of a variance application a County could move 
through the stages of reopening at their own pace. On May 20, 2020, the California 
Department of Public Health (CDPH) approved the County of Santa Barbara's Variance 
Attestation; and 

WHEREAS, on June 18, 2020, and revised on June 29, 2020, the CDPH mandated people 
in California to wear face coverings when they are in high-risk situations; and 

WHEREAS, on August 28, 2020 the State Public Health Officer ordered an update to the 
framework for COVID-19 response, which is known as California's Plan for Reducing COVID-
19 and Adjusting Permitted Sector Activities to Keep Californians Healthy and Safe. Governor 
Newsom introduced this framework as the Blueprint for a Safer Economy, in which counties 
are assigned into risk-based tiers based on the COVID-19 epidemiological information for 
each county; and 

WHERAS, as of September 29, 2020, within the State COVID-19 reopening framework, the 
County of Santa Barbara is classified as Tier Two ("red" or "substantial risk"); this is less 
restrictive for reopening some activities than Tier One ("purple" or "widespread risk"), that the 
County of Santa Barbara was in before September 29, 2020the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the CDPH find the use of 
face coverings may reduce asymptomatic transmission of COVID-19 and reinforce physical 
distancing, and that wearing a face covering combined with physical distancing of at least six 
feet, and frequent hand washing, will lessen the risk of COVID-19 transmission by limiting the 
spread of respiratory droplets; and 

WHEREAS, the County Health Officer finds (1) a significant portion of individuals with COVID-
19 are asymptomatic and can transmit the virus to others; (2) those who may develop 
symptoms can transmit the virus to others before showing symptoms; (3) scientific evidence 
shows COVlD-19 is easily spread and public activities can result in transmission of the virus; 
(4) face coverings are necessary because COVID-19 is highly contagious and is spread 
through respiratory droplets that are produced when an infected person coughs, sneezes, or 
talks. These droplets may land on other people or be inhaled into their lungs, may land on 
and attach to surfaces where they remain for days, and may remain viable in the air for up to 
three hours, even after the infected person is no longer present; (5) when worn properly, face 
coverings have the potential to slow the spread of the virus by limiting the spread of respiratory 
droplets; and (6) distinctions made in this Order are to minimize the spread of COVID-19 that 
could occur through proximity and duration of contact between individuals; and 

WHEREAS, the intent of this Order is to temporarily require the use of Face Coverings to slow 
the spread of COVID-19 in Santa Barbara County to the maximum extent possible. All 
provisions of this Order should be interpreted to effectuate this intent. 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4, County of Santa Barbara 
Face Coverings, Page 2 of 6 



.:: 

ACCORDINGLY, UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND SAFETY 
CODE SECTIONS 101040, 101085, AND 120175, TITLE 17 CALIFORNIA CODE OF 
REGULATIONS SECTION 2501, THE HEALTH OFFICER OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA 
BARBARA ORDERS: 

1. This Order 2020-10.4 is effective 5:00p.m. (PDT) October 17, 2020 and continuing 
until 5:00 p.m. (PDD. on November 15. 2020 or until it is extended, rescinded, 
superseded, or amended in writing by the County of Santa Barbara Health Officer 
("Health Officer"). This Order applies in the incorporated and unincorporated areas of 
Santa Barbara County ("County"). 

2. As used in this Order, a "face covering" means a covering made of a variety of materials 
such as cloth, fabric, cotton, silk, linen, or other permeable materials, that fully covers 
the tip of a person's nose and mouth, without holes, including cloth face masks, 
surgical masks, towels, scarves, and/or bandanas. This Order does not require the 
public to wear medical-grade masks, including masks rated N95, KN95, and their 
equivalent or better. 

A face covering with a one-way valve (typically a raised plastic cylinder about the size 
of a quarter on the front or side of the mask) that provides a preferential path of escape 
for exhaled breath shall not be used as a face covering under this Order because the 
valve permits respiratory droplets to easily escape which places others at risk . 

3. People in the County shall wear face coverings when they are in the following high-risk 
situations, unless an exemption applies: 

a. In any indoor public space where other people (except for members of the 
person's own household or residence) are present when unable to physically 
distance by six or more feet from those others (regardless of whether or not the 
space is publicly or privately owned, so long as the public has access by right 
or invitation, whether express or implied, whether by payment or not). 

b. Obtaining services from the healthcare sector in settings such as a hospital, 
pharmacy, medical clinic, laboratory, physician or dental office, veterinary clinic, 
or blood bank, unless directed otherwise by an employee or healthcare provider. 

c. While outdoors in public spaces when maintaining a physical distance of 6 feet 
from persons who are not members of the same household or residence is not 
feasible. 

d. When waiting in line, whether indoors or outdoors. 

e. Waiting for, or riding, on public transportation or paratransit, or while in a taxi, 
private car service, or ride-sharing vehicle. 

f. Driving, or operating, any public transportation or paratransit vehicle, taxi, or 
private car service or ride-sharing vehicle when passengers are present When 
no passengers are present, face coverings are strongly recommended. 

g. Engaged in work, whether at the workplace or performing work off-site, when: 
i. Interacting in-person with any member of the public; 

ii. Working in any space visited by members of the public, regardless of 
whether anyone from the public is present at the time; 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4, County of Santa Barbara 
Face Coverings, Page 3 of 6 



iii. Working in any space where food is prepared or packaged for sale or 
distribution to others; 

iv. Working in, or walking through common areas, such as hallways, 
stairways, elevators, and parking facilities; and 

v. In any room or enclosed area where other people (except for members of 
the person's own household or residence) are present when unable to 
physically distance by six or more feet from those others. 

4. The following individuals are exempted from this Order: 

a. Persons younger than two years old. 
b. Persons with a medical condition, mental health condition, or disability that 

prevents wearing a face covering. This includes persons with a medical 
condition for whom wearing a face covering could obstruct breathing or who are 
unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove a face covering 
without assistance. Persons exempted from wearing a face covering due to a 
medical condition, mental health condition, or disability who are employed in a 
job involving regular contact with others should, if the condition allows, wear a 
non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield with a drape on the bottom 
edge. 

c. Persons who are hearing impaired, or communicating with a person who is 
hearing impaired, where the ability to see the mouth is essential for 
communication. 

d. Persons for whom wearing a face covering would create a risk to the person 
related to their work, as determined by local, state, or federal regulators or 
workplace safety guidelines. 

e. Persons who are obtaining a service involving the nose or face for which 
temporary removal of the face covering is necessary to perform the service. · 

f. Persons who are seated at a restaurant or other establishment that offers food 
or beverage service, while they are eating or drinking, provided that they are 
able to maintain a distance of at least six feet away from persons not seated at 
or serving their table. 

g. Persons who are engaged in outdoor work or recreation such as swimming, 
walking, hiking, bicycling, or running, when alone or with household members, 
and when they are able to maintain a distance of at least six feet from others 
who are not part of their household or residence. 

h. Persons who are incarcerated. Prisons and jails, as part of their mitigation plans, 
will have specific guidance on the wearing of face coverings or masks for both 
inmates and staff. 

5. If you cannot afford a face covering one will be provided to you free-of-charge at the 
following locations: 

a. Santa Barbara County Administration building lobby, 105 E Anapamu St, Santa 
Barbara 

b. Santa Barbara Health Care Center, 345 Camino del Remedio, Santa Barbara 
c. Santa Maria Health Care Center, 2115 Centerpointe Parkway, Santa Maria 
d. Face coverings may also be available by calling 211 to access offers by 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4, County of Santa Barbara 
Face Coverings, Page 4 of 6 



community groups at no cost. 
e. The Health Officer requests cities within the County of Santa Barbara provide 

face coverings free-of-charge to those cannot afford them. 

This Order is issued as a result of the worldwide pandemic of COVID-19 which has infected 
at least 38,935,567 individuals worldwide, in 214 countries and territories, including 9,520 
cases, and 117 deaths in the County, and is implicated in over 1,099,447 worldwide deaths. 

This Order is issued based on evidence of increasing transmission of COVID-19 both within 
the County and worldwide, scientific evidence regarding the most effective approach to slow 
transmission of communicable diseases generally and COVID-19 specifically, as well as best 
practices as currently known and available to protect the public from the risk of spread of or 
exposure to COVID-19. 

This Order is issued because of the propensity of the virus to spread person to person and 
also because the virus physically is causing property loss or damage due to its proclivity to 
attach to surfaces for prolonged periods of time. 

This Order is intended to reduce the likelihood of exposure to COVID-19, thereby slowing the 
spread of COVID-19 in communities worldwide. As the presence of individuals increases, the 
difficulty and magnitude of tracing individuals who may have been exposed to a case rises 
exponentially. 

This Order is issued in accordance with, and incorporates by reference: the March 4, 2020 
Proclamation of a State Emergency issued by Governor Gavin Newsom; the March 12, 2020 
Declaration of Local Health Emergency and Proclamation of Emergency based on an 
imminent and proximate threat to public health from the introduction of novel COVID-19 in the 
County; the March 17, 2020 Resolution of the Board of Supervisors ratifying the County 
Declaration of Local Health Emergency and Proclamation of Emergency regarding COVID-
19; the guidance issued on March 11. 2020 by the California Department of Public Health 
regarding large gatherings of 250 people or more; Governor Gavin Newsom's Executive 
Order N-25-20 of March 12, 2020 preparing the State to commandeer hotels and other places 
of temporary residence, medical facilities , and other facilities that are suitable as places of 
temporary residence or medical facilities as necessary for quarantining, isolating or treating 
individuals who test positive for COVID-19 or who have had a high-risk exposure and are 
thought to be in the incubation period; the March 13, 2020 Presidential Declaration of a 
National Emergency due to the national impacts of COVID-19; the guidance issued on March 
15, 2020 by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, the California Department of 
Public Health, and other public health officials through the United States and around the world 
recommending the cancellation of gatherings involving more than fifty (50) or more persons 
in a single space at the same time; the March 16, 2020 order of the State Public Health Officer 
prohibiting all gatherings with expected presence above ten (10) individuals; Governor 
Newsom's Executive Order N-33-20 of March 19, 2020 ordering all persons to stay at home 
to protect the health and well-being of all Californians and to establish consistency across the 
state in order to slow the spread of COVID-19; the March 22, 2020, Presidential Declaration 
of a Major Disaster in California beginning on January 20, 2020 under Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) Incident DR-4482-CA; and, Governor Newsom's Executive 
Order N-60-20 of May 4, 2020 to allow reopening of lower-risk businesses and spaces ("Stage 
Two"), and then to allow reopening of higher-risk businesses and spaces ("Stage Three"), and 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4, County of Santa Barbara 
Face Coverings, Page 5 of 6 



directing the Public Health Officer to establish criteria and procedures to determine whether 
and how particular local jurisdictions may implement public health measures that depart from 
the statewide directives of the State Public Health Officer; the June 18, 2020, as revised on 
June 29, 2020, CDPH guidance requiring people in California to wear face coverings when 
they are in high-risk situations; the July 13, 2020 State Public Health Officer Order; and the 
August 28 State Public Health Officer Order regarding California's Plan for Reducing COVID-
19 and Adjusting Permitted Sector Activities to Keep Californians Healthy and Safe (also 
known as the Blueprint for a Safer Economy). 

This Order is made in accordance with all applicable State and Federal laws, including but 
not limited to: Health and Safety Code sections 101040 and 120175; Health and Safety Code 
sections 101030 et seq., 120100 et seq.; and Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations 
section 2501 . 

If any provision of this Order or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held 
to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Order, including the 
application of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances, shall not be affected 
and shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, the provisions of this Order are 
severable. 

The violation of any provision of this Order constitutes a threat to public health. Pursuant to 
Government Code sections 26602 and 41601 and Health and Safety Code sections 101029 
and 120295, the Health Officer requests that the Sheriff and all chiefs of police in the County 
ensure compliance with and enforce this Order. Per Health and Safety Code section 101029, 
"the sheriff of each county, or city and county, may enforce within the county, or the city and 
county, all orders of the local health officer issued for the purpose of preventing the spread of 
any contagious, infectious, or communicable disease. Every peace officer of every political 
subdivision of the county, or city and county, may enforce within the area subject to his or her 
jurisdiction all orders of the local health officer issued for the purpose of preventing the spread 
of any contagious, infectious, or communicable disease. This section is not a limitation on the 
authority of peace officers or public officers to enforce orders of the local health officer. When 
deciding whether to request this assistance in enforcement of its orders, the local health 
officer may consider whether it would be necessary to advise the enforcement agency of any 
measures that should be taken to prevent infection of the enforcement officers." 

Copies of this Order shall promptly be: (1) made available at the County Public Health 
Department; (2) posted on the County Public Health Department's website 
(publichealthsbc.org); and (3) provided to any member of the public requesting a copy of this 
Order. 

IT IS SO ORDERED: 

Henning Ansmg., M.D. 
Health Officer 
Santa Barbara County Public Health Department 

Health Officer Order No. 2020-10.4, County of Santa Barbara 
Face Coverings, Page 6 of 6 



1 
2 
3 
4 

6 
7 
8 
9 

w 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

:L9 
30 
3'1 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
<::" 1 

2 
53 
54 

SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRJCT 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRJCT NO.1 

OCTOBER 20, 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Agenda Item VII. 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No.1, was held at 3:00p.m. on Tuesday, October 20, 2020 via video/teleconference 
only due to the COVID-19 Emergency and Governor Newsom's Executive Orders. 

Trustees Present: Michael Burchardi 
Brad Joos 

Jeff Clay 
Lori Parker 

Lee Rosenberg 

Trustees Absent: None 

Others Present: Paeter Garcia 
Karen King 

Mary Martone 
Eric Tambini 

.GaryiKyjstad 
ErnestKfrn.. 

I. 

?.-. ~·:~{;J.L, 
"-''1<'.J".~ ,. v ,:""' 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: ,p- ·· '~~~, 
President Clay called the meeting to order at 3:03. p.m., he stated this was a ":Re~lar Meeting of 
the Board of Trustees. Ms. Martone conducted ·r'911 <;all and r~ported all memS&r~j,:o(.the Board 

• . :.: 1;:: ' '·:j,;• 

were present. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

President Clay led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Ill. REPORT BY THE SECRETARY TO THE BOARD REGARDING COMPLIAN€E WITH THE REQUIREMENTS 

IV. 

V. 

FOR POSTING OF THE AGENDA: ':: .,,_ ,J:i:Cy.;f:::, ·~)'-

Ms. Martone presented the affidavit of po~ting of tli~;£~~~1f~ alon{ with a true copy of the agenda 
for this meeting. She repo,!ted that the agenda was posf~.:ih accordance with the California 
Government Code, eommencing at Section 54950 and pursuant to Resolution No. 340 of the 
District. The affi,g~\rit was filed as evidence of the posting of the agenda items contained therein. 

-~:~!:::~~~:~~ .. ·}.~. !. .. : 

Ms. Martone adde:C(~tl:tat as q 0·r~sult of the coytb-19 emergency and Governor Newsom's 
Executive Orders to "ptqtec.t:~_p-ti'b.A~~~e,~th_by~_}llkting public gatherings and requiring social 
distai).cing, 'il1~, ~gc:rd m;etF,tg woU1'd1)c'CUi~ ~ol~ly via video I teleconference as authorized by and 
in fu,1therance'btE~€(:Utive Order Nos. N-29-20 and N-33-20 and applicable amendments to the 
California Brown Acf'as set forth in those Executive Orders. 

---:::- i'!:, 

.::: . ., _' ... to. 
~t~r.. :i~. ~,, 

ADDflliONS OR CORRECTIONS, IF ANY, TO THE AGENDA: 

Mr. G&1#~.!,stated there w~re no additions or corrections to the agenda. 
;i_;·;:v~;_- :·~ _ 

PuBuc CoMMENT: 

President Clay.~we!co~ed any members of the public participating via video or telephonically 
and offered time'!{pt''members of the public to speak and address the Board on matters not on the 
agenda. !'-c 

Mr. Ernest Kim, Siemens Energy representative, announced he was present. 

There were no other comments received from the public. 

Mr. Garcia stated that the Notice and Agenda for this Regular Meeting requested members of the 
public to submit advance written comments to the District via electronic mail by 5:00p.m. on 
Monday, October 19, 2020. Mr. Garcia reported that no written comments were submitted to the 
District for the meeting. 

. ' --, 

October 20, 2020 Minutes Page l of 6 



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
'7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
2'7 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

VI. 

VII. 

VIII. 

IX. 

CORONA VIRUS (COVID-19) UPDATE: 
A. General Manager's Report 

The Board packet included copies of press releases issued by the Santa Barbara County Health 
Department dated October 13, 2020 and September 29, 2020 regarding the current 
requirements pertaining to COVID-19. 

Mr. Garcia reported on the current activities related to the COVID-19 pandemic and the 
District's actions. Mr. Garcia indicated that staff continues to receive and review updates 
related to COVID from federal, state, regional, and local agencies. Mr. Garcia referenced 
materials that were included in the Board packet from the Counry- of Santa Barbara. He 
explained the District continues to maintain the same response p~~)~!th staff being divided 
into two teams alternating each week. He also reported ~j.l'i'consftuction of plexiglass 
barriers were installed recently in the front office workstati?~!~;,~preventative measure and 
to assist with social distancing requirements. .t:f:~it c t~~~ 

. ~-~'l~< "·'~t~~tj 
CONSIDERATION OF TilE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTE~BER~l5, 2020 
The Regular Meeting Minutes from September 15, 2pf'o'wer~ 'presented for'!(f~~~geration. 

:~~~~~- . :1;:~~~-

President Clay asked if there were any changes_or~additions t() _the Regular Meetij;lg~~utes of 
- • -~ •~ ~; ·>,. 'P:i-:-;r'' 

September 15, 2020. There were no changes or addftio'tl~reql;l~steq,. )lf· 
·.·. ~~-- 'L ,r; j .. fc t ,,, 

It was MOVED by Trustee Rosenberg, seconded by Trust~~-,J3urchardi, and carried by 5-0-0 roll 
call vote, to approve the September 15,_2020 Regular Meetirigr-Minutes as presented. 

CONSENT AGENDA: \~~[;~;Jlj,~~~/t;;1,.L .. '; :;t::\:·o. 

The Consent Agenda Report was provid&g. in thefi39.~:c:I·rp~cket. _.l';rz' 
~\ J;~~:r--¥Jf~JW#ff~~ .. 

Mr. Garcia reviewed ~!h~~~ent Agenda ~{~phls for tlie-~onth of September. 
.~(~~~-::~=-~~ .')*~~:t~-. ---~~~ ~J-i 

It was MOVED by4frustee Bu1,£¥Jrrdi, secondetl[~py Trustee Rosenberg, and carried by a 5-0-0 roll 
call vote, to apptbWe~the Cons~~\1 Agenda. ·:~h 

·' ""-i~~ !I' ·:~:>:it.' ~' 

MANAGER REPORTs -~fSTATI:TtfjjiSCuSSION AN.IjP OSSIBLE BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING 
sunnz.Sf~T.~~:~ . - .... · .. ~o- ' ··~·"-·"'" ''""·* ·" 

A . . J1>ISTRICT'lt.OMINISTRA'I>A,_.. •.• -
.- .,";'i. Financial R~n.q!t on A·tr~tive Matters 
--~' .. _ a) Presentatiq_n of Monthly' Financial Statements - Revenues and Expenses 

•t It{;~#,,, Ms. Marton~#~~portect'that the Board ~as pro:ided the Statem~t of Revenues and 
"'11\V~f:<;i> Expenses for 1fliie month of September VIa email. She also explamed that the reports 

''''1iit~~*'~re posted ~,the District's website in the Board packet materials for any members 
•Sfjbe public'-~ishing to follow along or receive a copy. 
~.~ - ,£;§._,.~ 

-mane reviewed the Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the month of 
Septe,lfier. She highlighted various line-items and reported that District expenses 
exceeded the revenues by $33,804.96 and the year-to-date net income was $648,383.96. 
Ms. Martone stated that there is typically a decline in water demand in the winter 
months, which will be reflected on the financials in October, November, and 
December. She explained that all accumulated revenues during the fiscal year to date 
will be earmarked and utilized for the annual State Water Project and COMB Bond 
payments due in June 2021. 

.. : ·, r 1 ~ - .:J 

October 20, 2020 Minutes 
/ , 
i ; 

' Page 2 of 6 
!J 



I 
2 
3 
4 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
26 
26 
27 

L9 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
4.6 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 

' 

53 

X. 

b) Approval of Accounts Payable 
Ms. Martone reported that the Board was provided the Warrant List for September 15, 
2020 through October 20, 2020 via email, and it was posted on the District's website in 
the Board packet materials for any member of the public wishing to receive a copy. 

The Board reviewed the Warrant List which covered warrants 23367 through 23429 
for the period of September 15, 2020 through October 20, 2020 in the amount of 
$897,793.10. 

It was MOVED by Trustee Rosenberg, seconded by Trustee Burchardi, and carried by 
a 5-0-0 roll call vote to approve the Warrant List for SepJe,mber 15, 2020 through 
October 20, 2020. ,,, 

··::~ : j-•"' 

B. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: "!1jll.~G~"' 
1. Purchase of Two Fleet Vehicles ~~1tBi~_ .. 

a) Consideration and Award of Bid .::... '":;:!f.:."'"' 
The Board packet included bids results for.th~J!mrchase of two ·fi.ew fleet vehicles. + ,; ·-· ~~.. ~-}l·;:.;·:r.;.::q· 

Mr. Garcia explained that a requesq9~-~b~~s was cwened for the·:~w.~f~~e_· of two 2021 
Ford F250 Regular Cab, 4wd Truc.ks ·eq"Wpped witl} service bodies a'Qg)ilift gates. He 
indicated that funds for this purchase we~~1;iJ:1!21ug~(iirbthe adopted Fidfal Year 2020-21 
Budget. Mr. Garcia reported that bid reque'~t$rr~ere sent to nine potential vendors and 
three bid responses wer~ _received by the deci'arf!f~. date. Discussion ensued regarding 
the bid process, results, afi#-:Eompliance with . ffi~•J?:istrict' s Purchasing Policy which 
requires the bid to be awar'a¢tr*p}fu~ lowest respo~i§l~ .a,.nc.lresponsive bidder. 

;i-~-; .. ,_ ,~~:-n~m~~~~:·--; ~_,_2;~; , _ -~~f~d~JJ!f:: 
Mr. Garcia stated that after ~s>roughlf{~o:rp._Earing aJITbid submittals, the bid results 

,- 1 •• _..,,., ~;·., .) ·:1 :!:::.--·; bl}. _ -

reflect that Perry Ford was the'l'?we~~1tesfrolliji~le;,p~d in the amount of $85,290.60. Mr. 
Garcia re'T£~~need acceptant~;,h~W,.the bid 'f£bril Perry Ford and authorization to 
purcha,s¢:th:e lw'"'Q;-:f!g~t vehicles. ''' · · 

,Jitr2~L ~~tt+~1 (;_ 
Aftef~ aHil'ief disru.'$~ion, it was Mf.>~o . by Trustee Burchardi, seconded by Trustee 
RosenbJt~~~d c;~,~~, ,.by a un~6hs 5-0-0 roll call vote, to accept the lowest 

.. . : .. ~!;?~fonsible'q~~,;jj>£$85}2~Qt§£~~:~IB:J.iyjiy Fo~d of S~ Luis '?bispo f~r the purchase of two 
.. ,•;, , ; _;2Q~J~:Pld F250:~~?m:llar Cab 4-wrd:(frucks with service bodies and lift gates. 

:~~~: :::.· ~~-: ~1-~~Tlt,[ittL. ~:i :1~tftl}J;=~--
REPORT, DISCUSSION~AND Pos'stn~E. BOARD ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING SUBJECTS: 

'-,., . i ~ -' . - ... ' .. -"-:, . ~-

ii~q~!~: - :-- . '!:_jiVJlW;L- · - :r~tr~;t 
A. . ~<i:ACHUMA PROJEcti:::rOPERA TI.ONS AND SUPPLIES 

1;''-ril4roendment to e&ntract No. I75r-1802R between United States Bureau of Reclamation 
'~ffi-41"~-~ta Barbar~j,€ounty Water Agency (Amendatory Contract No. 175r-1802RA) 

'-~:-::.~rn~~;IJ~4- -~f.;::r· 
2. First '1\m~f,;,d~~pt to Cachuma Project Member Unit Contract between Santa Barbara 

County.'V,V~J~v'A.gency and Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement 
District NO'}! 

;f~'v 

Agenda Items X. A. 1. & 2. were discussed together. 

The Board packet included an executed September 28, 2020 Amendment to Contract 
between the United States and Santa Barbara County Water Agency for Water Service 
from the Cachuma Project (Amendatory Contract No. I75r-1802RA) and an Executed 
September 24, 2020 First Amendment to Cachuma Project Member Unit Contract- Santa 
Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1. 

·----., 
October 20, 2020 Minutes 

r · - l /-; ·\ . ·-:; ,-
__: •"; Page3 of6 



1 
·2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 XI. 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
4'2 
43 XII. 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 
52 
53 

Mr. Garcia provided background information and reported that the negotiations for an 
interim Master Contract for Cachuma Water Supplies and the related Cachuma Project 
Member Unit Contracts have been finalized. He reported that the Amendment to the 
existing Cachuma Project Master Contract between USBR and the County Water Agency 
and the First Amendments to the Cachuma Project Member Unit Contract for ID No.1 
have been executed and signed by all parties. Mr. Garcia stated the amendments retain all 
of the substantive provisions of the existing Master Contract and current Cachuma Project 
Member Unit Contract(s), and extends the contract terms for up to an additional three 
years to allow time for negotiations to take place on the next long-term contracts. Mr. 
Garcia stated that negotiations for the next long-term contract V(illlikely begin soon and 
will be a lengthy process which will allow the Cachum~t;,~6jr~t Member Units an 
opportunity to address important substantive issues that ~'affecf'the Cachuma Project 
supply, operation of the Project, environmental review, _ai)~'c~;pntract compliance. 

:r.-:.rt ---· 

3. Draft Yield Study for the Cachuma Project " ~{ "'irff'iji~l!:. 
Mr. Garcia reported that the County Water A~~~~)j"~eleased a ~ilf~ield Study for the 
Cachuma Project in August of 2020. He expJ~ed file Draft Yield S~~proposes some 
significant reductions in the Project yield,,yf f the Dr~~Study was prepl~~~i~5mt input 
fro~ the Cach~ma Project Member U~fSL'~~: Garcia'~~-~fted that the Ca~ra Member 
Umts have reviewed the Draft Study and se:tWR~ col.!.t~tiv:e , response lette~~to the Water 
Agency setting forth various concerns and obje£g9p,S:t He explained that the letter also 
indicates that the Cachuma Member Units intend~iq;~J.l!ldertake an independent study to 
evaluate Project yield and related issues. An additional1etter from the Cachuma Member 
Units dated October 16,2020 Wa~:~~t~to USBR. <·~~ .. , 

"ii~~i<Fu.i*tE)t:•"· ... 
B. SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAG EMEN I 'ft~l'f{'~,, ,J.o•' 

----.·i ..1' -~ ~-·;~tr·::~':;:Jit-:- . ' 
1. Eastern Management Area Update?%. t<J1t~ · >it..J1ti:1~~"' 

Mr. Garcia s~~~dlh.~1!fe next meeth!~~f the Gro~~*ater Sustainability Agency for the 
Eastern M".l!lagemeh~-4tea of the Santa~nez River Villey Groundwater Basin will be held 
on Novex,$;~r 19, 202.0t;~a teleconfered~~ at 6:30p.m. He reported that the consultants, 
GSI sdiU.'li<i>h:s, are ~ently working>Q!l"''Various technical matters, including the 

•. ..... . ·t· 

hydrogeolog1"Gal concggfu~ Il10_del and water budgets which will be discussed at the 
k:J.gy~Il}b.~r meeting~;¢:Mi:"Gaftfii;{~t!t_[d>that significant milestones in the SGMA process 

:-·'·:.·_ ·:':- !i~:.P ·:tl·~~~:,~~~~- 1 ::!:~;::::;. - '-.lj~'i;· .,- ::i : 

,,1 ,; :~ cfre· up<g~g in theJ;1~2r future, afid1that all stakeholders are encouraged to participate. 
·:.::. ·' '.}l_;:;:>;: i~~tt~~>~-

' I : · : · :~ · : .~;!;;.· : ,' 

·uPDATE FROM ALTERNATIVE POWER/SoLAR AD Hoc SuBcoMMITIEE: 

Mr~J:Garcia welcomed Mr. Ernest ISfrn from Siemens Energy and thanked him for attending the 
tele'E~~~,{,~nce. Mr. Gar~~1ecapp~d staff's ongoing research on alternative power options for the 
Distrk'E4~~ .. stated tha(~~f has provided District utility data to two solar agencies for their 
review. He;·~~cated fu.at staff is currently in the process of scheduling site visits with each of 
the solar re~e~~~ ... tati\Tes in the near future. 

~f~~¥-;;~ 
REPORTS BY niK!J:l'BOARD MEMBERS OR STAFF, QUESTIONS OF STAFF, STATUS REPORTS, 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMITTEE REPORTS, OBSERVATIONS AND OTIIER MATTERS AND/OR 

COMMUNICATIONS NOT REQUIRING ACTION: 

The Board packet included an October 9, 2020 letter from the District to the California Department 
of Transportation regarding comments on the Initial Study and Proposed Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for the Alamo Pintado Creek Pedestrian Bridge Project. Mr. Garcia stated that 
Caltrans is considering alternatives of removing the bridge, removing and replacing the bridge, 
or leaving the bridge in its current condition. He reported that the District submitted a formal 
comment letter as part of the environmental review process. He explained that the District's has 
a critical interest in the project because the District's six-inch water main is attached to the bridge 

-, r:. r- 1:: 
October 20, 2020 Minutes ' Page4 of6 



1 
2 
3 
4 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
2'1 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 - ") 

_.J 

30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
4.1 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 
51 

XIII. 

XIV. 

XV. 

XVI. 

that spans Alamo Pintado Creek. Mr. Garcia stated that a virtual meeting was held where 
members of the public provided comments which were mostly in opposition to removing the 
bridge. Mr. Garcia stated that the District's letter explains why the 6-inch main is an integral 
component of the District's water distribution system. 

The Board packet included a September 28, 2020 letter from the District to the Solvang Chamber 
of Commerce and Allan Hancock College regarding support for the Nationwide Rural Prosperity 
Initiative. 

The Board packet included the Family Farm Alliance Monthly Briefing for the month of 
September 2020. 

Trustee Parker reported that she had been contacted by Ms. LisaJ?,~~er, B'oard President of the 
Los Olivos Community Services District (CSD). Trustee Parkei.c§t~t~~9,. that she had met with Ms. 
Palmer and that CSD representatives would like to attend .~f't:lpco~~pistrict Board meeting 
to discuss possible collaboration between ID No.1 and th~ CSJ?. >+:~~iit; .. 

~ ·_:!g£::5.:. - · -·~· -·~2~tqtt:t i 
Mr. Garcia reported that the Water Resources Teclu;l:i'Ci~m pbsition has beenr@e~ by Mr. Austin 
McCollum who started work at the District on O~tdher 1, 2020. 'flt:'(tj''.4 

. , ;· :;~Jfff,j,,_ z~;~' .. 'i,J.~·JlHG: ' 
CORRESPONDENCE: GENERAL MANAGER RECOMMENDS THEiHTEMS NOT MARKED WITH AN 

ASTERISK (*) FOR FILE: 
The Correspondence list was received by the Board. 

REQUESTS FOR ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED'bN·THE NEXT REGU~hVIEETING AGENDA: 

Trustee Parker requested that the Los·~ bliv6§ <;::gtnmunity Se~l::~$'?District be added to the 
November 17,2020 Meeting Agenda. . ' -':i,ii<-,;;,:t> ,J/' 

.. ::·~,,-q·i~lw~-;j~'1;~;,,r. ,, ·· 
There were no other r~qu._~§~~ from the Board. 

,:;:~:·· · ~::.r.,.~~~~IfJJn::\,_ 

NEXT MEETING OF~.firn Bo~itb'(:>F TRUSTEES: 

President Cla.y:o'st~!~J! the ne'),ft; Regular Meefi:D-g _qf the Board of Trustees is scheduled for 
' ... ,.,.. f.,.-1' ·'c'>"' ,:'·'· 

November 17, 2020 ·a~:?;QO P·IBi;0~ ·'· h1l: •• · · 

. • 
1~]~;tJb~-'-~t~.it¢d1'1~~~~llit~:~,::~::~:~~:;:~ ,At;:, · ···~~,;: -~:.; (y} 

Mr. ~5tf.~~i;i'~~Q"~ced ~~t:.91re Op~eri'Ses$i6ij::JYublic participation video_ and phone line~ would 
besJpsed for· tll~ . .!lE;:2-t thirty ·(t?Q),nunutes to allow the Board to convene mto Closed SessiOn. He 
ex_plained that theXpirblic parfi(:~p~tion video and phone lines would be reopened thirty (30) 

· ~~tes later for the ret:paining kgepda items. Mr. Garcia thanked everyone for participating in 
th~"1~Ut$.ofteleconferenc.~~d stated that Open Session meeting would reconvene at 5:35p.m. to 
repor~~y.:,action taken 4YJing Closed Session. 

'>..~<\-.< ;, ._..; ~.-: ··•• . • ..,_., 

:-•-/~ 
-..:~ ,. ,.·:·~~ ttA> 

CLOSED SESSl0N: iti 
The Board adfq-\i{1:1,edJ9!6osed Session at 5:03 

~.:::r;:_~~-f:?Lnt::~~ 

A. CONFERENCE'~rn LEGAL COUNSEL- EXISTING LmGATION 

[Subdivisi6'h (d)(1) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code -1 case] 

1. Name of Case: Adjudicatory proceedings pending before the State Water Resources 
Control Board regarding Permit 15878 issued on Application 22423 to the City of 
Solvang, Petitions for Change, and Related Protests 

XVII. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 

53 [Sections 54957.1 and 54957.7 of the Government Code] 
54 

r-··- ""'-, .r-~ F 
I / I ! 

' ' .:-J 

October 20, 2020 Minutes .... I II 
, ,' u :! J 

PageS of 6 



1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 

The public participation video and phone lines were re-opened, and the Board reconvened to 
Open Session at approximately 5:35p.m. Ms. Martone conducted roll call and reported that 
four Trustees were present when the meeting reconvened, with Trustee Burchardi absent. 

Mr. Garcia announced that the Board met in Closed Session concerning Agenda Item XVI.A.l . 
He stated that there was no reportable action from Closed Session. 

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT: 

Being no further business, it was MOVED by Trustee Joos, seconded by Trustee Parker, and 
carried by a 4-0-0 roll call vote, with Trustee Burchardi absent, to adjourn the meeting at 

approximately 5:35 p.m. O:,j}t;,>;.':.L. 
... :::~::::--~- '~-L~ ~-1 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,,.:;:~,.;~. ..·---<· \~ 
/ '1!::.::~~~~- -- \) 

., "',.. I ·:;~r··· .,\\ 

.cti~h\\~~~~-0, \~ J~~~Wif~n\ 
Mary Martone,,~~ref~ to the Board{~· ,., (' 

ATTEST: _..") 

,.<.> ,, I 
Jeff Clayr n:es1P,ent 

f\ \ ; \\ 
.................. . . \-' 

r , , I .\ 

~~,.--:. . ,.1 

MINuTES PREPARED BY: 

Karen King, Board Administrative Assis'tant 
-! ... 

r~fl~;;::~ 

'ft~}~;; .;,~, 
.. ,,:;:j~ :i;t..~. 

M ·l'h 

,,~t¥ 

October 20, 2020 Minutes 

" .. 'j'§~±l-' 
.ti~~r 

.;:v· 
!~:" 

,--. r·- ., '\ r·~ • ~ -~ I , ... _, I I I. , _._,_. ·-:-

I J I ; ' / I .l :.::2 I j 
'I ' :. - .I ; ,, I I 
. ... ;..; . ./ w 1.1 w 

.. ~ ... -

Page6of6 



Agenda Item VIII. 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
SANTA YNEZRIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 
November 17, 2020 

Consent Agenda Report 

CA-l. Water Supplv and Production Report. Total water production in October (392 AF) was lower than 
water production in September (466 AF), and overall was below the I 0-year running average for the month 
of October ( 449 AF). As previously reported, the District has been experiencing below average demands 
for domestic, rural residential, and agricultural water supplies due to water conservation, changing water 
use patterns, private well installations, and weather conditions. 

For the month of October, approximately 134.85 AF was produced from the Santa Ynez Upland wells, and 
approximately 187.25 AF was produced from the 6.0 cfs and 4.0 cfs river well fields. As reflected in the 
Monthly Water Deliveries Report from the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA), the District also 
received approximately 70 AF of SWP supplies for the month, all of which we attributed to Exchange 
deliveries. Direct diversions to USBR and the County Park were 1.78 AF. 

The USBR Daily Operations Report for Lake Cachuma in October (ending October 31, 2020) recorded the 
lake elevation at 729.75' with the end of month storage of 130,218 AF. USBR recorded total precipitation 
at the lake ofO.O inches. For the month, reservoir storage was supplemented with 73.6AF ofSWP deliveries 
for the South Coast agencies. Reservoir evaporation in October was 924.0 AF. 

Based on the maximum storage of 193,305 AF, Cachuma reservoir is currently (as of November 9, 2020) 
at approximately 66.7% of capacity (Santa Barbara County Flood Control District, Rainfall and Reservoir 
Summary). At a point when reservoir storage exceeds 100,000 AF, the Cachuma Member Units typically 
have received a full allocation, which is the case for this federal WY 2019-20. Conversely, a 20% pro-rata 
reduction from the full allocation is scheduled to occur in Water Years beginning at less than 100,000 AF, 
where incremental reductions may occur at other lower storage levels. For the federal WY 2020-2021 
(October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021), the Cachuma Member Units requested a 100% allocation 
of the Project's annual operational yield of25,714 AF. The request was submitted to USBR through the 
County Water Agency on June 29, 2020. By letter dated October 19, 2020, USBR issued a I 00% 
allocation decision. ID No.I 's share is I 0.31% or 2,651 AF. In addition to its 2020-21 allocation, lD No.I 
retains approximately 450 AF of previous year carryover water in the reservoir, subject to evaporation. 

Water releases for the protection offish and aquatic habitat are made from Cachuma reservoir to the lower 
Santa Ynez River pursuant to the 2000 Biological Opinion issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service 
(NMFS) and the 2019 Water Rights Order (WR 2019-0148) issued by the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB). These releases are made to Hilton Creek and to the stilling basin from the outlet works 
at the base of Bradbury Dam. The water releases required under the NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion to 
avoid jeopardy to steel head and adverse impacts to its critical habitat are summarized as follows: 

Consent Agenda Report: November 17. 2020 



NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion 

• When Reservoir Spills and the Spill Amount Exceeds 20,000 AF: 
o I 0 ~fs at Hwy I 54 Bridge during spill year(s) exceeding 20,000 AF 
o I.5 cfs at Alisal Bridge when spill amount exceeds 20,000 AF and if steel head are present 

at Alisal Reach 
o I.5 cfs at Alisal Bridge in the year immediately following a spill that exceeded 20,000 AF 

and if steel head are present at Alisal Reach 

• When Reservoir Does Not Spill or When Reservoir Spills Less Than 20,000 AF: 
o 5 cfs at Hwy I 54 when Reservoir does not spill and Resen•oir storage is above I20,000 AF, 

or when Reservoir spill is less than 20,000 AF 
o 2.5 cfs at Hwy I 54 in all years when Reservoir storage is below I20, 000 AF but greater 

than 30,000 AF 
o I.5 cfs at Alisal Bridge if the Rese1~'oir spilled in the preceding year and the spill amount 

exceeded 20,000 AF and if steelhead are present at Alisal Reach 
o 30 AF per month to "refi·esh the stilling basin and long pool" when Reservoir storage is 

less than 30,000 AF 

The water releases required under the SWRCB 2019 Water Rights Order for the protection offish and other public 
trust resources in the lower Santa Y nez River and to prevent the waste and unreasonable use of water are summarized 
as follows: 

SWRCB Order WR 20I9-0148 

• During Below Normal, DIJI, and Critical DIJI water years (October I - September 30), releases 
shall be made in accordance with the requirements of the NMFS 2000 Biological Opinion as set 
forth above. 

• During Above Normal and Wet water years, the following minimum flow requirements must be 
maintained at Hwy I 54 and Alisal Bridges: 

o 48 cfs ji-om February I5 to Apri/I4 for spawning 
o 20 cfs fi·om February I5 to June I for incubation and rearing 
o 25 cfs fi·om June 2 to June 9 for emigration, with ramping to I 0 ~f.' by June 30 
o I 0 cfs fi·om June 30 to October I for rearing and maintenance of resident fish 
o 5 ~fsfi·om October I to February I5 for resident fish 

• For purposes of SWRCB Order WR 20I9-0I48, water year classifications are determined as 
follows: 

o Wet is when Cachuma Resen•oir i11f7ow is greater thanii7,842 AF; 
o Above Normal is when Resen•oir illflow is less than or equal to II7,842 AF or greater than 

33,707 AF; 
o Below Normal is when Rese1~•oir inflow is less than or equal to 33,707 AF or greater than 

I5,366 AF; 
o DIJ' is when Resen•oir illflow is less than or equal to I5,366 AF or greater than 4,550 AF 
o Critical D1:v is when Resen•oir inflow is less than or equal to 4,550 AF 

For the month of October, water releases for fish were 336.7 AF to Hilton Creek and approximately 
305 AF to the outlet works fora total of641.7 AF. As ofthe end of October 2020, a total of approximately 
38,848 AF ofCachuma Project water has been released under regulatory requirements for the protection of 
fish and fish habitat below Bradbury Dam since the year after the last spill in 20 II. 

Consent Agenda Report: November 17, 2020 2 



CA-2. State Water Project (SWP) and Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA) Updates. 

The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) has issued a 20% SWP Table A allocation for 
the year. This allocation translates to 140 AF for 1D No.I 's pro-rated share of Table A supplies through 
CCWA. 

As reflected in the October 2020 Agenda for the CCW A Board of Directors, and as otherwise shown in 
documents contained in this Consent Report, CCW A continues to remain strongly engaged in a variety of 
matters related to the SWP and SWP supplies, including but not limited to: the Delta Conveyance Project 
proposal and proposed water management amendments to the SWP Contract; proposed reacquisition of 
Suspended Table A supplies; proposed SWP Contract assignment from the County of Santa Barbara to 
CCWA; water quality; and scheduled winter shutdown of the SWP Coastal Branch. 

Consent Agenda Report: November 17. 2020 3 



UNrTED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
U.S. BUREAU OF RECLAMA TION-CACHUMA PROJECT-CALIFORNL'\ 

OCTOBER 2020 LAKE CACHUMA DAILY OPERATIONS RUN DATE; Noverrber 1, 2020 

DAY 8-EV STORAGE COMPUTED' CCWA PRECIPON RELEASE- AF. EVAP PRECIP 
ACRE-FEET INFLOW INFLOW RES. SURF. HILTON AF. INCH INCHES 

IN LAKE CHANGE AF. AF. AF. TUNNS- CREEK OUTLET SPILLWAY 
732.01 135,570 

1 731.94 135,402 -168 43.2 0.0 .0 60.7 11.1 99.0 .0 40.4 .270 .00 
2 731.85 135,186 -216 -0.6 0.0 .0 67.9 11.1 99.0 .0 37.4 .250 .00 
3 731.78 135,017 -169 52.0 8.6 .0 68.8 11.0 99.0 .0 50.8 .340 .00 
4 731.69 134,801 -216 -8.0 12.3 .0 67.5 11.0 100.0 .0 41.8 .280 .00 
5 731.62 134,633 -168 21.0 12.3 .0 67.0 11.0 92.0 .0 31.3 .210 .00 

6 731.55 134,467 -166 27.0 1.1 .0 68.9 11.0 74.0 .0 40.2 .270 .00 
7 731.46 134,253 -214 -36.1 0.0 .0 67.2 10.9 70.0 .0 29.8 .200 .00 
8 731.40 134,111 -142 30.0 9.5 .0 68.7 11.0 72.0 .0 29.8 .200 .00 
9 731.33 133,945 -166 -6.4 12.6 .0 68.4 11.0 69.0 .0 23.8 .160 .00 
10 731.28 133,826 -119 25.1 12.6 .0 52.0 10.9 70.0 .0 23.8 .160 .00 

11 731.20 133,636 -190 -30.2 4.6 .0 50.8 10.9 70.0 .0 32.7 .220 .00 
12 731.14 133,493 -143 11.5 0.0 .0 43.9 10.9 70.0 .0 29.7 .200 .00 
13 731.08 133,327 -166 0.5 0.0 .0 50.0 10.9 70.0 .0 35.6 .240 .00 
14 731.01 133,185 -142 19.7 0.0 .0 54.1 10.9 70.0 .0 26.7 .180 .00 
15 730.95 133,042 -143 33.0 0.0 .0 51.8 10.8 69.0 .0 44.4 .300 .00 

16 730.90 132,923 -119 59.3 0.0 .0 53.5 10.9 71.0 .0 42.9 .290 .00 
17 730.81 132,710 -213 -21.1 0.0 .0 52.7 10.8 87.0 .0 41.4 .280 .00 
18 730.73 132,520 -190 -0.8 0.0 .0 54.4 10.8 90.0 .0 34.0 .230 .00 
19 730.65 132,330 -190 -7.5 0.0 .0 52.2 10.8 90.0 .0 29.5 .200 .00 
20 730.58 132,165 -165 21.5 0.0 .0 61.1 10.8 91.0 .0 23.6 .160 .00 

21 730.50 131,977 -188 -7.4 0.0 .0 60.2 10.8 89.0 .0 20.6 .140 .00 
22 730.43 131,813 -164 18.3 0.0 .0 59.4 10.8 90.0 .0 22.1 .150 .00 
23 730.35 131,625 -188 2.1 0.0 .0 62.7 10.8 99.0 .0 17.6 .120 .00 
24 730.27 131,437 -188 -6.0 0.0 .0 51.6 10.8 102.0 .0 17.6 .120 .00 
25 730.20 131,273 -164 17.3 0.0 .0 51.9 10.8 101.0 .0 17.6 .120 .DO 

26 730.10 131,039 -234 -54.9 0.0 .0 50.8 10.7 100.0 .0 17.6 .120 .00 
27 730.03 130,875 -164 24.2 0.0 .0 51.6 10.7 101.0 .0 24.9 .170 .00 
28 729.97 130,734 -141 34.8 0.0 .0 51.7 10.7 90.0 .0 23.4 .160 .00 
29 729.89 130,546 -188 -23.1 0.0 .0 51.8 10.7 79.0 .0 23.4 .160 .00 
30 729.82 130,382 -164 -7.1 0.0 .0 51.4 10.7 70.0 .0 24.8 .170 .00 

31 729.75 130,218 -164 -6.8 0.0 .0 51.7 10.7 70.0 .0 24.8 .170 .00 

TOTAL (AF) -5,352 224.5 73.6 .0 1,776.4 336.7 2,613.0 .0 924.0 6.240 .00 
(AVG) 132,803 

COMMENTS: 
*COMPUTED INFLOW IS THE SUM OF CHANGE IN STORAGE, RELEASES, AND E\1 APORA TION MINUS PRECIP ON THE RESERVOIR SURFACE AND CCWA 
INFLOW 
DATA BASED ON 24-HOUR PERIOD ENDING 0800. 
INDICA TED CUTLErS RELEASE INCLUDE ANY LEAKAGE AROUND GATES. 



Santa Barbara County - Flood Control District 
130 East Victoria Street, Santa Barbara CA 9310 l • 805.568.3440 - W\VW.countyofSb.org/pwd 

Rainfall and Reservoir Summary 

Updated Sam: 11/9/2020 Water Year: 2021 Stm·m Number: 1 

Notes: Daily rainfall amounts are recorded as of8am for the previous 24 hours. Rainfall units are expressed in inches. 
All data on this page are from automated sensors, are preliminary, and subject to verification. 
*Each Water Year (WY) runs from Sept I through Aug 31 and is designated by the calendar year in which it ends 
County Real-Time RainfJil and Reservoir Website link:> http://www.countyofsb.org/hydrology 

Rainfall ID 24 hrs Storm Mouth Year* %to Date %of Year* 

Buellton (Fire Stn) 233 0.00 0.16 0.16 0.16 14% 1% 

Cachuma Dam (USBR) 332 0.00 0.29 0.29 0.29 24% 1% 

Carpinteria (Fire Stn) 208 0.00 0.23 0.23 0.24 19% 1% 

Cuyama (Fire Stn) 436 0.03 0.25 0.25 0.25 33% 3% 

Figueroa Mtn (USFS Stn) 421 0.00 0.81 0.81 0.82 48% 4% 

Gibraltar Dam (City Facility) 230 0.03 0.19 0.19 0.19 14% 1% 

Goleta (Fire Stn-Los Cameros) 440 0.00 0.03 0.03 0.04 3% 0% 

Lompoc (City Hall) 439 O.D7 0.30 0.30 0.31 31% 2% 

Los Alamos (Fire Stn) 204 0.04 0.53 0.53 0.56 57% 4% 

San Marcos Pass (USFS Stn) 212 0.00 0.21 0.21 0.22 10% 1% 

Santa Barbara (County Bldg) 234 0.00 0.04 0.05 0.10 8% 1% 

Santa Maria (City Pub. Works) 380 0.00 0.36 0.36 0.39 38% 3% 

Santa Ynez (Fire Stn /Airport) 218 0.01 0.20 0.21 0.22 21% 1% 

Sisquoc (Fire Stn) 256 0.00 0.34 0.34 0.34 31% 2% 

County-wide percentage of "Normal-to-Date" rainfall : 25% 
---------------------------------

County-wide percentage of "Normal Water-Year" rainfall : 

County-wide percentage of"Nonnal Water-Year11 rainfall calculated 
assuming no more rain through Aug. 31, 2021 (End of WY2021 ). 

Reservoir Elevations referenced to NGVD-29. 

2% 
AI !Anteredent Index I Soil Wetnes,~) 

6.0 and below =Wet (min.= 2.5) 
6.1 - 9.0 = Moderute 
9.1 and above =Dry (mnx.= 12.5) 

Reservoirs **Cachuma is full and subject to spilling m elevation 750 ft. 
However, the lake is surcharged to 753 ft. for fish release water. 
(Cachuma water stornge is based on Dec 2013 capacity revision) 

Spillway Cun·ent Max. Current Current Storage Storage 
Elev. E1ev. Storage Storage Capacity Change Change 

Click on Site for 
Real-Time Readings (ft) (ft) (ac-ft) (ac-ft) (%) Mo.(ac-ft) Year*(ac-ft) 

Gibraltar Reservoir I ,400.00 1,379.32 4,559 1,030 22.6% -124 -I' 180 

Cach uma Reser-voir 753.** 729.23 193,305 129,010 66.7% -1,137 -14,765 

Jameson Reservoir 2,224.00 2,215.82 4,848 3,877 80.0% -45 -411 

Twitchell Reservoir 651.50 540.65 194,971 2,972 1.5% -100 -848 

PrevlmJs Rainfall and Res.er:volcSummaries 

AI 

11.1 

11.4 

11.3 



California Irrigation Management Information System (CIMIS) 

CIMIS Daily Report 
Rendered in ENGLISH Units. 
Thursday, October 1, 2020 - Sunday, November 1, 2020 
Printed on Monday, November 2, 2020 

Santa Ynez - Central Coast Valleys - Station 64 
Date 

1011/2020 

10/2/2020 

10/3/2020 

1014/2020 

10/5/2020 

10/6/2020 

10f7/2020 

10/B/2020 

10/9/2020 

10110/2020 

10/11/2020 

10/12/2020 

10!13/2020 

10/14/2020 

10/15/2020 

10!16/2020 

10/17/2020 

10/18/2020 

10/19/2020 

10/20/2020 

10/21/2020 

10f22/2020 

10/23/2020 

10/24/2020 

10!25/2020 

10/26/2020 

10/27/2020 

10!28/2020 

10/29/2020 

10/30/2020 

10/31/2020 

Tots/Avgs 

ETo 
(In) 

0.18 

0.20 

0.18 

0.18 R 

0.16 

0.15 

0.13 

0.11 

0.12 

0.12 

0.15 

0.17 

0.16 

0.16 

0.16 

0.16 

0.16 

0.15 

0.13 

0.11 

0.11 

0.08 

0.09 

0.03 

0.05 R 

0.11 

0.12 

0.13 

0.12 

0.12 

0.12 

4.12 

Preclp 
{In) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.01 

0.01 

Sol Rad 
(Ly/day) 

449 

449 

447 

454 

414 

398 

415 

362 

386 

392 

434 

438 

444 

444 

439 

407 

408 

428 

411 

375 

365 

299 

311 

134 

198 

370 

m 
392 

385 

381 

382 

387 

Avg Vap 
Prns 

(mBars) 

11.1 

10.5 

10.9 

11.4 

11.5 

13.1 

13.3 

14.4 

14.3 

15.2 

15.1 

10.7 

10.3 

10.0 

10.1 

9.7 

9.8 

11.9 

14.2 

14.9 

15.6 

15.4 

14.6 

14.6 

13,9 

10.6 

6.8 

5.8 

7.6 

10.5 

8.8 

11.8 

Max Air 
Tomp 

("F) 

105.8 y 

106.2 y 

103.0 y 

100.4 

98.0 

90.2 

84.3 

75.4 

77.7 

80.5 

89.1 

100.9 y 

98.4 

104.1 y 

102.1 y 

103.3 y 

96.3 

92.7 

80.9 

81.3 

80.0 

74.3 

75.2 

69.7 

69.4 

76.7 

60.2 

87.2 

89.0 

85.2 

93.4 

88.7 

Min Air 
Temp 
("F) 

49.4 

49.0 

47.9 

48.3 

49.9 

50.9 

46.4 

53.3 

53.3 

54.3 

52.7 

46.0 

45.5 

42.5 

46.1 

48.5 

46.1 

44.7 

50.4 

52.0 

51.8 

54.1 

50.8 

592 y 

56.9 y 

42.1 

35.1 

33.1 

33.9 

35.8 

37.7 

47.3 

AvgAir 
Tomp 

("F) 

73.4 y 

73.9 y 

71.1 y 

70.1 

69.0 

66.7 

60.3 

60.2 

62.4 

54.0 

68.2 y 

68.7 y 

67.0 

68.5 y 

70.0 y 

69.9 y 

67.2 

64.7 

62.7 

60.8 

61.8 

62.0 

62.4 

632 

61.4 

57.1 

54.0 

54.7 

56.5 

56.8 

60.9 

64.2 

Santa Ynez - Central Coast Valleys - Station 64 
Date 

1111/2020 

Tots/Avgs 

I 

ETo 
(in) 

0.13 

0.13 

Preclp 
(In) 

0.00 

0.00 

I A - Historical Average 

I C or N - Not Collected 

Sol Rad 
(Ly/day) 

401 R 

401 

II 
II 

l1 

H -Hourly Missing or Flagged II 
Data 

II L)'ida~/2.065=W/sg.m II 
I meh • 0.447 m/s II 

AvgVap 
Prns 

(mBars) 

7.8 

7.8 

Max Air 
Temp 
("F) 

94.2 

94.2 

Min A1r 
Temp 
("F) 

41.7 

41.7 

Flag Legend 
I- Ignore 

M - Missing Data 

AvgAir 
Temp 

("F) 

65.4 

65.4 

II 
II 

Q - Related Sensor Missing II 
Conversion Factors 

inches • 25.4 - mm II 
mBars • 0.1 - kPa II 

Max Rei 
Hum 
(%) 

92 

88 

88 

86 

85 

98 

100 

99 

92 

99 

87 

94 

88 

93 

88 

84 

85 

99 

100 

100 

100 

99 

95 

87 

88 

98 

98 

92 

89 

100 

100 

93 

Max Rei 
Hum 
(%) 

85 

85 

Min Rei 
Hum 
(%) 

11 

12 

14 

12 

13 

30 

36 

53 

50 

45 

33 

12 

13 

11 

9 

9 

15 

19 

39 

46 

50 

59 

55 

58 

55 

34 

11 

8 

14 

23 

10 

28 

Min Rei 
Hum 
(%) 

10 

10 

Avg Rei 
Hum 
(%) 

39 y 

37 y 

42 y 

45 

48 

58 

75 

81 

75 

75 

64Y 

45 y 

46 

42 y 

40 y 

39 y 

43 

57 

73 

82 

83 

81 

76 

74 

75 

67 

48 

40 

49 

66 

48 

58 

Avg Rei 
Hum 
(%) 

37 

37 

Dew Point Avg Wind Wind Run 
("F) Speed (miles) 

(mph) 

47.2 y 2.3 54.2 

45.8 y 2.7 63.6 

46.8 y 2.2 52.9 

48.1 2.3 54.4 

48.3 2.2 53.1 

51.7 2.8 67.1 

52.2 2.8 66.3 

54.2 3.0 72.2 

54.2 3.1 73.3 

55.9 3.1 75.0 

55.6 y 2.9 69.2 

46.2 y 2.4 56.5 

45.4 2.5 59.6 

44.6 y 2.2 53.5 

44.7 y 2.0 48.2 

43.8 y 2.3 56.1 

44.0 2.4 58.7 

49.2 2.9 69.3 

54.0 3.1 75.3 

55.3 2.6 63.3 

56.5 2.7 63.6 

56.2 2.9 69.2 

54.6 2.7 64.6 

54,8 2.4 57.3 

53,3 2.9 70.8 

46.0 2. 7 63.9 

34.6 2.1 51.6 

30.9 2.4 57.9 

37.5 2.2 51.8 

45.7 2.3 54.4 

41.3 2.1 49.4 

48.3 2.6 61.2 

Dew Point Avg Wind Wind Run 
("F) Speed (miles) 

(mph) 

38.2 2.2 52.8 

38.2 2.2 52.8 

I 
R- Far out of nonnal range I 

S - Not in service I 
Y - Moderately out of range I 

I 
(F-32) * 5/9 - c I 

miles • 1.60934 - km I 

Avg Soli 
Temp 
("F) 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 
-S 
-S 
-S 
-S 
-S 

-S 
-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 

-S 
-S 

-S 

-S 

Avg Soli 
Temp 

("F) 

-S 



United States Department of the Interior 
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION 

1\ REPLY REFER TO: 

SCC-440 
2.2.4.23 

South-Central California Area Office 
1243 N Street 

Fresno, CA 93721-1813 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND U.S. MAIL 

Mr. Thomas D. Fayram 
Deputy Public Works Director 
Santa Barbara County Water Agency 
130 East Victoria Street, Suite 200 
Santa Barbara, CA 931 0 I 
tfayram@cosbpw .net 

Subject: Cachuma Project Allocation for the 2021 Water Year (October I, 2020 through September 30, 
2021)- Contract No. 175r-1802R (Contract)- Your Letter Dated June 29, 2020- California 

Dear Mr Fayram: 

Reclamation received the letter from Santa Barbara County Water Agency (Water Agency) titled "Cachuma 
Project Water Year (WJ? 2021 Allocation Request," dated June 29,2020 (enclosed), requesting an allocation 
of25,714 acre-feet in WY 2021. 

Pursuant to Article 3(b) of the Contract, this letter serves as notice of the WY 2021 allocation for the Cachuma 
Project. Based on current reservoir levels and forecast data, the Project Water being made available to the 
Member Units out of the Available Supply in Cachuma Reservoir is 100% of the contract total, which equals 
25,714 acre-feet. 

As has been shared with the Water Agency and Member Units in recent meetings and phone calls, Reclamation 
is concerned with the record high levels of water being carried over for delivery in subsequent water years. 
The practice of accumulating carryover from multiple annual allocations has been allowed by Reclamation for 
special circumstances such as the recent drought and the dam safety construction in 2004-2005. However, the 
carryover from multiple annual allocations is not a benefit that is provided for in the Contract. Carryover is an 
issue that Reclamation intends to address sooner rather than later and prior to the end of the current water year. 

If you have questions, please contact Erma Leal, Repayment Specialist, at (559) 262-0350, via electronic 
mail at eleal@usbr.gov or for the hearing impaired at TDD (800) 877-8339. 

Enclosure 
cc' s continued next page. 

Sincerely, 

M · h J p 1 mgit•lly ;lgned by 
IC ae au Michael PauiJock;on, P.E. 

Jackson, p .E. ~~~~~~a,a.la.,g ,6,46'37 

Michael P. Jackson, P.E. 
Area Manager 

INTERIOR REGION 10 • CALIFORNIA-GREAT BASIN 
CALIFORNlA', NEVADA', OREGON' 

" PARTIAL 



Subject: Cachwna Project Allocation for the 2021 Water Year (October 1, 2020 through September 30, 
2021)- Contract No. 175r-1802R (Contract)- Your Letter Dated June 29, 2020- Cal(fomia 

cc' s continued from previous page. 

cc: Ms. Janet Gingras 
Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board 
3301 Laurel Canyon Road 
Santa Barbara, CA 93105 

jgingras@cachuma-board.org 

Mr. Robert McDonald 
Carpinteria Valley Water District 
130 I Santa Y nez Avenue 
Carpinteria, CA 93013 
bob@cvwd.net 

Mr. John Mcinnes 
Goleta Water District 
4699 Hollister Avenue 
Goleta, CA 931 10 
jmcinnes@goletawater.com 

(all w/enclosure) 

Mr. Nicholas Turner 
Montecito Water District 
583 Ysidro Road 
Montecito, CA 93150 
nturner@montecitowater.com 

Mr. Joshua Haggmark 
City of Santa Barbara 
630 Garden Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 931 02 
JHaggmark@SantaBarbaraCA.gov 

Mr. Paeter Garcia 
Santa Ynez River Water Conversation 
District, Improvement District No. I 

P.O. Box 157 
Santa Ynez, CA 93460 
pgarcia@syrwd.org 



Paeter Garcia 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Hello Tom & Cachuma Folies, 

JACKSON, MICHAEL P. <MJackson@usbr.gov> 
Monday, October 19, 2020 5:17 PM 
John Mcinnes; Paeter Garcia; Nicholas Turner (nturner@montecitowater.com); Janet 
Gingras; 'bob@cvwd.net'; Josh Haggmark; tfayram@cosbpw.net; myoung@cosbpw.net 
Hyatt, David E; Stroup, Duane; Emerson, Rain L; Leal, Erma 0; Cavanaugh, Daniel J; 
Aufdemberge, AmyL; ESCOBAR, PAMELA F 
Re: WY 2021 Cachuma Allocation Request: USBR-Reply 
Cachuma_AIIocation_2021_SIGN ED_1 0-19-2020.pdf 

Please find attached the allocation for the Cachuma Project WY 2021. l have replaced the e-mail address 
of Fray Crease with Matt Young's since Fray has moved on. 

Thanks, 

Michael Paul Jackson, P.E. 
1243 N Street, Fresno California 9372 

*559-262-osoo(O.ffice) I 559-260-8714 (Mobile) 

-··~----

From: Crease, Fray <fcrease@cosbpw.net> 
Sent: Monday, June 29, 2020 8:48AM 
To: JACKSON, MICHAEL P. <MJackson@usbr.gov> 
Cc: Fayram, Tom <Tfayram@cosbpw.net>; Paeter Garcia <pgarcia@syrwd.org>; John Mcinnes 
<JMclnnes@goletawater.com>; Josh Haggmark <JHaggmark@SantaBarbaraCA.gov>; Nicholas Turner 
(nturner@montecitowater.com) <nturner@montecitowater.com>; 'bob@cvwd.net' <bob@cvwd.net>; Janet Gingras 
<jgingras@cachuma-board.org> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] WY 2021 Cachuma Allocation Request 

Michael, 

Attached please find a copy of the Cachuma Project Water Year 2021 Allocation Request which will go in the mail to you 
today via overnight Fed Ex. 

Sincerely, 

1 



~.~~~0.· . .48.·')'·.~· .EJ ----;~, • ro 
";: \.o,f 
~(}:r "(),~' 
~ 

CENTRAl COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Ray Stokes, Executive Director 
Lisa Long, Controller 

November 10, 2020 

FROM: Julie Baker~ 
SUBJECT: Monthly Water Deliveries 

As described during the October 2020 Operating Committee Meeting, a Biofilm Remediation Project was 
implemented to abate pipeline nitrification issues. As part of this project, it was necessary to discharge 
water from the pipeline to facilitate the project. A total of 18 acre-feet (AF} was discharged to waste and is 
being allocated to the Participants on the Pipeline in proportion to their Table A amount as follows: 

Project Participant Table A Amount (acre-feet) 
Chorro ........................................................................ 2,338 
lopez ........................................................................ 2,392 
Shandon ........................................................................ 1 00 
Guadalupe ..................................................................... 550 
Santa Maria .............................................................. 16,200 

Golden State Water Co ................................................. 500 
Vandenberg ............................................................... 5,500 
Buellton ........................................................................ 578 
Solvang ....................................................................... 1,500 

Santa Ynez ID#1 ........................................................... 500 
TOTAL 30,158 

Allocated Discharge 
2 

2 
0 

0 
10 
0 

3 
0 

1 

!! 
18 

According to the CCWA revenue meters at each turnout, the following deliveries during the month of 
October, 2020 are presented in the table below. The allocated discharge is included in the total as shown: 

ProJect Participant Delivery Amount (acre-feet) Allocated I!lli!! 
Discharge 

Chorro .............................................................. 146.48 2 148.48 
lopez ................................................................ 58.81 2 60.81 
Shandon ............................................................... 0.00 0 0.00 
Guadalupe ............................................................ 0.89 0 0.89 
Santa Marla ...................................................... 580.36 10 590.36 
Golden State Water Co ........................................ O.OO 0 0.00 
Vandenberg ..................................................... 153.29 3 156.29 
Buellton ............................................................. 11.66 0 11.66 
Solvang ............................................................... 29.97 1 30.97 
Santa Ynez ID#1 ................................................ 68.41 0 68.41 
Bradbury ............................................................ ll:Z§ NA 73.75 
TOTAl 1,123.62 18 1,141.62 

#47920_1 



In order to reconcile these deliveries with the DWR revenue meter, which read 1172 acre-feet, the following 
delivery amounts should be used for billing purposes: 

Project ParticiPant Delivery Amount (acre-feet) 
Chorro .............................................................. 153 

Lopez ................................................................. 62 

Shand on ............................................................... 0 
G u ad al upe ............................................................ 1 

Santa Maria ...................................................... 594* 

Golden State Water Co ..................................... 13* 

Vandenberg ..................................................... 161 
Buellton ............................................................. 12 

Solvang ............................................................... 32 

Santa Ynez ID#1 ................................................ 70 
Bradbury •...•.•••...•.........................................•...•. 7 4 

TOTAL ............................................................. 1172 

Notes: Golden State Water Company delivered 13 acre-feet into its system through the Santa Maria 
turnout. This delivery is recorded by providing a credit of 13 acre-feet to the City of Santa Maria 
and a charge in the same amount, to the Golden State Water Company. 

Santa Ynez 10#1 water usage is divided into 0 acre-feet of Table A water and 70 acre-feet of 
exchange water. The exchange water Is allocated as follows: 

Project Participant 
Goleta 
Santa Barbara 
Montecito 
Carpinteria 
TOTAL 

Exchange Amount (acre-feet) 
25 
17 
17 
11 
70 

Bradbury Deliveries into Lake Cachuma are allocated as follows: 

Project Participant 
Carpinteria 

Delivery Amount (acre-feet) 
0 

Goleta 
La Cumbre 
Montecito 
Morehart 
Santa Barbara 
Raytheon 
TOTAL 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF 
DELIVERY RE~~hS AND ASSOCIATED 

CALCU~'WL) 

John Brady'-· J 
Deputy Director, Operations and Engineering 
Central Coast Water Authority 

0 
69 

0 
3 
0 
~ 

74 

#47920_1 



cc: Tom Bunosky, GWD 
James Luongo, Golden State WC 
Rebecca Bjork, City of Santa Barbara 
Daryl Smith, MWD 
Janet Gingras, COMB 
Craig Kesler, San Luis Obispo County 
Paeter Garcia, Santa Ynez RWCD ID#1 
Shad Springer, City of Santa Maria 
Shannon Sweeney, City of Guadalupe 
Robert MacDonald, Carpinteria Valley WD 
Mike Peiia, City of Guadalupe 
Mike Alvarado, La Cumbre Mutual WC 
Alex Keuper, CVWD 
Pernell Rush, Vandenberg AFB 
Nick Turner, Montecito WD 
Laura Menahen, Montecito WD 
Matt van der Linden, City of Solvang 

#47920_1 



Eric Friedman 
01airman 

Ed Andrisek 
Vice Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brmvn.o:;tein Hyatt 
Farber Schreck 
General Counsel 

Member Agencies 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa tvlaria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement Dio:;trict #1 

Associate tv!emlll'r 

La Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

A Meeting of the 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

V L\0: v-

will be held at 9:00a.m., on Thursday, October 22, 2020 
via URL: https://meetinqs.ringcentral.com/j/14951 08982 

or via telephone by dialing 1(623) 404-9000 and entering code 149 510 8982# 

CCWA's Board meetings are conducted pursuant to California Government Code Section 54953 and 
Governor Newsom's Executive Orders (N-25-20, N-29-20 and N-35-20), temporarily suspending portions 
of the Brown Act in response to the COVID-1 g pandemic. Members of the Board will participate in this 
meeting by video call or telephone. 

Public Comment on agenda items may occur via video call or telephonically,_ or by submission to the 
Board Secretary via email at lfw@ccwa.com no later than 8:00a.m. on the day of the meeting. In your 
email, please specify (1) the meeting date and agenda item (number and title) on which you are 
providing a comment and (2) that you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting. 
If you would like your comment read into the record during the meeting (as either general public 
comment or on a specific agenda item), please limit your comments to no more than 250 words. 

Every effort will be made to read comments into the record, but some comments may not be read due 
to time limitations. Please also note that if you submit a written comment and do not specify that you 
would like this comment read into the record during the meeting, your comment will be forwarded to 
Board members for their consideration. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available on the CCWA internet web site, accessible at https://www.ccwa.com. 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 

II. Public Comment- (Any member of the public may address the Board 
relating to any matter within the Board's jurisdiction. Individual Speakers 
may be limited to five minutes; ali speakers to a total of fifteen minutes.) 

Ill. Consent Calendar 

IV. 

* A. Approve Minutes of the September 24, 2020 Regular Meeting 
* B. Approve Bills * C. Controller's Report * D. Operations Report 

Executive Director's Report * A. Consider Resolution No. 20-01 (1) Approving Amendment No. 21 (Water 
Management Amendment) to the Water Supply Contract Between The 
State Of California Department Of Water Resources And Santa Barbara 
County Flood Control And Water Conservation District; and (2) Making 
Responsible Agency Findings Pursuant To CEQA For The Final 
Environmental Impact Report For Amendment No. 21, And Adopting 
CEQA Findings And Statement Of Overriding Considerations 

{~t···r 
'v!d j 1 9 ?.n~~n 

B. Consider Resolution No. 20-02 Approving Amendment 6 to the Agreerneni 
for the Supply and Conveyance of Water By the Department of Water 
Resources of the State of California to the Participating State Water Project 
Contract Under the Dry Year Water Purchase Program SWPAO NO. 20-826 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427 
(805)688-2292 
Fax (805)686-4700 
www.ccwa.com 

* Indicates attachment of document to original agenda packet. 
• Indicates enclosure of document with agenda packet. 

(Continued)/ 

' ,1 j 
'V \ ; .. t·\ \ i 

:\ M .' "~--t., 
~,?81 ~~ {_,\locx 

1 



IV. Executive Director's Report (Continued) 
C. Water Supply Situation Report * D. Suspended Table A Reacquisition Update 
E. 2020 DWR Scheduled Coastal Branch Shutdown 
F. FY 2019/20 Year End Budget Status Report 

<I> G. Finance Committee 
1. FY 2020/21 First Quarter Investment Report 
2. Request for Revision to CCWA Budget Transfer Policy 

V. Reports from Board Members for Information Only 

Vi. Items for Next Regular Meeting Agenda 

VII. Date of Next Regular Meeting: January 28, 2021 

VIII. Adjournment 

#47816_1.doc" 



Eric Friedman 
Chairman 

Ed Andrisek 
Vice Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Farber Schreck 

General Counsel 

Member Agmcies 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montedto Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District #1 

Associate Member 

La Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

4 q 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427 
(805) 688-2292 
Fax (805) 686-4700 
www.ccwa.com 

MEETiNG NOTICE 

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
of the 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

will be held at 8:30 a.m., on Thursday, October 22, 2020 
via URL: https://meetings.ringcentraLcom/j/1483975876 

or via telephone by dialing 1(623) 404-9000 and entering code 148 397 5876# 

CCWA's Committee meetings are conducted pursuant to California Government Code Section 
54953 and Governor Newsom's Executive Orders (N-25-20, N-29-20 and N-35-20), 
temporarily suspending portions of the Brown Act in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Members of the Committee will participate in this meeting by video call or telephone. 

Public Comment on agenda items may occur via video call or telephonically, or by submission 
to the Board Secretary via email at lfw@ccwa.com no later than 8:00a.m. on the day of the 
meeting. In your email, please specify (1) the meeting date and agenda item (number and title) 
on which you are providing a comment and (2) that you would like your comment read into the 
record during the meeting. If you would like your comment read into the record during the 
meeting (as either general public comment or on a specific agenda item), please limit your 
comments to no more than 250 words. 

Every effort will be made to read comments into the record, but some comments may not be 
read due to time limitations. Please also note that if you submit a written comment and do not 
specify that you would like this comment read into the record during the meeting, your 
comment will be forwarded to Board members for their consideration. 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available on the CCWA internet web site, accessible at 
https://www.ccwa.com. 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE MEETING OF THE 
COMMITTEE AND A VOTE MAY BE TAKEN FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
RECOMMENDING ACTION BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

L 

II. 

Call to Order and Roll Call 

Public Comment- (Any member of the public may address the 
Committee relating to any matter within the Committee's 
jurisdiction. Individual Speakers may be limited to five minutes; 
all speakers to a total of fifteen minutes.} 

Ill. * Minutes ofthe July 31, 2020 Meeting ofthe Finance Committee 

""tl'"'f' b!LJ Continued , 
/ 

* Indicates attachment of document to agenda packet. .,.~ 

/ 



IV. * FY 2020/21 First Quarter Investment Report 

V. * Request for Revision to CCWA Budget Transfer Policy 

VI. Reports from Committee Members for Information Only 

VII. Items for Next Regular Meeting Agenda 
A. FY 2020/21 Second Quarter Investment Report 

VIII. Date of Next Regular Meeting: January 28, 2021 

IX. Adjournment 



Eric Friedman 
Chairman 

Ed Andrisek 
Vice Chainnan 

Ray A Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Farber Schreck 
General Coutt<;el 

Member Ag1!11cies 

Oty of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

Oty of Guadalupe 

City of Santa Barbara 

Oty of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Ynez RlverWater 
Cott<;ervation District, 
Improvement District #1 

Associate Member 

La Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427 
(805) 688-2292 
Fax (805) 686-4700 
www.ccwa.com 

October 28, 2020 

Mr. Matt Young 
Water Agency Manager 
Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
130 E. Victoria Street, Suite 200 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Re: Amendment No. 21 (The Water Management Amendment) to the State 
Water Contract 

Dear Matt: 

I am writing to request that the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (District) execute Amendment No. 21 (The Water Management 
Amendment) to the State Water Contract between the Department of Water 
Resources (DWR) and the District in accordance with the 1991 Transfer of Financial 
Responsibility Agreement between the District and CCWA and transmit the executed 
amendment to DWR before December 31, 2020. 

As you know, on September 4, 2020, DWR presented the Water Management 
Amendment to our agencies for execution. (Email from D. Rizzardo to F. Crease 
and R. Stokes, September 4, 2020, attached to this letter.) The CCWA Board of 
Directors considered the Water Management Amendment at its September and 
October meetings and approved the amendment on October 22, 2020 and also 
made responsible agency findings pursuant to CEQA and adopted CEQA Findings 
and Statement of Overriding Considerations. (See CCWA Resolution 20-01, 
attached to this letter.) A copy of The Water Management Amendment is attached 
as Exhibit B to Resolution No. 20-01. 

As described in more detail in my attached October 14, 2020 staff report to the 
CCWA Board of Directors, the existing State Water Contract allows transfers in a 
limited and specific manner and therefore is rarely utilized. In addition, while the 
contracting public water agencies (PWA(s)) may engage in bona fide exchanges of 
water with other PWAs, the State Water Contract lacks specificity regarding the 
parameters. As a result, DWR has considered proposed exchanges of water 
between PWAs on a case by case basis, which has provided less certainty for PWA 
planning purposes. 

Consequently, beginning in earnest in February 2018, DWR and the PWAs worked 
together to find solutions to develop water supply management practices to enhance 
management flexibility for SWP water supplies in a changing environment. The 
Water Management Amendment, which results from that effort, supplements and 
clarifies the provisions of the State Water Contract related to water transfers and 
exchanges within the State Water Project service area to improve water 
management capabilities and options. The proposed amendment does not increase 
State Water Project diversions or change State Water Project operations. The Water 
Management Amendment creates numerous benefits for CCWA's participating local 



Mr. Matt Young 
October 28, 2020 
Page 2 

agencies and their ratepayers, and thus for all of Santa Barbara County, including 
by: 

• Creating new tools and enhanced flexibility to respond to changes in 
hydrology and increasing constraints on DWR's operation of the State Water 
Project; 

• Increasing certainty for water managers by clarifying existing practices and 
providing rules for implementing transfers and exchanges; 

• Ensuring transparency of transfers and exchanges and avoidance of harm; 
and 

• Potentially increasing opportunities for and benefits associated with 
conjunctive management of surface and groundwater supplies in the state. 

For all of these reasons, CCWA's Board of Directors unanimously approved the 
Water Management Amendment and has directed me to obtain the District's 
execution. 

Please deliver the District's executed Water Management Amendment to DWR 
before December 31. 2020. As provided by the Water Management Amendment 
(see p. 20), the amendment will become effective when 24 PWAs sign it. If any PWA 
has not executed the amendment within 60 days of the effective date, the 
amendment is not effective as to that PWA, unless DWR, in its discretion, and the 
PWA later execute the amendment. Accordingly, to ensure that the amendment, 
and the water management benefits that it provides, becomes effective as to CCWA, 
the Water Management Amendment should be executed by the District as soon as 
possible. 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, please let me know. 

t~JJ ittt y-- ---
~.Stokes 
Epcutive Director 

cc: Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
Das Williams, First District 
Gregg Hart, Second District 
Joan Hartmann, Third District 
Peter Adam, Fourth District 
Steve Lavagnino, Fifth District 

Karla Nemeth, Director, Department of Water Resources 
Pedro Villalobos, Chief, Water Contracts Branch, State Water Project 

Analysis Office 
James (Tripp) Mizell, Office of the Chief Counsel, Department of Water 

Resources 

(Continued next page) 

47895_1.dotx 



Mr. Matt Young 
October 28, 2020 
Page 3 

cc: Jennifer Pierre, State Water Contractors 
CCWA Board of Directors 

Eric Friedman, Chair, City of Santa Barbara 
Ed Andrisek, Vice Chair, City of Buellton 
Farfalla Borah, Goleta Water District 
Jeff Clay, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID #1 
Shirley Johnson, Carpinteria Valley Water District 
Gina Rubalcaba, City of Guadalupe 
Etta Waterfield, City of Santa Maria 
Floyd Wicks, Montecito Water District 

CCWA Operating Committee 
Mike Alvarado, La Cumbre Mutual Water Company 
Paeter Garcia, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID #1 
Rose Hess, City of Buellton 
Robert McDonald, Carpinteria Valley Water District 
John Mcinnes, Goleta Water District 
Pernell Rush, Vandenberg AFB 30 CES/CEOEO 1028 
Shad Springer, City of Santa Maria 
Shannon Sweeney, City of Guadalupe 
Cathy Taylor, City of Santa Barbara 
Nick Turner, Montecito Water District 
Matt van der Linden, City of Solvang 

Mona Miyasato, County Executive Officer, Santa Barbara County 
Tom Fayram, Deputy Director, Santa Barbara County Public Works Dept. 
Johannah Hartley, Deputy County Counsel, Santa Barbara County 

Attachments: 

1. September 4, 2020 Email from D. Rizzardo to F. Crease and R. 
Stokes 

2. CCWA Resolution 20-01 (1) Approving Amendment No. 21, and (2) 
Making Responsible Agency Findings Pursuant and Adopting CEQA 
Findings And Statement Of Overriding Considerations 

3. October 14, 2020 Staff Report Re. Amendment No. 21 from R. Stokes 
to CCWA Board of Directors (w/o attachments) 

4. CCWA Notice of Determination 

47895_Ldotx 



Ray Stokes 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Rizzardo, David@DWR <David.Rizzardo@water.ca.gov> 
Friday, September 4, 2020 11:37 AM 
Ray Stokes; fcrease@co.santa-barbara.ca.us 
Edwards, James@DWR 

Attachment 1 

Subject: State Water Project Water Supply Contract Water Management Amendment - Santa 
Barbara Flood Control and Water Conservation District 

Attachments: Santa Barbara.pdf 

Ms. Crease and Mr. Stokes 

Attached to this email is an execution version of the State Water Project Water Supply Contract 
Water Management Amendment between your agency and the Department of Water Resources. 

The execution version of the amendment is based on the Agreement in Principle, dated May 20, 
2019.The Department certified the related Final EIR on August 25, 2020 and filed a Notice of 
Determination with the State Clearinghouse on August 28, 2020 for this amendment. You can find a 
copy of the Final EIR and the NOD here: https://water.ca.gov/News/Public
Notices/2020/August/SWP-Water-Supplv-Contract-EIR 

Please review this execution version and, when your agency is ready to sign, let James Edwards 
know (please reference the Water Management Amendment) and an execution version within 
DocuSign will be prepared and routed. If you prefer to have wet signatures, please let James know 
and a hard copy of this execution version can be mailed to your agency. DWR will later send an 
execution version to you as part of your agency's consideration of this proposed project. James 
Edwards can be reached at james.edwards@water.ca.gov or by phone at (916) 653-1073. 

David Rizzardo, P.E. 
Supervising Water Resources Engineer 
Chief, Water Contracts Branch 1 State Water Project Analysis Office 

**Please note: In response to COVID-191 am teleworking. ** 
To leave voice message: (916) 653-9593 1 Direct calls to my cell: (916) 494-3629 (no voice mail) 
Please make sure to email me as well: David.Rizzardol7il.water.ca.gov 

~ l:li:li"NNI'UI:II'ii'OI' 

WATER RESOURCES 

1 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

Attachment 2 

(1) APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 21 (WATER MANAGEMENT 
AMENDMENT) TO THE WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT BETWEEN THE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
AND SANTA BARBARA COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER 

CONSERVATION DISTRICT; AND 
(2) MAKING RESPONSIBLE AGENCY FINDINGS PURSUANT TO 

CEQA FOR THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR 
AMENDMENT NO. 21, AND ADOPTING CEQA FINDINGS AND 

STATEMENT OF OVERRIDING CONSIDERATIONS 

WHEREAS, in 1963, following the voters' 1960 approval of the California Water 
Resources Development Bond Act, the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (District) and the Department of Water Resources (DWR), acting on 
behalf of the State of California, executed that certain agreement dated February 26, 1963 
for the supply and delivery of State Water Project (SWP) water to Santa Barbara County 
{Slate SWP Contract); and 

WHEREAS, the SWP Contract is substantially identical to agreements between 
DWR and 28 other public water agencies in California; 

WHEREAS, on November 12, 1991, the District and the Central Coast Water 
Authority (Authority) entered into the Transfer of Financial Responsibility Agreement 
whereby the Authority assumed full responsibility for all of the District's obligations 
pursuant to the SWP Contract, and said agreement also contemplates a future assignment 
of the SWP Contract to the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, to date, the SWP Contract has not been assigned to the Authority, 
therefore the District remains the contracting party to the SWP Contract; and 

WHEREAS, to date, the SWP Contract has been amended on numerous 
occasions since its execution; and 

WHEREAS, under the existing SWP Contract, water transfers are permitted in a 
limited and very specific manner, resulting in their infrequent use, and the parameters for 
exchanges of water, while allowed, lack specificity and clear guidance, which impede 
planning; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, along with other public water agencies with SWP 
Contracts (PWAs) conducted a series of public negotiations with DWR with the goal of 
agreeing on concepts to supplement and clarify the existing water transfer and exchange 
provisions of the SWP Contracts to provide improved water management; and 

WHEREAS, in June 2018, PWAs and DWR agreed upon an Agreement in 
Principle (AlP), which included specific principles to clarify and enhance the terms of the 



Resolution No. 20-01 
Page2 

SWP water supply contract related to water transfers and exchanges to improve water 
management capabilities and PWA options; and 

WHEREAS, in October 2018, DWR circulated a Draft Environmental Impact 
Report {2018 DEIR) that considered impacts related to the AlP, which at that time also 
included certain cost allocation sections for the California WaterFix project {WaterFix); and 

WHEREAS, in early 2019, Governor Newsom decided not to move forward with 
California WaterFix and DWR rescinded its approvals of the AlP project. The PWAs and 
DWR subsequently held a public negotiation and agreed to remove the WaterFix cost 
allocation sections from AlP, but to retain the water management provisions, and the AlP 
was finalized on May 20, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to the SWP Contract for consideration by 
the Board (Amendment No. 21 - The Water Management Amendment) articulates in 
contract language the principles of the final AlP; and 

WHEREAS, DWR is the lead agency pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act {CEQA) for the Amendment No. 21 project which is called the "State Water 
Project Supply Contract Amendments for Water Management" {Project), pursuant to 
CEQA (Pub. Res. Code §§ 21000, et seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines {14 CCR §§ 
15000, et seq.). As the lead agency, DWR is responsible for assuring that an adequate 
analysis of the Project's environmental impacts is conducted; and 

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2020, DWR issued a Partially Recirculated Draft 
Environmental Impact Report {DEIR) for the Project, which was circulated for public review 
for 94 days through June 1, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, DWR prepared a Final Environmental Impact Report for the Project, 
which included the DEIR, appendices, comments on the DEIR, responses to comments 
on the DEIR, and revisions to the DEIR {collectively, FEIR); and 

WHEREAS, on August 25, 2020, DWR certified the FEIR, adopted CEQA Findings 
of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations and approved the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the FEIR concluded that the Project would have significant and 
unavoidable impacts to groundwater hydrology and water quality, and cumulatively 
considerable and unavoidable impacts to groundwater supplies and subsidence. As such, 
DWR adopted CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the 
Project (attached as Exhibit "A"); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority and DWR propose to amend the SWP Contract by 
approving Amendment No. 21 (The Water Management Amendment) attached as Exhibit 
"8" to this Resolution, the environmental effects of which were studied in the FEIR; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority is a responsible agency and has more limited approval 
and implementing authority over Amendment No. 21 than does the DWR; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority, at its scheduled public 
meetings on September 24, 2020 and October 22, 2020 independently reviewed and 

Page 2 of5 
47715_2.docx 



Resolution No. 20-01 
Page 3 

considered the FEIR, DWR's CEQA Findings of Fact and DWR's Statement of Overriding 
Considerations, and other related documents and evidence in the record before it; and 

WHEREAS, all the procedures of CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines have 
been met, and the FEI R prepared in connection with the Project is sufficiently detailed so 
that all the potentially significant effects of the Project and the Amendment on the 
environment and measures feasible to avoid or substantially lessen such effects have 
been evaluated in accordance with CEQA; and 

WHEREAS, as contained herein, the Authority has endeavored in good faith to set 
forth the basis for its decision on the Amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

SECTION 1. 

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein as though set forth in 
full. 

SECTION 2. 

Based on the findings set forth herein, the Board of Directors approves Amendment No. 
21 (The Water Management Amendment) to the SWP Contract, which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit "B." This resolution constitutes complete and final 
agreement by the Authority to be bound by the terms of Amendment No. 21 (The Water 
Management Amendment) to the Contract and this Resolution shall take effect 
immediately. 

SECTION 3. 

The Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to transmit Amendment 
No. 21 to the District for the District's execution and delivery of Amendment No. 21 to 
DWR in accordance with the provisions of the Transfer of Financial Responsibility 
Agreement between the Authority and the District. 

SECTION4. 

A. The FEIR prepared for the Project, which can be found at 
https:/lwater.ca.gov/News/Public-Notices/2020/Auqust/SWP-Water-Supply-Contract
EIR, is hereby received by the Board and incorporated herein by this reference. 

B. Pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines section 15096 and in its limited role as 
a responsible agency under CEQA, the Board of Directors has reviewed and considered 
the FEIR, as well as DWR's certification of the FEIR and approval of the Project, and 
DWR's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations, and the 
Board incorporates those ttems herein by reference. As to those resources within the 
Authority's power and authority as a responsible agency under CEQA, the Board 
exercises its independent judgment and finds that the FEIR contains a complete, objective 
and accurate reporting of the Amendment's Impacts. 

Page 3 ofS 
47715_2.docx 



Resolution No. 20-01 
Page4 

C. Exercising its independent judgment, the Board adopts the CEQA Findings 
of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations, attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and 
incorporated herein by this reference. The Board further finds that there are no feasible 
mitigation measures or alternatives within its authority that would substantially lessen or 
avoid any significant effects that the Project would have on the environment, for the 
reasons explained in the FEIR and in CCWA's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of 
Overriding Considerations. 

D. The Board concurs with the Statement of Overriding Considerations 
adopted by DWR and, exercising its independent judgment, finds that, within its 
jurisdiction, the benefits of the Amendment outweigh the adverse environmental impacts 
not reduced to below a level of significance. 

E. The Board hereby authorizes and directs staff to file and have posted a 
Notice of Determination with the County Clerk and with the State Clearinghouse within five 
(5) working days of the adoption of this Resolution. 

F. The documents and materials that constitute the record of proceedings for 
this Resolution are located at Central Coast Water Authority, 2551ndustrial Way, Buellton, 
California 93427. 

- continued on next page -

Page 4 ofS 
47715_2.docx 



Resolution No. 20-01 
Page 5 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 20-01 was adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the Central Coast Water Authority at a meeting held October 22, 2020. 

[Seal] 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley Water 
District 

Goleta Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

Montecito Water District 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District No. 
1 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

L 

irectors 
VOTING 

PERCENTAGE 

2.21% 

7.64% 

17.20% 

1.15% 

9.50% 

11.47% 

43.19% 

7.64% 

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck LLP 

~~~ 
Eric Friedman, Chairman 

AYE NAY ABSTAIN 

X -

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

General Counsel to the Central Coast Water Authority 

Stephanie Osier Hastings 

Exhibits: 

A. DWR's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 
B. Amendment No. 21 (The Water Management Amendment) 
C. CCWA's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 

Page 5 of5 
47715_2.docx 

ABSENT 



Resolution No. 20-01 
PageS 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 20-01 was adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the Central Coast Water Authority at a meeting held October 22, 2020. 

Eric Friedman, Chairman 
[Seal] 

Attest: 

Elizabeth Watkins 
Secretary to the Board of Directors 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley Water 
District 

Goleta Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

Montecito Water District 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District No. 
1 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

VOTING 
PERCENTAGE 

2.21% 

7.64% 

17.20% 

1.15% 

9.50% 

11.47% 

43.19% 

7.64% 

Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck LLP 
GenerarCo\msel to the Central Coast Water Authority 

Stell" / . 

Lhibits: 

tz_;p, 

AYE NAY ABSTAIN 

A. DWR's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 
B. Amendment No. 21 (The Water Management Amendment) 
C. CCWA's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 

Page 5 of5 
47715_2.docx 

ABSENT 



TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

SUMMARY 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

,/ 
I 

CCWA Board o!Jlir{ctors 

Ray Stokes ~ &~~) 
Executive Di"f,or' ) 

Attachment 3 

October 14, 2020 

Consider Resolution No. 20-01 (1) Approving Amendment No. 21 (Water 
Management Amendment) to the Water Supply Contract Between The State Of 
California Department Of Water Resources And Santa Barbara County Flood 
Control And Water Conservation District; and (2) Making Responsible Agency 
Findings Pursuant To CEQA For The Final Environmental Impact Report For 
Amendment No. 21, And Adopting CEQA Findings And Statement Of Overriding 
Considerations 

CCWA has a long term water supply contract (SWP Contract) with the State of California 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) for the delivery of State Water Project (SWP) water. 1 

Under the existing SWP Contract, water transfers are permitted in a limited and very specific 
manner, resulting in their infrequent use. In addition, while the existing SWP Contract allows for 
bona fide exchanges of water, it lacks specificity regarding the parameters of such exchanges. 
Consequently, public water agencies that have SWP Contracts with DWR (PWAs) have relied 
upon DWR's case by case application, which provides less certainty for planning purposes. 

Given changes in hydrology and further constraints placed on DWR's operation of the SWP and 
to provide flexibility in the future, PWAs and DWR conducted a series of public negotiations with 
the goal of agreeing on concepts to supplement and clarify the existing water transfer and 
exchange provisions of the SWP Contracts to provide improved water management. In a 
December 2017 Notice to Contractors, DWR indicated its desire to supplement and clarify the 
water management tools through this public process. In June 2018, PWAs and DWR agreed 
upon an Agreement in Principle (AlP), which included specific principles to accomplish this goal. 
These principles included clarifying existing practices for exchanges, providing new flexibility for 
single and multi-year non-permanent water transfers, allowing PWAs to set terms of 
compensation for transfers and exchanges, providing for the limited transfer of carryover and 
Article 21 water, and adding provisions to ensure transparency, among some others. In 
October 2018, a Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) was circulated for the proposed 
project. 

In addition, the AlP at the time included certain cost allocation sections for the California 
WaterFix project (WaterFix). In early 2019, the Governor decided not to move forward with 

1 The SWP Contract was executed in 1963 by the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (District) and DWR. On November 12, 1991, the District and CCWA entered into the 
Transfer of Financial Responsibility Agreement whereby CCWA assumed full responsibility for all of the 
District's obligations pursuant to the SWP Contract. However, the District remains the contracting party to 
the SWP Contract. 

Page 1 of 5 47850_1.docx 



WaterFix and DWR rescinded its approvals of the project. After this shift the PWAs and DWR 
held a public negotiation and agreed to remove the WaterFix cost allocation sections from AlP, 
but to keep all of the water management provisions in the AlP. The AlP was finalized on May 
20, 2019. DWR decided to amend and recirculate the DEIR. In February 2020, DWR published 
the Partially Recirculated DEIR for the State Water Project Supply Contract Amendments for 
Water Management (Project) and in August 2020, DWR certified the Final EIR for the Project. 

The proposed amendments to the SWP Contract for consideration by the Board of Directors are 
based on the AlP, which has been converted into contract amendment language developed by 
PWA and DWR attorneys. If approved by the Board, the proposed amendment would be 
effective when 24 of the SWP PWAs execute the amendment. The proposed contract 
amendment- "Amendment No. 21 (Water Management Amendment) to the SWP Contract" 
- is attached as Exhibit B to the proposed Resolution No. 20-01 for consideration by the Board. 

DISCUSSION 

Background 

The SWP Contract has been amended nineteen (19) times; most recently in 2003.2 The last 
update to the water management rules governing SWP operations was in 1994. 

Existing article 56( d) of the SWP Contract provides the only mechanism for non-permanent 
transfers of SWP water between PWAs. This mechanism is called the Turn back Pool. As 
indicated above, it allows transfers in a limited and specific manner and it is rarely utilized. In 
addition, Section 56(f) allows PWAs to enter into bona fide exchanges of water with other 
PWAs, but it lacks specificity regarding the parameters. As a result, DWR has applied Section 
56(f) on a case by case basis, which has provided less certainty for PWA planning purposes. 

Consequently, DWR and the PWAs worked together to find solutions to develop water supply 
management practices to enhance management flexibility for SWP water supplies in a changing 
environment. The proposed contract amendment for the Board's consideration supplements 
and clarifies terms of the SWP water supply contract related to water transfers and exchanges 
within the SWP service area to improve water management capabilities and options. The 
proposed amendment does not increase SWP diversions or change SWP operations. 

Transfers 

Specifically, the proposed contract amendment does the following, among other things, 
regarding transfers: 

Removes the Turn back Pool language from the contract. 
• Creates new flexibility for non-permanent transfers, including allowing PWAs to transfer 

water to other PWAs outside their service area, to determine the duration (either single 
or multi-year) and terms of compensation for transfers, to execute Transfer Packages (2 
or more transfer agreements between the same PWAs), and to transfer water stored 
outside their service territory directly to other PWAs. 
Requires certain conditions be met to avoid harm to the SWP and other PWAs. 
Requires DWR approval based on satisfaction of such conditions. 

2 Amendment No. 20 to the SWP Contract is the Contract Extension Amendment which is not yet 
effective. 

Page 2 of 5 47850_1.docx 



Permits PWAs to transfer Article 21 water with DWR approval after a demonstration of 
special need. 

• Allows PWAs to transfer or exchange up to 50% of their carryover water. 
Adds provisions to ensure transparency. 
Provides for a dispute resolution process for non-participating PWAs who feel they may 
be adversely impacted by a transfer. 

Exchanges 

The proposed contract amendment does the following, among other things, with regards to 
exchanges of water: 

• Establishes clear criteria for exchanges to provide more clarity. 
Sets exchange ratios based on Annual Table A water allocation percentages, up to 5 to 
1. 
Sets the maximum cost compensation for an exchange. 
Allows exchanges to be carried out over a 10 year period (meaning water could be 
returned over 10 years). 
Permits the exchange or transfer of up to 50% of PWAs carryover water. 
Requires certain conditions to be met to avoid harm to the SWP and other PWAs. 
Adds provisions to ensure transparency. 
Provides for a dispute resolution process for non-participating PWAs who feel they may 
be adversely impacted by an exchange. 

In addition to the above, the proposed amendment permits PWAs to participate in multiple 
transfers or exchanges each year, as well as to be both buyers and sellers in the same year. 
PWAs may also petition DWR for exceptions to the some of the above criteria upon a 
demonstration of special needs or circumstances. Overall, the proposed amendments provide 
improved flexibility for PWAs to utilize water transfers and exchanges to better manage their 
SWP water supplies in a dynamic environment. 

Proposed Amendment Implementation Schedule 

The proposed contract amendment to the SWP Contract is a uniform amendment that all PWAs 
are considering. Pursuant to the terms of the proposed amendment, it will not go into effect until 
the last day of the month after 24 PWAs have executed the contract amendment. If 24 or more 
PWAs have not executed the amendment by February 28, 2021, DWR may decide in 
consultation with those PWAs who have executed it whether to allow the amendment to take 
effect. 

Compliance with CEQA 

DWR, Lead Agency 

On February 28, 2020, DWR published the 2020 Partially Recirculated DEIR for the Project. 
The Partially Recirculated DEIR was circulated for 94 days through June 1, 2020. On August 
25, 2018, DWR certified the Final EIR for the Project. The Final EIR determined that the Project 
would have significant and unavoidable impacts to groundwater hydrology and water quality, 
and cumulatively considerable and unavoidable impacts to groundwater supplies and 
subsidence. As such, DWR adopted CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 
Considerations for the Project. On August 28, 2020, DWR filed a Notice of Determination for 
the Project. The Final EIR and CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 

Page3of5 47850_1.docx 



Considerations comply with CEQA. DWR's Notice of Determination, Partially Recirculated 
DEIR, and Final EIR can be found on the official DWR website at: 
https://water.ca.gov/News/Public-Notices/2020/August/SWP-Water-Supplv-Contract-EIR. 
DWR's CEQA Findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations is attached as Exhibit 
A to proposed Resolution 20-01 for the Board's review and consideration. 

CCWA, Responsible Agency 

Before approving the proposed amendment to the SWP Contract, CCWA, as a Responsible 
Agency under CEQA, is required to certify that it has reviewed and considered the information in 
the certified Final EIR for the Project. In addition, because the certified Final EIR identified 
significant and unavoidable impacts to the environment, CCWA must adopt CEQA Findings of 
Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

Pursuant to the authority delegated to Staff pursuant to CCWA Resolution No. 15-01 (CCWA 
CEQA Guidelines), Staff has prepared the CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of 
Overriding Considerations which is attached as Exhibit C to the proposed Resolution 20-01 
for the Board's review and consideration. 

CCWA Implementing Policies and Procedures 

Staff anticipates that the Board's approval of the proposed amendment may require that CCWA 
adopt policies and procedures to administer and implement the proposed amendment within 
CCWA. For example: 

1. Due Diligence: In the event that CCWA proposes an exchange or transfer pursuant to 
the proposed amendment, CCWA must certify to DWR that the proposed exchange or 
transfer will not negatively impact either DWR or CCWA's ability to meet their demand or 
have a negative financial impact on DWR or CCWA. Accordingly, CCWA would need to 
obtain certification from the project participants proposing the exchange or transfer. 

2. Stored Water/Carryover Water: Similarly, in the event that a CCWA project participant 
proposes to exchange or transfer more than 50% of its carryover water, CCWA must 
certify to DWR that the transaction will not prevent the participant from meeting critical 
water supply needs during a proscribed period. Accordingly, CCWA would need to 
obtain certification from the project participants proposing the exchange or transfer. 

3. Transfer of Article 21Water: The proposed amendment allows for the transfer of Article 
21 with DWR approval. Article 21 is allocated on a real-time basis, meaning if DWR 
declares Article 21 to be available, it is taken in real-time. Historically, CCWA has 
allocated Article 21 to CCWA participants that are actually taking SWP water at the time. 
It may be appropriate to develop policies and procedures regarding any CCWA 
participant's election to transfer any Article 21 water allocated to them. 

4. Long-Term Transfers: The proposed amendment will allow for the long-term transfer of 
Table A amount for the duration of the term of the SWP Contract. Procedures may be 
required to clarify how this option may be implemented consistent with CCWA's Water 
Supply Agreements with each CCWA participant. 

5. Exchange/Transfers: To accommodate concurrent exchanges and transfers where 
CCWA participants are acting as buyers and sellers, CCWA will need to develop a 
program to administer these transactions. CCWA's Supplemental Water Purchase 

Page4 of5 47850_1.docx 



Program only addresses transactions whereby one or more CCWA participants are the 
buyer. 

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends: 

A. Board approval of Resolution No. 20-01: 

(1) Approving Amendment No. 21 (Water Management Amendment) To The Water 
Supply Contract Between The State Of California Department Of Water 
Resources And Santa Barbara County Flood Control And Water Conservation 
District; And 

(2) Making Responsible Agency Findings Pursuant To CEQA For The Final 
Environmental Impact Report For Amendment No. 21, And Adopting CEQA 
Findings And Statement Of Overriding Considerations 

2. Board direction to Staff to prepare policies and procedures necessary or convenient to 
implement the proposed amendment for consideration by the Board at a future meeting. 

Attachment: 

Resolution No. 20-01 
Exhibits: 
A. DWR's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 
B. Amendment No. 21 (The Water Management Amendment) 
C. CCWA's CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 

Page 5 of 5 47850_1.docx 



j Print Form I 
Attachment 4 

Notice of Determination 
To: 
[!J Office of Planning and Research 

U.S. Mail: Street Address: 
P.O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Rm 113 

Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 95814 

0 County Clerk 

From: 
Public 

Contact: Ray Stokes, P.E. 
Phone: 805-688-2292 

Appendix D 

County of:-------------
Address: ---------------

above): 

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public 
Resources Code. 

State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse):_,2,_,0'-'1"'8"'0,_72,.o,3,3e__ _______ _ 

Project Title: State Water Project Water Supply Amendments for Water Management 

Project Applicant: Department of Water Resources 

Project Location (include county): SWP Facilities and SeiVice Areas, including the County of Santa Barbara 

Project Description: 
The proposed project would add, delete, modify, and clarify provisions of the Contracts that will improve water 
management regarding transfers and exchanges of SWP water within the SWP service area. The proposed project 
would not build new or modify existing SWP facilities nor change CCWA's annual Tabla A amounts. The proposed 
project would not change the water supply delivered by the SWP. as SWP water would continue to be delivered to 
CCWA consistent wlth the current contract terms and regulatory requirements. 

This is to advise that the Central Coast Water Authority has approved the above 
(0 Lead Agency or ljJ Responsible Agency) 

described project on and has made the following determinations regarding the above 
(date) 

described project. 

1. The project [~ will 0 will not] have a significant effect on the environment. 

2. Iii An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 
0 A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. CCWA considered 

3. Mitigation measures [[] were ~ were not] made a condition of the approval of the project. the EIR as prepared 

4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan [0 was Iii was not] adopted for this project. by DWR 

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [l!i!l was 0 was not] adopted for this project. 

6. Findings !Iii were 0 were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the 
negative Declaration, is available. to the General Public at: 

https:/lwater.ca.oov/News/P 

fti!Jllt JF(J > .Jff!.lfFJ/ Title: Executive Director 

Date: {(.I-rv· -v-v ,9' Date Received for filing at OPR: ---------

Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code. 
Reference Section 21000·21174, Public Resources Code. Revised 20i i 



Eric Friedman 
Otainnan 

Ed Andrisek 
Vice Chainnan 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Farber Schreck 
General Counsel 

Member Agencies 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District #1 

Associate Member 

La Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

November 3, 2020 

Honorable Gregg Hart, Chair and 
Members of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Santa Barbara 
1 05 East Anapamu Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Re: Santa Barbara Flood Control and Water Conservation District Approval of 
Assignment of the State Water Contract Assignment to the Central Coast 
Water Authority, or in the Alternative, District Execution of Contract Extension 
Amendment 

Dear Chair Hart and Members of the Board of Supervisors: 

On behalf of the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA), I am again writing to 
request that the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors (Board), acting in its 
capacity as the governing board of the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District (District), formally approve assignment of the State 
Water Contract from the District to CCWA, as described in the proposed 
Assignment, Assumption and Release Agreement (Assignment Agreement), 
attached to this letter. In the alternative, I request that the District execute 
Amendment No. 20 (Contract Extension Amendment) to the State Water Contract. 

A. Assignment of State Water Contract to CCWA 

As you know, on October 26, 2017, more than three years ago, CCWA's Board of 
Directors unanimously' approved a draft of the proposed Assignment, Assumption 
and Release Agreement, specifically agreeing to assume all responsibility for, and 
liability regarding, the State Water Contract, and the full release of the County from 
all responsibility and liability. (See CCWA Resolution No. 17-04, attached.) The 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) has also, informally, agreed to assignment 
of the State Water Contract, but DWR will not provide its final approval until the 
Board, on behalf of the District, has approved the assignment. 

1 In 2017, all eight members ofCCW A individually approved assignment of the State Water Contract 
from the District to CCW A. CCW A's eight members are all public agencies whose elected officials 
are directly responsible to their ratepayers and voters who fund the cost of the State Water Project 
facilities and the supplemental water supply that serves more than 85 percent of the County's residents 
and businesses. CCWA's members include: City of Buellton, City of Guadalupe, City of Santa 
Barbara, City of Santa Maria, Carpinteria Valley Water District, Goleta Water District, Montecito 
Water District, and Santa Y nez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. I. Of the 
42 elected officials who considered assignment of the State Water Contract from the District to 
CCWA, only two voted against assignment, and one (then City of Santa Barbara Council member 
Gregg Hart) abstained. 



Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
November 3, 2020 
Page 2 

On September 17,2018, and then again on January 31,2019, CCWA requested that the Board 
consider and approve assignment of the State Water Contract from the District to CCWA. Those 
prior requests, which exhaustively detail all of the benefits of the proposed assignment and 
specifically address questions raised by your Board, are attached to this letter for your reference 
re. It has now been nearly two years since CCWA's last request for the Board's consideration of 
this matter. In the meantime, CCWA's staff has met and conferred with District staff on numerous 
occasions in an effort to address any remaining District questions or concerns. 

In light of several time-sensitive matters of critical financial importance to CCWA's project 
participants, and their ratepayers, most importantly, approval of the Contract Extension 
Amendment (discussed below),' CCWA cannot wait for the Board's consideration of the proposed 
assignment any longer. CCWA requests that the Board agendize this matter for its consideration 
no later than January 29, 2021 and vote to approve assignment of the State Water Contract to 
CCWA. In the event the Board approves assignment of the State Water Contract, the Board may 
disregard CCWA's second request in Section B below. 

B. Amendment No. 20 (Contract Extension) to the State Water Contract 

At the same time that CCWA made its last request for the Board's approval of assignment of the 
State Water Contract, on January 24, 2019, CCWA's Board of Directors unanimously approved 
Amendment No. 20 to the State Water Contract- the Contract Extension Amendment, a copy of 
which is attached to this letter.3 Given that CCWA had already requested the Board's approval of 
assignment of the State Water Contract, at the time, CCWA staff anticipated that the Board's 
approval of the Contract Extension Amendment would not be required because CCWA itself, as 
the contracting agency following assignment, would execute the amendment. However, since the 
Board has not approved assignment to date, CCWA believes that execution of the amendment 
cannot wait any longer' -it is vitally important the District execute the Contract Extension 
Amendment as soon as possible in order to preserve and protect CCWA's participants' 
investments in the State Water Contract and the future viability of the essential supplemental 
water supply that the State Water Contract makes available to Santa Barbara County. 

The State Water Contract expires on February 26, 2038, less than 20 years from now. Typically, 
DWR finances capital projects over a 30-year period to take advantage of the most favorable 
rates. However, since the contract expires in less than 20 years from now, DWR has been forced 
to finance capital projects over a shorter, 15-year bonding period, which has resulted in 
compression of the repayment schedule and less favorable financing terms. The Contract 
Extension Amendment alleviates this problem by extending the contract term to 2085. 

Absent the District's approval of the Contract Extension Amendment, and corresponding longer 
bonding period, CCWA's project participants will realize ever-increasing capital charges 
associated with their participation in the State Water Project due to the continued shortening of 
the bonding period. DWR must have the ability to finance large capital expenditures over a typical 
30 year bonding period to help offset further increases in the charges to CCWA and its project 
participants. DWR has estimated that CCWA's share of the project's capital projects between 

2 See also, CCWA 's October 28, 2020 request that the District execute Amendment No. 21 (Water Management 
Amendment). (See October 28, 2020 Letter rrom R. Stokes, CCWA toM. Young, District.) 
3 DWR provided the Contract Extension Amendment to the District and CCW A on October 29, 2018. 
-1 The District is one of the last State Water Contractors that has not executed the Contract Extension Amendment. 

47907_1.docx 



Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
November 3, 2020 
Page 3 

now and 2035, not including the Delta Conveyance Project, could exceed $1 DO million, all of 
which would be passed on to CCWA's project participants. 

In addition to extending the term of the State Water Contract, and thus the financing period for 
capital projects, the Contract Extension Amendment has numerous other benefits for CCWA's 
project participants as well. For example, the amendment increases certain credits provided to 
the District and other State Water Project contracting agencies called, "rate management credits." 
These credits are applied against charges that are allocated roughly in proportion to the capital 
charges paid by each contractor. Because the facilities constructed to deliver State Water Project 
water to Santa Barbara County were constructed in the 1990's, as opposed to the early 1960's as 
was the case for the other 28 contractors, CCWA's proportionate share of total capital payments 
is very large.5 As a result, CCWA receives a higher share of rate management credits to partially 
offset these capital charges. The Contract Extension Amendment increases the maximum rate 
management credits from $40.5 million per year available for all contractors, to $48 million per 
year, an increase of $7.5 million per year. CCWA's share of the increase is projected to be 
approximately $520,000 per year, or roughly $7.8 million between 2020 and the year 2035 6 

In addition, since the District executed the State Water Contract in 1963, DWR has used a defined 
interest rate to amortize all capital and certain operations and maintenance costs called the 
"project interest rate" (PIR). The PIR is essentially a melded rate of DWR's general obligation 
debt which has remained fixed for many years at 4.610%. The PIR is also used to collect interest 
for under-payments from contracting agencies on the various components of project charges and 
to pay interest on over-payments by contracting agencies. Recently, DWR significantly increased 
the operations and maintenance costs to CCWA, and specifically, the 2019 charges, which 
increased from around $10 million to $24 million due to a large under-collection coupled with 
current year increases. These under-collections by DWR to CCWA meant CCWA paid interest to 
DWR at the 4.610% PIR -approximately $1.2 million. The Contract Extension Amendment 
eliminates the PIR. Had the Contract Extension Amendment been in place in 2019, CCWA's 
project participants would have saved $1.2 million. 

In sum, the financial benefits of the Contract Extension Amendment to CCWA and its project 
participants, and thus to all of Santa Barbara County, are considerable. Thus, the District's failure 
to execute the Contract Extension Amendment on behalf of CCWA and its project participants 
would not only result in the continued adverse financial consequences of a shortened financing 
period, but CCWA and its participants would also be deprived of the significant financial benefits 
the Contract Extension Amendment affords. 

C. Call for Immediate Board Action No Later than January 29, 2021 

CCWA requests that the Board formally approve assignment of the State Water Contract from the 
District to CCWA, as described in the proposed Assignment, Assumption and Release 
Agreement. In the alternative, in the event the Board does not approve assignment of the State 
Water Contract to CCWA by January 29, 2021, and therefore the District remains the contracting 
agency for the State Water Contract, CCWA requests that the Board of Supervisors agendize the 
Contract Extension Amendment for the Board's consideration no later than January 29, 2021. 
CCWA urges the Board, on behalf of CCWA, to execute the Contract Extension Amendment. 

5 CCW A is the third highest paying contractor. 
6 Rate management credits will no longer be available beginning in 2036. 

47907 _l.docx 



Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
November 3, 2020 
Page4 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, please let me know. 

Respectfully, 

//-' ..-:--v J-rur:u<t-
Eric Friedman 
Chair of the Board of Directors 

cc: Karla Nemeth, Director, Department of Water Resources 
Pedro Villalobos, Chief, Water Contracts Branch, State Water Project Analysis Office 
James (Tripp) Mizell, Office of the Chief Counsel, Department of Water Resources 
Jennifer Pierre, State Water Contractors 
CCWA Board of Directors 

Eric Friedman, Chair, City of Santa Barbara 
Ed Andrisek, Vice Chair, City of Buellton 
Farfalla Borah, Goleta Water District 
Jeff Clay, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID #1 
Shirley Johnson, Carpinteria Valley Water District 
Gina Rubalcaba, City of Guadalupe 
Etta Waterfield, City of Santa Maria 
Floyd Wicks, Montecito Water District 

CCWA Operating Committee 
Mike Alvarado, La Cumbre Mutual Water Company 
Paeter Garcia, Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID #1 
Rose Hess, City of Buellton 
Robert McDonald, Carpinteria Valley Water District 
John Mcinnes. Goleta Water District 
Pernell Rush, Vandenberg AFB 30 CES/CEOEO 1028 
Shad Springer, City of Santa Maria 
Shannon Sweeney, City of Guadalupe 
Cathy Taylor, City of Santa Barbara 
Nick Turner, Montecito Water District 
Matt van der Linden, City of Solvang 

Mona Miyasato, County Executive Officer, Santa Barbara County 
Matt Young, Water Agency Manager, Santa Barbara County FC&WCD 
Torn Fayram, Deputy Director, Santa Barbara County Public Works Dept 
Johannah Hartley, Deputy County Counsel, Santa Barbara County 

Attachments: 

1. Assignment, Assumption and Release Agreement 
2. 2017 CCWA Resolution No. 17-04 approving assignment of the State Water Contract 

(without attachments) 
3. September 17, 2018 Letter from Ray Stokes, CCWA to Tom Fayram, SBCFCWCD 
4. March 23, 2020 Letter from Eric Friedman, Chair, CCWA to Gregg Hart, Chair and 

Members of the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
5. Amendment No. 20 (Contract Extension Amendment) to the State Water Contract 

47907 _l.cloCJ< 



ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION, AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 
REGARDING STATE WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT 

FOR SANTA BARBARA COUNTY 

Attachment 1 

This ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION, AND RELEASE AGREEMENT (the 
"Agreement") is made by and between the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (the "District"), the Central Coast Water Authority (the "Authority"), and 
the California Department of Water Resources (the "DWR") (each, a "Party" and collectively, the 
"Parties"), with reference to the following facts and intentions. This Agreement is effective as of 
_____ ., 2020, which is the last date of signature by all Parties hereto (the "Effective Date"). 

RECITALS 

A. As of February 23, 1963, the District entered into a Water Supply Contract with 
the DWR (the "State Water Supply Contract") with respect to the delivery of 57,700 acre feet 
per year of water from the State Water Project to Santa Barbara County. Said quantity of water 
is set forth in "Table A" to the State Water Supply Contract and is therefore refen·ed to as the 
"Table A Allocation." As permitted by Article 45(e) of the State Water Supply Contract, the 
District elected to delay construction of the facilities that would be required to permit delivery of 
the Table A Allocation. 

B. In 1981, the District and the DWR executed Amendment No.9 to the State Water 
Supply Contract whereby the District agreed to reduce its Table A Allocation to 45,486 acre feet 
per year ("Amended Table A Allocation"). The balance of the Table A Allocation, which is 
12,214 acre feet per year, is referred to as the "Suspended Table A Allocation." 

C. On various dates between 1985 and 1988, the District entered into a series of 
agreements, each called a "Water Supply Retention Agreement," with various cities, water 
districts, and other retailers and end users of water (the "Participant(s)"). Under each Water 
Supply Retention Agreement, the District assigned a specified portion of the Amended Table A 
Allocation to the Participant. 

D. In August 1991, the Authority was formed by eight public agencies 
("Members"), each of whom was a Participant. The Authority entered into a series of 
agreements, each called a "Water Supply Agreement," with each Member and several 
additional Participants. Each of the Water Supply Agreements included a provision that the 
rights held by each Participant under its Water Supply Retention Agreement with the District 
was assigned to the Authority, in return for the delivery of that water by the Authority to the 
Participant. Each of the remaining Participants elected not to participate further and assigned its 
respective rights under its Water Supply Retention Agreement with the District to the Authority. 

19913964 
DRAFT 3/18/20 

Page 1 of7 
Assignment. Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



E. On November 12, 1991, the Authority and the District entered into a "Transfer of 
Financial Responsibility Agreement" under which the Authority agreed, inter alia, to accept 
responsibility for all financial obligations of the District under the State Water Supply Contract. 

F. In August 1997, the Authority completed construction and permanently fixed the 
size and delivery capability of the transportation and treatment system by which water under the 
State Water Supply Contract would be delivered to those Participants having entered into Water 
Supply Agreements with the Authority. 

G. In August 1997, the first delivery of water to Santa Barbara County pursuant to 
the State Water Supply Contract was made. 

H. Since the formation of the Authority and in connection with the Authority's 
ownership and operation of the transportation and treatment system connecting the State Water 
Project to Santa Barbara County, it has been the intention of the Authority and the District that 
the Authority receive all rights, and assume all of the District's obligations, under the State 
Water Supply Contract, and that the District be released from all such obligations. The Parties 
desire to enter into this Agreement to effectuate such assignment, assumption, and release. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated 
into the operative provisions of this Agreement by this reference, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. Assignment. Effective as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the District 
does hereby assign, transfer, and set over to the Authority, without recourse and without 
representation or warranty of any kind, all of the District's rights, title, and interest in, to, and 
under the State Water Supply Contract (including, but not limited to, the District's rights to 
delivery of the Table A Allocation, inclusive of the Suspended Table A Allocation), along with 
all liabilities and obligations of the District arising from or under the State Water Supply 
Contract. This assignment is absolute and presently effective. 

2. Assumption. Effective as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Authority 
accepts such assignment without recourse and without representation or wananty of any kind, 
and assumes all of the District's liabilities and obligations arising from or under the State Water 
Supply Contract, including any and all obligations to make payments, indemnifications or 
reimbursements thereunder, and agrees to be bound by and to keep, perform and observe the 
terms, covenants and conditions of the District under the State Water Supply Contract. The 
Authority agrees to be bound by said State Water Supply Contract to the same extent as if it had 
been an original party to said instrument and accepts and agrees to perform all of the District's 
obligations therein. 

19913964 
DRAFT 3/18/20 

Page 2 of7 
Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



3. Authority Indemnification and Release. The Authority hereby releases and 
forever acquits, discharges and holds harmless and shall indemnify the District from and against 
any and all liabilities (at law or in equity), obligations, liens, claims, orders, rulings, losses, 
damages, assessments, fines, penalties, injuries, demands, actions, judgments, suits, costs, 
expenses, or disbursements of any kind (including attorneys' fees and costs) which may at any 
time on or after the Effective Date be imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the District by 
any third party, based on, resulting from, in any way relating to, in connection with, or arising 
out of the State Water Supply Contract, except to the extent caused by the District's gross 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

4. DWR Consent and Release. DWR hereby consents to the assignment, transfer, 
and assumption described herein, and releases the District from all liabilities and obligations 
arising from or under the State Water Supply Contract. DWR shall hold the Authority 
responsible for all liabilities and obligations of the District arising from or under the State Water 
Supply Contract to the same extent as if the Authority had been an original party to said 
instrument. 

5. Right of First Refusal Regarding Permanent Out-Of-County Sale. If at any 
time following the Effective Date of this Agreement, a Participant proposes to sell or otherwise 
dispose of all or any portion of its Project Allotment (as that term is defined in the Participant's 
Water Supply Agreement), such that such Project Allotment ("Sale Allotment") will no longer 
be delivered to end users within the County of Santa Barbara County ("Permanent Out-of
County Sale"), the Authority's approval of such Permanent Out-of-County Sale as required by 
the Participant's Water Supply Agreement shall be subject to a right of first refusal by the 
District to take delivery of such Sale Allotment on the same terms and conditions ("District's 
Right of First Refusal"). For clarity, the District's Right of First Refusal shall be secondary and 
subordinate to the right of first refusal held by each Participant pursuant to the provision of each 
Participant's Water Supply Agreement that provides for the "Sale or Other Disposition of Project 
Allotment." 

6. Reimbursement. 

a. Reacquisition of Suspended Table A Allocation. If at any time 
following the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Authority reacquires the Suspended Table A 
Allocation, the Authority shall reimburse the District for an amount equivalent to the amount the 
District otherwise would have been entitled to pursuant to Article 45GJ of the State Water Supply 
Contract. If the Authority elects to reacquire only a portion of the Suspended Table A 
Allocation, then the reimbursement shall be for a corresponding proportionate share of the 
overpayment, as provided in Article 45G). Subject to all laws, including but not limited to the 
California Environmental Quality Act, the Authority shall make all reasonable best efforts to 
consider and analyze reacquisition of the Suspended Table A Allocation within a reasonable 
period of time following the Effective Date. If at any time following the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, the Authority elects not to purchase all or a portion of the Suspended Table A 
Allocation (the Suspended Table A Allocation not reacquired being the "Excess Table A 

19913964 
DRAFT 3/IB/.20 

Page3of7 
Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



Allocation"), and DWR reimburses the Authority for all or a portion of the overpayment 
attributable to the Excess Table A Allocation pursuant to Article 450), the Authority shall 
deliver such reimbursement to the District. 

b. Permanent Out-of-County Sale, If at any time following the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, a Pennanent Out-of-County Sale is completed, the Authority shall 
reimburse the District in an amount equivalent to the portion of the actual Transportation Capital 
Costs, Transportation Minimum OMP&R and the Delta Water Charges, as those terms are 
defined in the State Water Supply Contract, that bears the same ratio as the Sale Allotment bears 
to the Table A Allocation for the period in which the District was fully responsible for the State 
Water Supply Contract. As determined in the calendar year 20!9 DWR Statement of Charges, 
the actual costs paid by the District for the calendar year I 964 to the year I 985 total $8,922,919, 
as set forth in the schedule attached as Exhibit A to this Agreement, which is incorporated by 
this reference. 

7. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. The validity and interpretation of this 
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any litigation regarding this 
Agreement or its contents shall be filed in the County of Santa Barbara, if in state court, or in the 
federal district court nearest to Santa Barbara County, if in federal court. 

8. Waiver. Any waiver or failure to declare a breach as a result of the violation of 
any term or condition of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that term or condition 
and shall not provide the basis for a claim of estoppel or waiver by any Party to that tenn or 
condition. 

9. Counterparts. The Parties may execute this Agreement in counterpart. The 
Parties agree to accept facsimile or PDF signatures as original signatures. 

I 0. Authorization. Each signatory represents and warrants that he or she has the 
appropriate authorization to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Party for whom he or she 
signs. 

II. Other Agreements and Term Sheet. 

a. Transfer of Financial Responsibility Agreement. Upon the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, the Transfer of Financial Responsibility Agreement shall automatically 
terminate and this Agreement shall supersede all provisions of the Transfer of Financial 
Responsibility Agreement. 

b. Water Supply Retention Agreements. 

(i) Assignment and Assumption. Effective as of the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, the District does hereby assign, transfer, and set over to the 
Authority, without recourse and without representation or warranty of any kind, all of the 
District's rights, title, and interest in, to and under all the existing Water Supply Retention 

19913964 
DRAFT 3/18/20 

Page 4 of7 
Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



Agreements, along with all liabilities and obligations of the District arising from or under the 
Water Supply Retention Agreements. The Authority accepts such assignment without recourse 
and without representation or wan-anty of any kind, and assumes all of the District's liabilities 
and obligations arising from or under the Water Supply Retention Agreements, including any 
and all obligations to make payments, indemnifications, or reimbursements thereunder, and 
agrees to be bound by and to keep, perform, and observe the terms, covenants, and conditions of 
the District under the Water Supply Retention Agreements. The Authority agrees to be bound by 
the Water Supply Retention Agreements to the same extent as if it had been an original party to 
said instruments and accepts and agrees to perform all of the District's obligations therein. 

(ii) Release and Indemnification. The Authority hereby 
releases and forever acquits, discharges, and holds harmless and shall indemnify the District 
from and against any and all liabilities (at law or in equity), obligations, liens, claims, orders, 
rulings, losses, damages, assessments, fines, penalties, injuries, demands, actions, judgments, 
suits, costs, expenses, or disbursements of any kind (including attorneys' fees and costs), which 
may at any time on or after the Effective Date be imposed on, incurred by or asserted against the 
District by any third party, based on, resulting from, in any way relating to, in connection with, 
or arising out of the Water Supply Retention Agreements, except to the extent caused by the 
District's gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

c. Term Sheet Regarding Reacquisition of Table A Water. Upon the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, the Term Sheet Regarding Reacquisition of Table A Water 
approved by the District on or about December 13, 2016 ("Term Sheet") shall automatically 
terminate and this Agreement shall supersede all provisions of the Term Sheet. 

12. Notices. All communications or notices in connection with this Agreement shall 
be in writing and either hand-delivered or sent by U.S. first class mail, postage prepaid, or 
electronic mail followed by written notice sent by U.S. mail and addressed to the Parties as 
follows: 

19913964 
DRAFT 3118/20 

Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
Fray Crease, Water Agency Manager 
130 East Victoria Street, Suite 200 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101-2019 
Tel: (805) 568-3542 
fcrease@cosbpw .net 

Central Coast Water Authority 
Ray Stokes, Executive Director 
255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427-9565 
Tel: (805) 697-5214 
ras@ccwa.com 

Page 5 of7 
Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



California Department of Water Resources 
[ADD CONTACT] 

13. Construction and Interpretation. The Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
terms of this Agreement have been negotiated by the Parties and the language used in this 
Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the Parties to express their mutual 
intent. The Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or rule requiring 
construction against the party causing such instrument to be drafted, or in favor of the party 
receiving a particular benefit under this Agreement. 

14. Entire Agreement and Amendment. This Agreement is the entire 
understanding of the Parties in respect of the subject matter hereof. There are no other promises, 
representations, agreements or watTanties by any of the Parties. This Agreement may only be 
amended by a writing signed by all of the Parties. Each Party waives its right to assert that this 
Agreement was affected by oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel. 

19913964 
DRAFT 3/18/20 

-Signatures Follow on Next Page-

Page 6 of7 
Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date. 

SANTA BARBARA COUNTY FLOOD 
CONTROL AND WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

By:-----,----=~-------
Fray Crease, Water Agency Manager 

Date: _____________ _ 

CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY 

By:_~~-----~~-----
Ray Stokes, Executive Director 

Date: _____________ _ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:_~~~~~-~~-~-
Michael C. Ghizzoni, County Counsel 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: __ ~~~~~~~---
Stephanie Osler Hastings 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF WATER APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
RESOURCES 

By:_=---------~-------
Karla Nemeth, Director 

By:-----~=----=-:-::--=-
Spencer Kenner, Chief Counsel 

Date: _____________ _ 

EXHIBIT A: Schedule of costs paid by District from 1964 to 1985 

19913964 
DRAFT 3118/20 

Page 7 of7 
Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement 

Regarding State Water Supply Contract For Santa Barbara County 



RESOLUTION N0.17-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CENTRAL COAST WATER AUTHORITY APPROVING 

AMENDMENTS OF THE WATER SUPPLY AGREEMENTS BETWEEN 
THE AUTHORITY AND ITS MEMBERS AND 

APPROVING THE ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION, AND RELEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE AUTHORITY, THE COUNTY OF SANTA 

BARBARA FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT AND THE DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

Attachment 2 

WHEREAS, in 1963, following the voters' 1960 approval of the California Water 
Resources Development Bond Act, the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (District) and the Department of Water Resources (DWR), acting 
on behalf of the State of California, executed that certain agreement dated February 26, 
1963 for the supply of State Water Project (SWP) water to Santa Barbara County (State 
Water Supply Contract); and 

WHEREAS, beginning in 1982, the District entered into a series of "Water Supply 
Retention Agreements" with various cities, water districts, and other retailers and end 
users of water in Santa Barbara County (Participant(s)) for the purpose of shifting 
responsibility for the costs associated with the State Water Supply Contract from the 
District to the Participants; and 

WHEREAS, in 1991, eight (8) public agencies that provide retail water supply 
service within Santa Barbara County (Members), all of whom were and are Participants, 
formed the Central Coast Water Authority as a Joint Powers Agency pursuant to 
Government Code section 6500 et seq. by that certain Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement dated August 1, 1991 {Authority); and 

WHEREAS, thereafter, the Authority entered into a series of "Water Supply 
Agreements" with each Member. The Water Supply Agreements assigned each 
Member's contractual rights to SWP water, acquired pursuant to the Member's Water 
Supply Retention Agreement, to the Authority in return for the Authority's delivery of 
SWP water to the Member; and 

WHEREAS, on November 12, 1991, the District and the Authority entered into 
the Transfer of Financial Responsibility Agreement whereby the Authority assumed full 
responsibility for all of the District's obligations pursuant to the State Water Supply 
Contract, which agreement also contemplates a future assignment of the State Water 
Supply Contract to the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority now desires to assume all of the District's rights and 
obligations under the State Water Supply Contract and DWR has indicated its 
willingness to consider releasing the District and assigning the State Water Supply 
Contract to the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, Article 34 of the State Water Supply Contract provides that if in any 
year the District fails or is unable to raise sufficient funds by other means to make the 



Resolution No. 17-04 
Page2 

payments required by the State Water Supply Contract, the Board of Supervisors of the 
County of Santa Barbara, as the governing body of the District, shall levy upon all 
property in the District's jurisdiction not exempt from taxation, a tax or assessment 
sufficient to provide for all payments under the State Water Supply Contract then due or 
to become due within that year; and 

WHEREAS, in order to approve assignment of the State Water Supply Contract, 
DWR requires assurance that the Authority is authorized and empowered to contract 
with DWR, including but not limited to fulfilling the requirements of Article 34 of the State 
Water Supply Contract; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 6502, if authorized by its 
legislative or other governing bodies, a Joint Powers Authority may jointly exercise any 
power common to the contracting parties, including, but not limited to, the authority to 
levy a fee, assessment, or tax, so long as such power is expressly stated in the joint 
powers agreement; and 

WHEREAS, all of the Authority's Members possess the power to levy a tax or 
assessment upon property not exempt from taxation within their respective jurisdictions; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the Authority to accept assignment of 
the State Water Supply Contract to permit the Authority to contract directly with DWR 
and to relieve the District of all responsibility for the State Water Supply Contract, as was 
intended in 1991 at the time the Authority was created; and 

WHEREAS, each and all of the Members desire to authorize the Authority to 
contract with DWR directly; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that amendment of the Joint Exercise 
of Powers Agreement and each Member's Water Supply Agreement is necessary and 
appropriate to authorize the Authority to contract with DWR directly; and 

WHEREAS, the governing body of each Member has or will consider approval of: 
(1) amendment of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement authorizing the Authority to 
contract with DWR directly. along with all necessary and incidental powers as may be 
required by the Authority to carry out the Authority's rights and obligations under the 
State Water Supply Contract, including, but not limited to, the right to levy a tax or 
assessment on all property within the jurisdiction of the Authority not exempt from 
taxation; and (2) amendment of the Member's Water Supply Agreement with the 
Authority acknowledging and agreeing to the Authority's right to levy a tax or 
assessment on all property within the jurisdiction of the Authority not exempt from 
taxation, as may be required by the Authority to carry out the Authority's rights and 
obligations under the State Water Supply Contract. 



Resolution No. 17-04 
Page 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

SECTION 1. 

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein as though 
set forth in full. 

SECTION 2. 

The Board of Directors approves amendments to the Water Supply Agreements 
between the Authority and each of its Members (collectively, the Amendments), whereby 
each Member acknowledges and agrees to the Authority's right to levy a tax or 
assessment on all property within the jurisdiction of the Authority not exempt from 
taxation, as may be required by the Authority to carry out the Authority's lights and 
obligations under the State Water Supply Contract, and authorizes the Chair of the 
Board to execute each of the Amendments. The Amendments are listed below and 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

1. First Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and the 
City of Buellton; · 

2. Third Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and the 
City of Guadalupe; 

3. Second Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and 
the City of Santa Barbara; 

4. Third Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and the 
City of Santa Maria; 

5. First Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and the 
Carpinteria Valley Water District; 

6. First Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and the 
Goleta Water District; 

7. Third Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and the 
Montecito Water District; and 

8. Second Amendment to the Water Supply Agreement between the Authority and 
the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1. 

SECTION 3. 

Subject to the Authority's receipt of each Member's approval and execution of 
both (1) the First Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement creating the 
Central Coast Water Authority, attached hereto as Exhibit B; and (2) amendment of the 
Member's Water Supply Agreement with the Authority (see Exhibit A), the Board of 
Directors agrees to accept assignment of the State Water Supply Contract and 
authorizes the Chair of the Board to execute the Assignment, Assumption, and Release 
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit C. The Board of Directors further authorizes the 
Executive Director of the Authority to negotiate and make such non-substantive 
amendments to the Assignment, Assumption, and Release Agreement as may be 
required to obtain the approval of the District and DWR, subject to the approval of the 
Chair of the Board. 



Resolution No. 17-04 
Page4 

SECTION 4. 

This resolution shall constitute complete and final authority for the Authority to 
execute and deliver the agreements set forth in Section 3 (1) and (2). 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 17-04 was adopted by the Board of Directors 
of the Central Coast Water Authority at a meeting held October 26, 2017. 

[Seal] 

Attest: 

~~ 
Secretary to the Board of 
Directors 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley Water 
District 

Goleta Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

Montecito Water District 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District 
No.1 

VOTING 
PERCENTAGE 

2.21% 

7.64% 

17.20% 

1.15% 

9.50% 

11.47% 

43.19% 

7.64% 

(__)~ ~ 
Jack !Boysen, Chaimnan 

/ 

AYE NAY ABSTAIN 

X 

.X 

X -----------

--

5? 

--

X 

X 

ABSENT 

--

~ 

_K 



Jack Boysen 
Chairman 

Richard Shaikewitz 
Vice Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Farber Schreck 
General Counsel 

Member Agencies 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria VallL'Y 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City of Santa Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santn Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District #1 

Assodale Member 

La Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427-9565 
(B05) 6BB-2292 
FAX: (S05) 686-4700 

@ 

Attachment 3 

September 17, 2018 

Mr. Tom Fayram 
Deputy Public Works Director 
Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
130 East Victoria Street, Suite 200 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101-2019 

Dear Tom: 

I am writing to request the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District {District)'s consideration of the proposed assignment of the 
State Water Contract from the District, the existing State Water Project contractor, to 
the Central Coast Water Authority {CCWA), the agency responsible for the delivery of 
State Water Project {SWP) water to Santa Barbara County. 

The proposed assignment requires approval of the Board of Supervisors, acting on 
behalf of the District, CCWA, and the Department of Water Resources {DWR). As 
further described in this letter, on October 26, 2017, CCWA's Board approved the 
proposed assignment by agreeing to accept assignment of the State Water Contract 
and to release the District from all of its obligations. Thereafter, DWR completed its 
review and consideration of the proposed assignment and recently confirmed by 
email that it will approve the proposed assignment as permitted by Article 41 of the 
State Water Contract following the District's approval. Accordingly, the District's 
consideration and approval of assignment is now requested. 

I. BENEFITS OF THE PROPOSED ASSIGNMENT OF THE STATE WATER 
CONTRACT 

The proposed assignment provides numerous benefits for Santa Barbara County and 
its residents, including: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Aligning State Water Contract decision-making authority with financial arid 
operational responsibility by making CCWA fully and solely responsible for the 
State Water Contract; 
Relieving the District {and thus the County) of any potential financial 
obligations and liability under the State Water Contract; 
Relieving cities and other communities within the County who do not receive 
SWP water from any potential financial obligation under the State Water 
Contract; 
Improving decision-making at the local level by eliminating duplicative and 
unnecessary approvals by the District, with no operational or financial 
responsibility for the State Water Contract on a day-to-day basis; 
Empowering CCWA, which is financially responsible for the State Water 
Contract, with the power to make decisions regarding future SWP projects; 



Mr. Tom Fayram 
September 17, 2018 
Page 2 of5 

6. Providing CCWA members and their ratepayers with direct influence over 
decision-making for SWP projects; and 

7. Increasing local government efficiency, which in turn will increase 
opportunities for innovations in water planning. 

Frequently asked questions about the proposed assignment and CCWA's responses 
are enclosed as Attachment A to this letter. 

II. BACKGROUND AND TIM ELINE 

As you know, the proposed assignment of the State Water Contract is not new- it 
has been a long time in the making. 

The State Water Contract was first executed by the District and DWR in February, 
1963 and amended on numerous occasions after that. 

In 1978, the County of Santa Barbara sponsored a ballot measure authorizing 
issuance of bonds to finance construction of an in-county distribution and treatment 
system for SWP water. The ballot measure was defeated and, following that election, 
the Board of Supervisors considered whether to terminate the 1963 contract due to 
lack of local political support for the importation of SWP water made available by the 
State Water Contract. A number of local cities and water districts urged the Board of 
Supervisors to retain the water, and to find a way to shift the cost of that water to the 
local water agencies and their ratepayers. In response, in the mid-1980s, the District 
executed certain "Water Supply Retention Agreements" with local water agencies 
(Participants) whereby the Participants agreed to assume the annual costs for 45,486 
acre-feet per year of SWP water. 

In 1991, after five years of severe drought, public elections were held in 14 local 
jurisdictions to authorize financing to pay for construction of SWP water distribution 
and treatment facilities. The ballot measures were approved in 11 of the 14 
jurisdictions. In September, 1991, CCWA was formed by eight public agencies- City 
of Buellton, City of Guadalupe, City of Santa Barbara, City of Santa Maria, Goleta 
Water District, Montecito Water District, Carpinteria Valley Water District, and Santa 
Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1 (Members) -all 
of whom are Participants. The Participants also executed certain "Water Supply 
Contracts" with the newly formed CCWA, transferring their rights under the Water 
Supply Retention Agreements to CCWA, in return for water service in an amount 
equivalent to their rights under the Water Supply Retention Agreements. 

In November 1991, the District and CCWA executed the Transfer of Financial 
Responsibility Agreement (TFRA) by which CCWA agreed to assume all of the 
District's financial obligations under the State Water Contract. The TRFA expresses 

45339_1 



Mr. Tom Fayram 
September 17, 2018 
Page 3 of 5 

the District's and CCWA's joint interest in securing DWR's approval of assignment of 
all of the District's rights and obligations under the State Water Contract to CCWA. 

The District and CCWA are continuing their efforts to secure from DWR 
an agreement to release the District from its obligations under the SWP 
Contract to the extent those obligations have been assumed by 
CCWA .... A principal purpose of this Agreement is to ensure that the 
District's financial obligations under the SWP Contract attributable to a 
CCWA Contractor will be completely and fully assumed and satisfied by 
CCWA. .. .' 

Since 1991, there have been periodic efforts to secure DWR's approval of assignment 
of the State Water Contract, as envisioned by TRFA. Prior to 2015, there had been 
some uncertainty as to whether CCWA, a joint powers authority, could satisfy the 
requirements of Article 34 of the State Water Contract obligating the contracting party 
to levy a property tax in the event of its failure to make the required payments to DWR 
under the contract, and therefore whether the State Water Contract could be assigned 
to CCWA. That uncertainty was removed in 2015 when Government Code section 
6502 was amended to clarify that a joint powers authority like CCWA has all powers 
common to the contracting parties, including but not limited to the authority to levy a 
fee, assessment or tax. It is now clear that CCWA is eligible to accept assignment of 
the State Water Contract. Accordingly, on June 22, 2017, the CCWA Board of 
Directors voted unanimously to direct its legal and policy staff to pursue assignment of 
the State Water Contract. 

During October and November, 2017, each of CCWA's Members approved the 
proposed assignment, specifically by amending the 1991 Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement creating CCWA to authorize CCWA to contract with DWR for the delivery 
of water from the State Water Project and their respective Water Supply Agreements 
with CCWA to conform to the amendments to the Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement. The First Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, which 
became effective on December 12, 2017, is enclosed for your reference as 
Attachment B. 

On October 23,2017, CCWA's Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 17-04 
(enclosed for your reference as Attachment C), which (1) approved amendments to 
each of the Members' Water Supply Agreements, and (2) approved assignment of the 
State Water Contract from the District to CCWA and authorized me to negotiate an 
agreement with the District and DWR to effectuate the assignment. CCWA's draft 
proposed Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement to effectuate 
assignment of the State Water Contract is enclosed as Attachment D for your review 
and consideration. 

1 TRFA, Recitals C and J 

45339_1 



Mr. Tom Fayram 
September 17, 2018 
Page 4 of 5 

Subsequently, DWR staff and legal counsel considered the proposed assignment. By 
email dated September 17, 2018, the State Water Project Deputy Director of DWR 
confirmed that DWR will approve assignment of the State Water Contract, as is 
permitted by Article 41 of the contract. DWR's email is enclosed for your reference as 
Attachment E. Accordingly, CCWA requests that the Board of Supervisors, acting on 
behalf of the District, consider the proposed assignment at the next available date. 

Ill. COMPLIANCE WITH CEQA 

CCWA has determined that CEQA does not apply to the proposed assignment 
because the transaction will not affect a change in the environment. The transaction 
will not change the point of delivery, place of use or purpose of use; it will not result in 
a change in the quantity of water delivered, and no new facilities will be constructed. 
All terms and conditions of the State Water Contract will remain the same; only 
CCWA will be substituted for the District. CCWA's Notice of Exemption for the 
proposed assignment is enclosed as Attachment F. 

IV. RESPONSE TO MEMORANDUM FROM CALIFORNIA WATER IMPACT 
NETWORK (C-WIN) 

We have reviewed the April 3, 2018 letter from the California Water Impact Network 
(C-WIN) and attached undated memorandum from Roger Moore (C-WIN Memo) 
raising concerns about the proposed assignment, specifically that the assignment 
would not relieve the District (and thus the County) from future potential liability under 
the State Water Contract. CCWA's General Counsel has responded to each of the 
assertions made in the C-WIN Memo. See Attachment G. Importantly, C-WIN's 
assertions are not supported -the proposed assignment fully relieves the District 
(and thus the County) of all liability under the State Water Contract. In fact, this is one 
of the major benefits of the proposed assignment. 

V. NEXT STEPS 

I would like to set a date for our respective agencies to meet and discuss the 
proposed assignment and any questions or concerns you may have, and to finalize a 
draft Assignment, Assumption, And Release Agreement for consideration by the 
Board of Supervisors on behalf of the District. It has now been more than a year 
since my Board directed me to pursue assignment of the State Water Contract, as 
was initially envisioned by the District and CCWA in 1991. For this reason, I am 
eager to set a date as your earliest convenience. 

45339_1 



Mr. Tom Fayram 
September 17, 2018 
Page 5 of 5 

I look forward to working with you on this important project for Santa Barbara County 
and its residents. 

M/9inc7Jerel_'i A_. jl. j jl) /. J/'f (ti )/~---·· 
Ra~kes 
Ex;pt~e Director 

Attachments: 

A. Frequently Asked Questions re. Assignment of the State Water Contract 
B. First Amendment to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Creating the 

Central Coast Water Authority 
C. CCWA Resolution No. 17-04 (without exhibits)2 

D. DRAFT Assignment, Assumption, and Release Agreement 
E. Correspondence from DWR confirming DWR will approve the proposed 

assignment 
F. CCWA Notice of Exemption re. Assignment of State Water Contract 
G. Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck Response to Comments from C-WIN 

cc: Karla Nemeth, DWR Director 
Joel Ledesma, DWR State Water Project Deputy Director 
CCWA Board of Directors 
Shad Springer, City of Santa Maria 
Cruz Ramos, City of Guadalupe 
Rose Hess, City of Buellton 
Chris Dahlstrom, Santa Ynez Improvement District, ID#1 
John Mcinnes, Goleta Water District 
Rebecca Bjork, City of Santa Barbara 
Nick Turner, Montecito Water District 
Bob McDonald, Carpinteria Valley Water District 
Stephanie Hastings, Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck 
Michael Ghizzoni, County Counsel, County of Santa Barbara 

2 The exhibits to Resolution No. 17.()4 are voluminous. They include amendments to the Water Supply 
Agreements for each of CCWA's Members. If you require copies of these amendments, I am happy to 

provide them to you under separate cover. 

45339_1 



Eric Friedman 
Otairman 

Ed Andrisek 
Vice Chairman 

Ray A. Stokes 
Executive Director 

Brownstein Hyatt 
Farber Schrecl< 
General Counsel 

Member Agencies 

City of Buellton 

Carpinteria Valley 
Water District 

City of Guadalupe 

City of Santn Barbara 

City of Santa Maria 

Goleta Water District 

Montecito Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water 
Conservation District, 
Improvement District #1 

Associate Member 

La Cumbre Mutual 
Water Company 

255 Industrial Way 
Buellton, CA 93427-9565 
(805) 688-2292 
FAX: (805) 686-4700 

@ 

March 23, 2020 

Honorable Gregg Hart, Chair and 
Members ofthe Board of Supervisors 
County of Santa. Barbara 
105 East Anapamu Street 

. Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Dear Chair Hart and Members of the Board of Supervisors: 

Attachment 4 

On behalf of the Central Coast Water Authority (CCWA), I am writing to request that 
the Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors (Board), acting in its capacity as the 
governing hoard of the Santa Barbara County Flood Control and Water Consenration 
District (District), formally approve assignment of the State Water Contract from the 
District to CCW A, as described in the proposed Assignment, Assumption and Release 
Agreement (Assignment Agreement), at your earliest convenience. A copy of the 
proposed Assignment Agreement is included as Attachment A to !Iris letter. 

The District and CCW A have been considering the contract assigument issue since at 
least 1991 and in earnest since 2015. Those discussions have been productive, albeit 
prolonged. It is time to bring the issue to a decision, for one simple reason: we are out 
of time. Several significant decisions and projects related to the continued operation, 
management and funding of the State Water Project(SWP) and delivery of supplemental 
water to Santa Barbara County will require review and consideration witlrin the next 
twelve months. These projects are of critical fmancial importance to CCW A's Members 
and the other participants. Accordingly, the State Water Contract should be assigned to 
CCWA. 

.For all of the reasons provided in CCWA 's prior correspondence to the Board regarding 
the proposed assignment (see correspondence from Ray Stokes dated January 31, 2019 
and September 17, 2018), we believe that CCWA is the right public agency to evaluate 
the merits of these upcoming decisions and projects. CCWA's eight members 
(Members) 1 are all public agencies whose elected officials are directly responsible to 
their ratepayers and voters who fund the cost of the SWP facilities and the supplemental 
water supply tl1at serves more than 85 percent of the County's residents and businesses. 
The impacts of the upcoming decisions regarding the SWP will be felt directly by these 
ratepayers and voters, and they are entitled to have a direct voice in those decisions. 

Moreover, by assigning the State Water Contract to CCW A, the County will insulate 
itself from all of the fiscal and operational aspects of the SWP, including future projects. 
The assignment will result in a full release of the County from all potential liability for 
the State Water Contract and CCWA will be fully and directly responsible for it. As 

1 CCWA's Members are: City of Buellton, City of Guadalupe, City of Santa Barbara, City of Santa 
Maria, Carpinteria Valley Water District, Goleta Water District, Montecito Water District, and Santa 
Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1. 



you know, althougl1 the District remains the contracting party to the State Water 
Contract with the Department of Water Resources (DWR), since 1991, CCW A has been 
100% responsible for the State Water Contract and the delivery of SWP water to Santa 
Barbara County and CCW A's Members and other participants are responsible for I 00% 
of the costs. CCW A also owns, operates and maintains the delivery system and 
treatment facilities that permit the delivery of SWP water to Santa Barbara County. 
Since 1991, the County has not paid a nickel toward the cost of SWP water or any of 
the facilities that deliver SWP water to Santa Barbara County. Nevertheless, the District 
remains the contracting party. In the event of a CCW A defanlt, the District, and thus 
the County of Santa Barbara and County tax payers, even those that do not receive SWP 
water, would be liable. 

In 2017, all ei cl!t Members of CCW A individually approved assignment of the State 
Water Contract from the District to CCW A. Of the 42 elected officials who considered 
assignment of the State Water Contract from the District to CCWA, only two voted 
against assignment, and one (then City of Santa Barbara Councilmember Gregg Hart) 
abstained. 

On October 26, 2017, CCWA's Board of Directors unanimously approved a draft of the 
proposed Assignment Agreement, specifically agreeing to assume all responsibility for, 
and liability regarding, the State Water Contract, and the full release of the County from 
all responsibility and liability. (See CCWA Resolution No. 17-04 previously provided 
to the Board.) DWR has also, informally, agreed to assignment of the State Water 
Contract. (See correspondence from DWR dated September 17, 2018 previously 
provided to the Board.) DWR will not provide its final approval until the Board, on 
behalf of the District, has approved the assignment. 

When the Board last considered assignment in February, 2019, it instructed District staff 
to investigate a nUlllber of issues before returning to the Board for formal consideration 
of assignment. CCW A staff has worked diligently with District staff since February, 
20 I 9 to address and/or respond to all of the issues raised by the Board. CCW A has also 
addressed an additional issue regarding out-of-county sales of SWP water raised by 
District staff. A summary of CCWA's response to these issues is provided in 
Attachment B to this letter. Accordingly, the only remaining action is the Board's 
decision on the assignment. 

As described in detail in CCWA's prior correspondence regarding this matter (see 
correspondence from Ray Stokes dated January 31, 2019 and September 17, 2018), 
assignment of the State Water Contract provides numerous benefits for the County and 
Santa Barbara County residents and ratepayers. Most importantly, assignment aligns 
State Water Contract decision-making authority with financial and operational 
responsibility by making CCWA fully and solely responsible for the State Water 
Contract. At the same time, assignment releases the District, the County and the 
residents of Santa Barbara County who do not receive SWP water from all potential 
liability for the State Water Contract. Tl:lls result aligns with the County's oft-stated 
interest in being relieved of the obligations and liability for the State Water Contract. 

47307 _l.docx 



What's more, assignment of the State Water Contract would streamline decision-making 
regarding the delivery of supplemental water at the local level and eliminate redundant 
and unneces&ary government that is costly to County rate7payers, delays decision
making and is unnecessarily complex. Because the. District has no role in the delivery 
of SWP water to Santa Barbara County, there is no rational basis for the District to 
continue as the contracting party. 

Finally, it sh~u!d be noted that CCW A's management of the State Water Contract has 
been exemplary. Since 1991, CCWA has never missed a single payment to the State of 
California, and its financial management and reporting systems have been recognized 
for their excellence. CCW A has been scrupulous in monitoring and auditing the costs 
imposed by the State on CCW A, and CCW A has been one of the statewide leaders in 
efforts to promote accuracy and transparency in the State's cost accounting for the State 
Water Project. As a result of CCW A's expert and prudent management of the delivery 
of State Water Project water to Santa Barbara County, CCW A has demonstrated that it 
has the technical, financial and managerial expertise to contract with the State for the 
delivery of SWP water. In sum, CCW A has expertly and prudently managed the State 
Water Contract for 27 years and it will continue to do so as the contracting party for 
SWP water for Santa Barbara County. 

I respectfully request that the Board of Supervisors approve, as soon as possible, 
assignment of the State Water Contract from the District to CCWA. 

Sincerely, 

Eric Friedman 
Chair of the Board of Directors 

Attaclunents: 

A: Assignment, Assumption and Release Agreement 
B: CCW A Responses to County Board of Supervisor Questions/Issues 

cc: Karla·Nemeth, Director, DWR 
Spencer Kenner, DWR Chief Counsel 
CCW A Member Agencies 
Mona Miyasato, Chief Executive Officer, Santa Barbara County 
Tom Fayram, Water Resources Deputy Director, Santa Barbara County 
Michael Ghizzoni, County Counsel, Santa Barbara County 
Johannah Hartley, Deputy County Counsel, Santa Barbara County, 
Ray Stokes, Executive Director, Central Coast Water Authority 
Stephanie Hastings, General Counsel, Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck 

47307_1.doc:x 



Los Olivos Community 
Services District I ntro & 
Update 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District I D 1 

November 17, 2020 

, 
ca 
(D 
:I 
a. 
I» -.. 
C1) 

3 ->< . 



Purpose For This Afternoon's 
Presentation 

• Provide an Update on the District's Mission and 
Progress 

• Develop Working Relationship in Order to Best 
Serve Our Common Constituents 

• Understand IDl Priorities 



Los Olivos CSD and SYRWCD-101: 
Common Goals 

• Serve Common Constituents 

• Provide Infrastructure for the Common Good and 
Public Health 

• Protect and Improve the Shallow Groundwater Aquifer 
Quality, Which Benefits the Deep Groundwater Aquifer 
Long Term 

• Provide Quality, Reliable, Cost Effective Services to the 
Community 



Los Olivos CSD Mission 

• Formed January 2018 to provide a funding 
mechanism for the building and operating facilities 
necessary to collect, treat, and reclaim wastewater, 
and improve groundwater quality in unincorporated 
Los Olivos 

Los Olivos CSD Project Components 

1. Develop Residential On site Wastewater Treatment 
System (OWTS) Requirements 

2. Funding Outreach for Program Development, 
Construction and Operation 

3. Implementation of a Local Groundwater Monitoring 
Program; and 

4. Phased Collection and Treatment 



\ 
4 ... 

I 

District Boundary Map with 
Commercial Zone in Red 

Formation 1 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
j S~tntoY,tr:t:~t 

I 

R.tr-<;ht> c.-~ o• ... -."' '~ ll.lnch 

T 

-- RobJ:u A\'t:..:::-



Los Olivos CSD Mission Progress 
• Approved Project Description for Collection and 

Treatment Phase 1 (Downtown Commercial Zone) 

• Work Underway 
• Preliminary Design 
• Groundwater Hydro-geology Investigation and Report 
• Groundwater Quality Monitoring Plan 
• Siting of Package WWTP 
• Preliminary Design & Environmental work 

• Relationship with County BOS, EHS, RWQCB 
• Grant/ Loan Funding Applications 



Questions & Comments 

Thank You 



Los Olivos Community Services District 
PO Box 345 
Los Olivos, California 93441 

Adopted by Resolution 2019-04 

8-14-19 

Los Olivos Community Wastewater Program 

Project Description 

OUR PURPOSE 

The Los Olivos Community Services District (District) was formed by voters in 2018 to 
provide a funding mechanism for the development, building and operation of facilities 
necessary to collect and treat wastewater in the unincorporated community of Los 
Olivos. 

PROJECT GOAL 

The purpose of the Los Olivos Wastewater Reclamation Program Project Description 
(Project Description) is to define a strategy to provide economically viable wastewater 
treatment and reclamation solutions to the residents and property owners within the 
District that meets public health needs and the regulatory requirements of the Regional 
Water Quality Board (RWQCB). 

The Los Olivos Wastewater Reclamation Program is comprised of four distinct 
components, each being interdependent and implemented concurrently: 

1. Development of Residential Onsite Wastewater Treatment System (OWTS) 
Requirements 

2. Financial Outreach and Assistance for Program Development, Construction and 
Operation 

3. Implementation of a Local Groundwater Monitoring Program; and 

4. Phased Collection and Treatment 

DEVELOPMENT OF RESIDENTIAL OWTS REQUIREMENTS 

Currently, residential Onsite Wastewater Treatment System (OWTS) in Los Olivos are 
governed by the Santa Barbara County Public Health Department's (County EHS) Local 
Area Management Plan (LAMP). 

Los Olivos residents who seek County EHS guidance on OWTS-related issues have 
been repeatedly met with ambiguous and indistinct direction regarding dwelling 
expansion, system failure, need for installation of an advanced treatment system (ATS), 
existing system maintenance and other issues and costs associated with requirements 
for connection to a community collection and treatment system. 



LOCSD Project Description 

Page 2 of 6 

To resolve this the District will develop a customized Local Area Management Plan 
(LAMP) that addresses the conditions specific to the Los Olivos Community Services 
District Area. This Plan will be similar to the County's LAMP but tailored to Los Olivos. 
This Plan will include local District standards and policies and provide clear guidance on 
OWTS matters including operations of conventional systems, routine maintenance, 
management of existing low and high-risk systems within the community, dwelling 
expansion , system failure, requirements and need for installation of an advanced 
treatment system (ATS) and requirements for connection to a community collection and 
treatment system. 

The District's LAMP will endeavor to establish requirements that are equal in nature and 
application to those required for all County parcels based on existing site conditions. 

The District will be charged with the administration of the RWQCB approved Los Olivos 
LAMP to include the State mandatory reporting requirements. Permitting and 
enforcement of the LAMP will remain with the County EHS through an agreement 
approved by the County and the District extending the County EHS authority to within 
the District. 

The creation of a District governed LAMP benefits residents by enabling the District to 
seek out grants and low interest loans, competitive procurement of select vendors, and 
consortium-based pricing from service providers. 

FINANCIAL OUTREACH AND ASSISTANCE 

Concurrently, the District- having held Public Community Workshops which presented 
potential project alternatives, a project approach and Project Description - is now able to 
seek Local, State and Federal funding mechanisms to minimize property owners and 
business economic impacts associated with implementing the defined Program. 

With this well-defined Project Description, the District will pursue available grants and 
funding for all elements and components of the Program. 

Every potential source of funds will be explored to minimize any eventual Fee 
Assessment that must be established in accordance with State Law (Proposition 218), 
and as required by the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). 

The District will also seek additional sources to augment these economic impacts that 
may include but are not limited to public-private partnerships (P3), identifying matching 
fund opportunities, Program Privatization, and commercial/private financing alternatives. 

A public-private partnership (P3) is a cooperative arrangement between two or more 
public and private sector entities , typically long-term in nature. They are primarily used 
for infrastructure provision , such as the building and equipping of schools, hospitals, 
transport systems, water and sewer systems. 



LOCSD Project Description 

Page 3 of 6 

IMPLEMENTATION OF A LOCAL GROUNDWATER MONITORING 
PROGRAM 

The District remains committed to proactively work with the residents of Los Olivos, 
regulatory community and other stakeholders to develop an economically acceptable, 
technically feasible and timely solution to the potential impacts OWTS density has in our 
community. 

However, one of the basic tenants to this approach is dependent on the development 
and implementation of a comprehensive groundwater monitoring program. Historical 
assessments, plans and feasibility studies developed specifically for Los Olivos validate 
the need for further groundwater characterization in order to: 

• Determine the nature and extent of groundwater impacts associated with 
OWTS in and around the Community of Los Olivos, 

• Investigate known upgradient sources impacting groundwater quality in Los 
Olivos, 

• Provide information to address data gaps associated with site specific 
conditions and critical modeling considerations including infiltration rates, 
permeability and other geological, hydrological and geotechnical parameters 
not currently available, and 

• Establish baseline conditions that can be utilized to monitor the effectiveness 
of treatment and mitigation measures implemented in the Los Olivos 
Community. 

The District will work closely with the Santa Barbara County Environmental Health 
Services (EHS) and the Regional Water Control Board (RWQCB) to develop and 
finance a groundwater monitoring work plan that establishes the number, type and 
locations for monitoring locations, a suite of analytical and geotechnical sampling 
parameters, along with frequency and reporting requirements. 

Once the work plan is approved , installation of monitoring points and ongoing 
monitoring will occur. The results of the initial and ongoing monitoring will be used to 
influence subsequent treatment phases, if necessary, within the District. 

The analytical and geotechnical data obtained during groundwater monitoring point 
installation, will also be used to identify and site locations favorable for aquifer recharge 
and existing contaminant mitigation. 

PHASED COLLECTION AND TREATMENT 

Historic documentation establishes the fact that there are a large number of small to 
very small lots in the Los Olivos Commercial Core, areas of high OWTS density and 
historic records of system failures. These factors may contribute to groundwater impacts 
from nitrate migration from OWTS. 



LOCSD Project Description 

Page 4 of6 

This Commercial Core area has been selected as the location for the initial phase 
(Phase I) under this Program. The Commercial Core has been identified as the area of 
highest density, use (volume) and nitrate loading and has been recommended for action 
in multiple reports specific to OWTS impacts in Los Olivos. Subsequent phases into 
adjacent high-density areas will be determined by the results of groundwater monitoring. 

The Commercial Core area is easily defined by Zoning (C-2), easily expanded, centrally 
located and its topological nature allows for the most expedient, least complex and 
economically acceptable setting to initiate this Program. 

The District will design, site, permit, procure, construct and manage a Los Olivos 
Wastewater Reclamation Facility to include the associated collection and transport 
infrastructure required to provide economically viable wastewater treatment and 
reclamation solution to District residents and property owners. This system will address 
public health needs while also meeting the regulatory requirements of the RWQCB. 

Adjacent properties outside the C-2 zone, will be permitted to connect to the system at 
their own cost and as capacity allows. 

Treatment Facility 

The proposed Treatment Facility will be consistent with the polices and development 
standards of the Santa Barbara County Comprehensive Plan , including the Santa Ynez 
Valley Community Plan and the Santa Barbara County Land Use and Development 
Code. 

The system will be designed for potential future expansion and to provide treatment that 
improves wastewater quality before it is reused , recycled or discharged to the 
environment. Reclaimed wastewater would be treated to levels compliant with California 
Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22 discharge requirements to allow for: 

• Beneficial reuse through underground infiltration 

• Groundwater recharge 

• Strategic flush ing of existing nitrate/contaminates 

• Local irrigation as site conditions allow 

Because the project will generate in excess of 10,000 gallons per day, exceeding the 
10,000 gallons per day County EHS limit, it will be under the jurisdiction of the Central 
Coast Regional Wastewater Quality Control Board, who would be the lead regulator 
agency, review the system and issue all appropriate permits. 

The treatment facility will be comprised of a high-efficiency, low odor, expandable 
Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) package plant sized to serve Phase I needs and sited to 
accommodate modular expansion should further study warrant a facility expansion . The 
facility will be operated by a California licensed and properly trained wastewater 
treatment plant operator, who will be responsible for ensuring proper operation and 
maintenance of plant equipment as well as required reporting. 



LOCSD ProJect Description 

Page 5 of 6 

The architectural style will be consistent with the historical architectural details of Los 
Olivos. Roof materials will consist of earth tone colors and landscaped to blend in locally 
to reduce visual impacts. 

Collection System 

The collection system will include a subsurface wastewater collection structure 
consisting of gravity pipelines, lift stations as required, and effluent handling facilities 
returning drinking water quality reclaimed water to customers or the groundwater basin 
for beneficial reuse. 

The collection system "backbone" will consist of underground gravity sewer pipe that will 
be strategically placed under community streets and alleys to allow for the closest 
possible connection to parcels in the high-density water use areas of the downtown C-2 
Commercial Core and small-lot residential parcels near the downtown core. 
Maintenance holes and an "end of the line" lift station will be provided , with an 
associated force-main (pressure main) to move the wastewater to the MBR package 
plant for treatment, as necessary. 

Structures will be connected to the District-owned collection system via privately owned 
laterals. Existing septic systems and leach fields will be abandoned as required by local 
codes. Certain laterals may be successfully connected with gravity flow while many may 
require small private grinder pumps to move the sewage into the collection system. 

District participation in lateral, grinder pump and septic abandonment costs would 
depend on grant and funding sources. 

Potential expansion of the collection system, as with the treatment system, will be 
determined based on results of the groundwater monitoring and in coordination with the 
RWQCB. 

Operations and Maintenance 

The collection and treatment systems will be operated and maintained initially by 
contract system operators. System costs will be shared in an equitable manner by those 
connected to and benefitting from the facility. The District will review and consider 
established formulas for this participation that may include zoning, water-use, fixture 
unit counts, etc. 

Parcels not connected initially will be subject to the District's LAMP and will contribute to 
the cost of management, inspection and enforcement of this plan and operating costs of 
the District. 

Ongoing monitoring and reporting will occur in accordance with operating and discharge 
permits required by the Board. 

Treatment Facility Siting 

The District will procure a site for the package plant. Siting factors will include: 

• Availability of land, 

• Surface and subsurface suitability, 



LOCSD ProJect Description 

Page 6 of 6 

• Economics of procurement, 

• Proximity to the collection system and effluent discharge locations, and 

• Local, state and federal requirements. 

Location and siting of the facility remains under examination. Given the above siting 
factors , the District prefers that the location be within District boundaries and south of 
State Route 154. Currently, potential locations include: 

• County parcels 

• County Right of Ways 

• Institutional parcels including churches and schools 

• Commercial parcels, and 

• Private land 

Construction Implementation and Timing 

Construction will generally consist of the following phases: 

1. Project planning, preliminary design, environmental documentation 
preparation and review, and permitting. 

2. Preliminary design, budgeting , and initiation of the Proposition 218 
assessment process. 

3. Final Design, including preparation of plans, specifications and estimates. 
The package plant will be a "design build" component. 

4. Advertising and bidding of the various components. The District will procure 
professional and construction services in accordance with the State 
Contracting Code. The package plant will be built offsite, most other 
components will be built by contractors on-site. 

5. Service lateral connections will be coordinated with and completed in 
conjunction with sewer trunk-main installation. 

6. Package plant start-up. 

7. System Operation and Maintenance. 

Construction timing will be affected by many factors, including funding process, 
environmental process, and construction duration. Lateral connection is anticipated to 
require significant property owner participation and cooperation . 

The District anticipates a minimum of three years to design, review, permit, finance and 
construct the complete Phase I project. 



















Agenda Item XI. A. 

DRAFr RESOLUTION No. XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
SANr A YNEZ RivER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N 0.1 

APPROVING THE AUTOMATIC ANNuAL ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CAPITAL FAOLmES CHARGES 
AND METER INSTALLATION FEES CONTAINED IN APPENDIX "C" AND APPENDIX "D" 

OF THE DISTRICT'S RULES AND REGULATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No.1, is empowered to prescribe, revise, and collect charges for services 
and facilities funded by it; and 

WHEREAS, a capital facilities charge is an element in the District's overall financing plan; 
and 

WHEREAS, revenues from capital facilities charges are available for the proportionate 
costs of system improvements and to pay for expansions; and 

WHEREAS, State law precludes the use of such revenues to pay any portion of operation 
and maintenance expenses; and 

WHEREAS, State law (Government Code § 66000 et seq.) requires that a reasonable 
relationship exist between the amount of capital facilities charge and the cost of the associated 
public facility; and 

WHEREAS, water users must be treated in a consistent manner and funds collected must 
be used for certain capital purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the District and the vast majority of water agencies in California require that 
water users pay the costs of facilities provided to serve them; and 

WHEREAS, the alternative to collecting charges and fees from new development and 
water users is raising charges and fees to current water users, which is not equitable; and 

WHEREAS, the charges and fees are collected during the construction period as a new 
customer or new level of use begins to utilize the water facilities; and 

WHEREAS, on October 19,1993, the District Board approved Resolution No. 422 adopting 
and establishing the installation and capital facility charges and provided that each year on 
January 1, the capital facilities charges shall be automatically adjusted by an increment based on 
the change in the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (20 cities average) from 
a base index of 5167; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 603 and Section 709 of the District's Rules and 
Regulations, the District's capital facilities charges relating to water service connections and 
meters shall be automatically adjusted each year on January 1 by an increment based on the 
change in the ENR Construction Cost Index to reflect actual costs of installation labor, parts, 
materials, and equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the ENR Construction Cost Index is 11,455 as of October 2020; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY REsOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez 
River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, as follows: 

1. That APPENDIX "C' Installation and Capital Facilities Charges Pursuant to Article 6, 
Section 603 of the District's Rules and Regulations, as approved herein, be attached to 
the District's Rules and Regulations, effective on January 1, 2021; and, 

2. That APPENDIX "D" Capital Facilities Charges and Meter Installation Fees for 
Services from Main Extensions Pursuant to Article 7, Section 709 of the District's Rules 
and Regulations, as approved herein, be attached to the District's Rules and 
Regulations, effective on January 1,2021. 



WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, being the duly qualified and acting President and Secretary 
respectively, of the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No.1, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution was 
adopted and passed by the Board of Trustees at a Regular Meeting of the District held on the 15th 
day of December 2020, by the following roll call vote: 

A YES, in favor thereof, Trustees: 

NOES, Trustees: 
ABSENT, Trustees: 

Jeff Oay, President 
A TrEST: 

1:'ct .R,/:~ .r~: '& ·c·.o 

Mary Martone, Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



Lot Size 

10,000 sg. ft. 

APPENDIX "C" 

INSTALLATION AND CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES 
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 6, SECfiON 603 

(Effective January 1, 2021) 

Ca:Qital 
Minimum Maximum Ratio to Facilities 
Meter Size Flow Rate 5/8" meter Charge Installation Charge 

5/8" 20 1.0 $ 4,145.73 The meter and 
>10,000 sq. ft. to 3/4" 30 1.2 $ 4,974.88 service installation 
1 acre charge shall equal 
>1 to 3 acres 1'' 50 2.0 $ 8,291 .47 the cost of 
>3 to 10 acres 11/z II 100 4.0 $ 16,582.93 installation as 
>10 acres 2" 160 6.4 $ 26,532.68 determined by 

3" 350 12.8 $ 53,065.38 the District from 
4" 1,000 18.0 $ 74,623.18 time to time 
6" 2,000 40.0 $165,829.30 
8" 3,500 64.0 $265,326.94 

For parcels with multiple Domestic or Rural Residential meters, the meter sizes (e.g. 5/8" and 
1" inch) may be added to result in a combined equivalent size that satisfies the minimum meter 
size requirements. 



APPENDIX "D" 

CAPITAL FACILITIES CHARGES AND METER INSTALLATION FEES 
FOR SERVICES FROM MAIN EXTENSIONS 

PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 7, SECTION 709 

(Effective January 1, 2021) 

Capital Meter 
Minimum Facilities Installation 

Lot Size Meter Size Charge Fee Total 

10,000 Sq. Ft. 5/8" $4,145.73 $456.58 $4,602.31 

>10,000 to 1 acre 3/4'' $4,974.88 $482.44 $5,437.32 

>1 to 3 acres 1" $8,291.47 $557.33 $8,848.80 

>3 to 10 acres 1-1/2" $16,582.93 $1,109.73 $17,692.66 

> 10 acres 2"STD $26,532.68 $1,332.41 $27,865.09 
2" CPBM $26,532.68 $2,155.98 $28,688.66 

3"STD $53,065.38 $2,195.85 $55,261.23 
3" CPBM $53,065.38 $3,371.04 $56,436.42 



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER FORM 

CHANGE ORDER NUMBER: 1 

BASE CONTRACT AMOUNT: $612,650 
PRIOR CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT: 0 

TOTAL CONTRACT PRIOR TO THIS CHANGE ORDER: 612,650 
THIS CHANGE ORDER AMOUNT: 7,900 
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT: $620,550 

PROJECT: Lateral Replacement Project - Phase 2 

Agenda Item XI. B. 

DATE: 11/10/2020 

ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT 
DATE: 1/2212020 

OWNER: 
CONTRACTOR: 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 
Tierra Contracting, Inc. 

Change Order Items Addition Deduction Days Ext. 

1) lnstall6-inch cross in lieu of planned 6x6x6 tee at the Cota/Tivola street intersection, $14,310 
alter pipeline alignment using 45 degree bends, install 3 additional 6" gate valves. 

2) Remove 6x6x6 tee installation from contract work. $7,500 

3) Additional steel plate rental for construction delay due to COVID-19. $1,090 

NET TOTAL: $7,900 

We hereby agree to make the above change subject to the terms of this order for the sum of: I $7,9oo I 
Seven Thousand Nine Hundred only Dollars. 

Recommended by Engineer: Approved by Owner: Accepted by Contractor: 

~ \ ~ 
Date: Date: [)a~: 11 /12fl._01'J. 

-- ---- - -- - - - - --- ---- -- -~- -----

NOTE: The documents supporting this Change Order, inducting any drawings and estimates of cost, if required, are attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. This Change Order shall not be considered as such until it has been signed by the Owner, and the Contractor. Upon final approval, distribution of 

copies will be made as required. 

CHANGES: All workmanship and materials called for by this Change Order shall be fully in accordance with the original Contract Doa.Jments insofar as the 
same may be applied without conflict to the conditions set forth by this Change Order. The time for completing the Contract will not be extended unless 
expressly provided for in this Change Order. 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Santa Y nez River Water Conservation District 
Improvement District No.1 
P.O. Box 157 
Santa Y nez, California 93460 THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDER 

ONLY 
(Gov. Code§ 27361.6) 

Exempt from recording fee pursuant to 
Government Code § 6103 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1. The undersigned is an owner/agent of the interest or estate stated below. 

2. The ful1 name of the owner is Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement 
District No.1. 

3. The street address of the owner is 3622 Sagunto Street, Santa Ynez, California, 93460. 

4. The nature of the interest or estate is: The District owns and maintains existing and newly installed 
water works facilities located in the vicinity ofthe towns of Santa Ynez and Ballard. 

5. Works of improvement on the properties herein described were completed and the owner accepted the 
project as complete as authorized by the owner's governing body on November 17,2020, which is the 
completion date pursuant to California Civil Code Section 3086. The project included: 1) Excavation, 
installation, and burial of new water lines, including approximately 1,040 feet of 4" C900 PVC, 
1,160 feet of 6" C900 PVC, and appurtenances; 2) Pressure testing and disinfection of each newly 
installed water line; 3) Tie-in of the new water lines to existing water mains; 4) Tie-in of all 
existing water service connections; and 5) Replacement of asphalt and gravel surfaces. 

6. The name of the contractor for such works of improvement is Tierra Contracting, Inc. 

7. The sites of work consisted of two private driveways and within the Rights-of-Way of five dead
end streets in the vicinity ofthe towns of Santa Ynez and Ballard. 

8. The property on which said work of improvement was completed is in the County of Santa Barbara, 
State of California. 

Dated 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 

Paeter Garcia, General Manager 

CERTIFICATION MADE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY (CCP 2015.5) 

I certify (or declare) under penalty of petjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct to the 
best of my knowledge: 

Paeter Garcia, General Manager Date and Place 



Agenda Item XI . C. 

SCAtJtJFn 

FEB 2 ~2010 

LETTER 0 R SMITTAL 
To: Howard Ko lb 

Organization: 
Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board 
895 Aerovista Place, Suite I 0 I 
San Luis Obispo, CA 9340 I 
Project Name: The Inn at Mattei 's Tavern 

Date: February 26, 2020 

- --------
RRM Office Location: 
3765 S. Higuera St., See. I 02 
San Luis Obispo, CA 9340 I 
p: (805) 543-1794 
f: (80_5) ~43-4609 

From: Michael Hamilton 

r; ,rm, 
-~- '!.~!., t desig~ :i_ 
, ~~ group ( 
L:..·-... .. -~-- .• , __ , ~ .J.J 

- - ~ - ~ - .. ---- ---- -·-
Project Number: 
NJA 

W e Transmit: 
!81 Via: Hand Delivered 

For Your: 
~ Approval 

0 Use 

T he Following: 
0 Drawings 

T itle: Manager of Civil Engineering 

\N\)~ ~---· 
0 Distribution to Parties 

!29 Review & Comments 

0 Shop D~wing Prints 

0 Information 

0 Record 

0 Letter 

0 Specifications 

0 Change Order 

0 Shop Drawing Reproducible 

[gj Reports 

0 Product Literature 

0 Confidentiality Agree. 

2126/20 Application (Form 200) 

2 2126/20 Report of Waste Discharge 

RAILWAY JONA TA, LLC 
~50 RAILWAY AVENUE 
LOS OLIVOS, CA 93441 

FIRST REPUBUC BANK 
11-816813210 

PAYlOTHE State \-later Resourcas Cont r ol Board i 
OAJ- ROF ---- -- - ----- -·----·------- -------------·------ -- ·-------

Five Thousand One Hundred Forty Five and 00/100 
~- -- - -------- - ------------· -- -- ----------

-· 

·0 
!-~ttei' s Tavern 

---

RAILWAY JONATA, LLC 

3301 

2/11/2020 

$ 5 ,145 .00 

3301 

-..!~l.. 

\-t 

,:. 
L' 

.,. 



THE INN AT MATTEI'S TAVERN 

REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

Prepared by: RRM Design Group 

Prepared for: Mattei's Tavern Holdings LLC 

Project Manager: Michael C. Hamilton, P.E. 

February 21, 2020 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

\. 

w---~::1.'- -\ \ - ' -

\ 
( ~ 

"' \\ \ I; 
\ 100' CREEK SETB"CK J::._---

1, ,.\ '· ~- ;. ,..L,. ~ 
I" - .J 

\ 
jf'r-l lOPOf BANK • -~·;·::' ·_ ·. \ 2 

· ... 
. . ~ I . . , ,~~:~, . : 

·-\\ ~ •'' . \(, . 
', ·.\ ,,, \ / 
~ . \(1 \\' ' ·. 
' <> \ ·,~ I _€ 
\\ . 'Y" \.... 

;I 

., 
J 1 

, .... _, ..... ] 
:,1 1t 

r 1 .. .. - -i 

~~ ~ ~-
.: .;,, .: I • 

~ ~ ·.\ t; "1~-
J -~ '"'~ . 

\ \ ~,J\~ ~~->-~ 

~ ~~~ 
PERFORJo TEO PVC 
DISTRIBUTION LINE 

NON-WOVEN 
GEOTEXTILE FABRIC ) 

I 

I 
I 

1- WIDTH VARIES .I NO.2 STONE 

~)~!ILTRATION DETAIL 

THE INN AT 
MATIEIS TAVERN 

INFILTRATION FACILITY 
EXHIBIT 1 

r.. '( s ···· ~" _;{ , , 
i.__!__ --, ~ 

t I I ~ ·. ' . -, ~ I; 
~----l 
t"'""" ..... _ -~L 

I '· I I ._ . • ..,.t ..... 

... \. 

" ...... 
\ \ - - . " ~ 
-c -_f.~ -~~-~-~'i 

1-:: ~:~~~!'~~~~-~- ' 

Cii 

'>U.S. 

I. X 

COMP"ClED GRJo VEL 
P"VING "NO B"SE 
BUI.DING PAPER COVER 
OVER ROCK FILL 

60 120 

SCALE: I" • 60' 

~.::.:; ... •,:.;., . . ·~· 
r. 
~~ 
·.< 

I . /. . 
. I ••~ 

DISPERSAL 
AREA 

Ia 

lb 

lc 

EXPANSION 

180 

LEGEND 

• ./""4""-

..... 

, . 

•'' 

•' .• 

ZONE I· DISPERS"L AREA PER 
DETAil A TO "CCOMMODATE EHS 
APPUCATION RATES (R"TES V"RY) 

ZONE 2· 100 PERCENT EXPANSION 
DISPERSAl AREA PER DETAil A 

6' OlA. 18' DEEP SEEPAGE PIT PER 
DETAIL 8 

6' DlA. 18' DEEP SEEPAGE PIT PER 
DETAIL B FOR I 00% EXPANSION 

SANITARY SEWER liNE 

POOL W" TER liNE 

INFILTRATION I APPliCATION 
RATE (MIN/IN) RATE (GPO/SF) 

SEEPAGE I EFFECTIVE 
PITS AREA (SF) 

ALLOWED 
APPliCATION 

(GPO) 

32 I 0.511 9 8.549 4.710 

41 I 0.411 0 907 373 

25 l 0.589 17 12.283 7.235 

TOTAL 21.705 12,311 

0 .629 24 18.060 11,360 

'~ 
DATE 01/0212020 
Jdl t&o. OUW)-1115 rrmdeslgn 

group 

~~------------------------00·~--------~ 



THE INN AT 
MATIEIS TAVERN 

INFILTRATION FACIUTY 
EXHIBIT 1 

SOI.\.17DE£1'S83'AGEPfiPEJt 
OEIAI\ I FOa 100S EX'AN$C)N 

l.fACJi UNfS Pa DETAil. ·A~Tl-IS 
SHEll 

SAHITAn' .sEWER UN.!: 

- POOl WATER L*olE 



HONORARY 
TRUSTEE: 
Harian J. Burdlarw 
1969-2020 

TRUSTEES: 

DNISJON1 
Lee Rosenberg 

DlVJSION 2 
Jeff Oay 

01\.JSION .~ 
Lori Parker 

DIVISION! 
Michael Burchardi 

TRUSTEE-A f -LARGE 
Brad Joos 

GENERAL MANAGER 
.Paeter E. Garda 

September 18, 2020 

Jennifer Epp 
Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board, Region 3 
895 Aerovista Place 
Suite 101 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401-7906 

Jeff Densmore 
State Water Resources Control Board 
Division of Drinking Water, District 6 
1180 Eugenia Place 
Suite 200 
Carpinteria, CA 93013 

Delaney Roney 
County of Santa Barbara 
Department of Planning & Development 
123 East Anapamu Street 
Santa Barbara. CA 93101-2058 

Re: Mattei's Tavern Project- Proposed Wastewater Dispersal System 

Dear Ms. Epp, Mr. Densmore, and Ms. Roney: 

The Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 
(District} submits this letter in connection with the proposed wastewater dispersal 
system for the Mattei's Tavern development project in Los Olivos, California. The 
District is a public water agency, organized and operating as a special district 
pursuant to the Water Conservation District Law, Water Code section 74000 et 
seq. Our office is located in Santa Ynez and we serve retail potable water 
supplies for domestic, agricultural , commercial, and institutional uses throughout 
the communities of Santa Ynez, Ballard, the Santa Ynez Band of Chumash 
Indians, Los Olivos, and the City of Solvang on a limited basis. The District has 
provided water service to the Mattei's Tavern property since our formation and 
we will be the retail water purveyor for the proposed Mattei's Tavern development 
project. The District is supportive of the Mattei's Project and we look forward to 
a long-term customer relationship with its owners and management. However, 
several serious issues have been brought to our attention that need to be 
resolved to ensure the protection of public health and the District's potable water 
supply infrastructure. 

In the spring and early summer of this year, District staff was working with the 
engineering and development team for the Mattei's Project regarding the 
configuration and location of water supply connections that will be needed to 
serve the domestic and fire protection demands of the Project. In July, a slight 
complication arose in connection with the District's 6-inch potable water main that 

PO BOX 157 • 36r. SAGUNTO STREI:I, SANTA YNEZ, CA 9.).fb0 
(805) 688-60l5 • FAX: (805) 6R8-3078 • 'I"''WW.SYRVvlJ.ORG 



Regional Board, DDVV. Santa Barbara County 
September 18, 2020 
Page 2 

runs in an east-west direction within Railway Avenue along the northern edge of the Mattei's 
property.1 The issue was that the final design plans for the Project involved excavation and 
grading immediately on top of the District's pressurized 6-inch asbestos cement (AC) water main, 
and the final elevation of the Project's paved surfaces would not have provided the minimum 
required coverage relative to the existing depth of the water line. The District began working with 
the developer on ways to deepen the District's water main to allow their grading plans to move 
forward. As part of that coordinated effort, the District was willing to have the developer's 
engineering consultant prepare the design plans and hire its own contractor to perform the work, 
subject to the District's review and approval of the plans, and supervision and inspection of the 
work. The District prepared and approved a Water Main and Facilities Replacement Agreement 
to be entered with the Mattei's Project, and outlined other substantive and procedural steps that 
would need to be followed, such as the posting of a performance bond or letter of credit, and a 
dedication of facilities to the District. 

Toward the end of July, as part of the District's visits to the Project site and based on documents 
provided by the developer's engineer, 2 the District became aware that the Mattei's Project was 
proposing to install dozens of large-scale wastewater seepage pits, wastewater leach fields, and 
sewer and wastewater dispersal lines immediately adjacent to and straddling the District's 6-inch 
potable water main and related potable water facilities along Railway Avenue_ This was extremely 
concerning to the District. On August 4, 2020, the District contacted the Regional Board to 
express its concerns and attempt to determine the status of the Regional Board's review of the 
proposed wastewater dispersal system_ The following day the District attended a conference call 
with Regional Board staff_ Among other issues discussed, the District was informed that the 
overall wastewater design proposal had changed from what was submitted to the Regional Board 
on February 26, 2020; that the Regional Board was currently reviewing multiple exemption 
proposals for the Mattei's Project, including the use of wastewater seepage pits in addition to 
leach fields, and reduced separation to groundwater from the 1 0-foot standard down to 2-feet; 
that the Regional Board 's exemption analysis involves a tradeoff and negotiation process aimed 
toward protecting groundwater quality; that the Regional Board 's process does not involve 
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); that Regional 
Board staff was not previously aware that the District's 6-inch potable water main was located in 
the midst of the proposed wastewater seepage pits, leach fields, and dispersal lines; and that 

1 Railway Avenue used to be a public road used for ingress and egress to Highway 154, and the 
District's 6-inch water main, public fire hydrant, water service connections, and related 
appurtenances were installed in the public utilities right-of-way within Railway Avenue_ In 2013, 
the County of Santa Barbara vacated a portion of Railway Avenue, wherein a permanent 
easement was reserved for the District's water supply infrastructure and other public utilities. (See 
Santa Barbara County Resolution No_ 13-198; Recorded Document No_ 2013-0048005.) 

2 On or about July 23, 2020 the developer's engineer provided the District a copy of the Application 
and Report of Waste Discharge that was sent by the Mattei's Project to the Central Coast Regional 
Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) on February 26, 2020_ On or about July 30, 2020, 
the developer's engineer provided the District a copy of an Exemption Request that was sent by 
the Mattei's Project to the Regional Board on July 23. 2020. 



Regional Board. DOW, Santa Barbara County 
September 18. 2020 
Page 3 

Regional Board staff would be contacting the Department of Drinking Water (DOW) regarding 
potential risks to the District's potable water facilities . 

On August 7, 2020, the District received correspondence from Regional Board staff that they had 
conferred with the Mattei's Project development group and expressed concerns regarding the 
proximity of the proposed wastewater facilities to the District's potable water main. As part of their 
discussion with the Mattei's Project, Regional Board staff suggested a possible solution of moving 
the District's water main to the north and moving some of the wastewater seepage pits to the 
south in order to achieve a minimum 25-foot horizontal separation between the potable main and 
the wastewater dispersal system (consistent with 22 CCR § 64572), and that the subsurface 
dispersal of wastewater should occur at a vertical elevation below the District's water main. 
Regional Board staff asked the District and DOW to consider these potential design alternatives. 

On the same day, the District informed the Mattei's Project that we would begin reviewing 
easement issues and the possibility of moving our 6-inch water main to the north, that we were 
still reviewing the large batch of brand new information regarding the proposed wastewater 
seepage pits and dispersal system, and that the District had ongoing questions and concerns 
regarding the protection of public health. The District also responded to Regional Board and DOW 
staff on August 7th, informing them that the District's primary objective is to protect public health , 
that we were willing to review the possibility of moving our water main to the north, that the District 
is seeking assurances that the Regional Board will require a minimum 25-foot horizontal 
separation, and also require subsurface wastewater dispersal to occur at a vertical elevation that 
is below the District's potable water main and related facilities. The District received additional 
correspondence from Regional Board staff on August 1 0 and August 11 , indicating that the 
location and engineering design of the wastewater seepage pits and dispersal system should be 
coordinated between the Mattei's Project, the District, and DOW, "all of which ultimately are 
dependent on approval of the dispersal system by the Regional Board." 

Over the past several weeks, the District has been actively engaged with the Mattei's Project in 
reviewing revised design plans and draft easement descriptions that would be needed if the 
District's 6-inch water main along Railway Avenue were to be moved laterally to the north. In 
correspondence to Regional Board staff and the Mattei 's Project dated August 21 , 2020, the 
District stated, in part: 

[The Mattei's Project] indicates below that the Project has agreed with the District 
to relocate the public water line to the north to maintain a 25-foot separation to the 
effluent leach lines and seepage pits. Last Friday the Project representatives 
again discussed this idea in a call with the District, and yesterday we received an 
updated plan from (the Mattei's Project] that shows our main line being moved to 
the north. By all means we are willing to review this new proposal, which we have 
started to do, yet we are not in a position to provide agreement on any particular 
design as that would depend in part on input and approval from the Regional Board 
and DOW. Separately, several other arrangements would need to be prepared 
and finalized between the Project and the District. In reviewing the most recent 



Regional Board. DOW. Santa Barbara County 
September 18. 2020 
Page 4 

proposal to move the District's potable main to the north (to achieve a minimum 25 
foot horizontal separation). we also are trying to confirm that vertical separation 
will be achieved such that the conveyance and disbursement of any/all effluent 
through the leach lines and seepage pits will only occur at an appropriate elevation 
below the final buried elevation of our potable water facilities (mains, service 
laterals, fire laterals) to ensure the protection of public health under all reasonably 
foreseeable conditions. Design mitigation also remains an important factor. We 
look forward to following up and working with the Mattei's team and the 
RWQCB/DDW. In the meantime, please let us know if you have any questions or 
concerns. 

On Sunday, September 6, 2020, the District received a copy of a "latest report" for the wastewater 
system that the developer's engineer has submitted to the Regional Board. Once again, and as 
time permits among other competing priorities, the District will need to review yet another revised 
design for the wastewater dispersal system. The initial focus of our review is to ascertain whether, 
consistent with the Regional Board's recommendations to date. a minimum 25-foot horizontal 
separation and some degree of vertical separation will be achieved between the District's potable 
water facilities and any/all components of the newly proposed wastewater dispersal system, 
including the seepage pits, the leach fields (infiltration trenches), the dispersal pipelines, and the 
subsurface incidental reuse system for plant growth and evapotranspiration. (See, e.g., August 
31, 2020 Revised Report of Waste Discharge, p.1.) Unfortunately, even a cursory review of the 
latest report suggests that adequate separations are not being proposed in the revised design, to 
wit: "The project has requested an exemption from the 10 foot vertical separation typically required 
by the County lAMP. The seepage pit dispersal zone will start 2' below the surface, giving them 
an effective dispersal depth of 12'." (See, August 31 , 2020 Revised Report of Waste Discharge, 
p. 12.) If the seepage pit dispersal zone starts 2-feet below the surface, while the bottom of the 
District's potable main will be buried nearly 4-feet below the surface. this shows that wastewater 
will be dispersed at an elevation above the District's potable water main. Similar issues appear 
to exist with wastewater dispersal to the leach fields. 

On September 17, 2020. the District received follow-up correspondence from Regional Board 
staff regarding their receipt and review of the above-mentioned "latest report" for the wastewater 
treatment and dispersal system. We assume the Regional Board has observed that the revised 
design fails to provide the amounts of vertical separation that they and the District have requested. 
To date we have not received any input from DOW on this matter. Meanwhile, the Mattei's Project 
is submitting repeated requests to the District to approve the revised wastewater dispersal design 
and move its potable water main and related facilities to the north. 

In accordance with the foregoing, the District does not believe we are the appropriate agency to 
conduct environmental review or provide final approval of specific design parameters for the 
proposed wastewater dispersal system on the Mattei's Project. Instead, we believe the Regional 
Board, DDW, and the County have the responsibility, authority, and expertise to determine and 
impose separation requirements on the system design, taking various factors into account, such 
as subsurface hydrogeology, percolation rates, soil characteristics, system capabilities under 



Regional Board, DOW, Santa Barbara County 
September 18, 2020 
Page 5 

varying hydrologic conditions that affect the subsurface environment, and performance metrics of 
the seepage pits and leach fields over time. Nor does it seem appropriate for the District to 
relocate critical public infrastructure before the necessary reviews and approvals are completed, 
and specific and enforceable requirements are imposed by the permitting/regulatory agencies to 
ensure the long-term protection of public health and the District's potable water facilities . 
Candidly, the District believes that the issues described herein should have been identified and 
resolved prior to commencement of all the grading and construction activities that are already 
underway at the Project site. 

To the extent the District is being asked to relocate its potable water main and related facilities 
prior to final approvals and permits being issued by the Regional Board. DOW, and the County, 
the District is seeking written and enforceable assurances from the permitting/regulatory agencies 
that such approvals and permits will be expressly conditioned on requirements that a minimum 
25-foot horizontal separation and at least 1-foot of vertical separation will be maintained between, 
on the one hand, any and all components of the District's potable water system, including but not 
limited to its mains, service laterals, meters, and fire hydrants. and, on the other hand, any and 
all dispersal of wastewater through any components of the proposed wastewater dispersal 
system, including any seepage pits, any leach fields (infiltration trenches) , any dispersal pipelines, 
and any subsurface incidental reuse for plant growth and evapotranspiration. 

The District looks forward to your review and feedback on the issues described herein. Should 
you have any questions or concerns. or if you wish to discuss any related matters, please feel 
free-to-contact me at (805) 688-6015 or via email at ogc.rcia@svrwd.crc 

Paeter E. Garcia 
General Manager 

cc: Eric Tambini, Water Resources Manager 
Lydia Cardenas, Water Resources Associate 
Gary Kvistad, Brownstein Farber Hyatt Schreck 
Joe Faust, Mattei's Project 
Voikan Jeremic, Mattei's Project 
Michael Hamilton, Mattei's Project 



THE INN AT MATIEI'S TAVERN 

REPORT OF WASTE DISCHARGE 

Prepared by: RRM Design Group 

Prepared for: Railway Jonata LLC 

Project Manager: Michael C. Hamilton, P .E. 

August 3 I , 2020 

.. 
' . 

. -
I 

# • ... --,1 ~ ~-J: ._._~ 



___ ____..... 

~ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

•• 

3" PVC 
DISTRI&UliON PIPE 

WHERE SHOWN PER PIAN 

THE INN AT 
MATIEIS TAVERN 

INFILTRATION FACILITY 
EXHIBIT 1 

HIGHWAY 15~ CALlRANS R.O.W. 

n t..~..J.-L.J~ 
COMPAClED Gl!AVEL 
PAVING AND BASE 
FillER FABRIC 

DISPERSAL I PERCOLATION I APPLICATlON I 
AREA RAlE (GPO/SF) RATE {GPO/SF) 

lo I I 0.551 

lb I I 0.629 

DISPERSAL I PERCOLATION I APPLICATION 
AREA RATE (GPD/SF) RATE (GPO/SF) 

1c I I 0.8 

TOTAl 

EXPANSIONl 22 T 0.6 

0 60 120 180 

'~ IJI- I I 

SCI\LE; 1" • 60' 

""''" 

ABSORPTION I AREA (SF/lF) 

7 

I 

ABSORPIION 
CAPACITY 

(GPO) 

3886.80 

4.858.50 

LEGEND 
~· DIA. 12' DEEP SEEPAGE PIT PER 
DETAILS 

5" DIA. 12' DEEP SEEPAGE PIT PER 
DETAILS FOR 100'1.. EXPANSION 

LEACH UNES PER DETAIL "A" 1HIS 
SHEEl 

SANITARY SEWER UNE 

POOL WAlER LINE 

N0. 2 SlONE 

® EACH LINE DETAIL 
N.U 

LEACH UNE I EFFECTIVE I 
ALlOWED 

APPLICATION LENGTH (LFJ AREA (SF) 
(GPO) 

528 3,696 2.0361 

I. A 51 10. 157 6.3891 

EFFECTIVE 
ALLOWED 

SEEPAGE PITS AREA (SF) APPLICATION 
(GPO) 

23 3,468 'l.775 

17.139 11.200 

73 1 ~ .0~7 11.237 

DATE 08/06/2020 llrrmdesign IODl.lo 011)4).NI.!o group 



Paeter Garcia 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Hi Mike, Joe, and Voikan, 

Bishop, James@Waterboards <James.Bishop@Waterboards.ca.gov> 
Monday, November 2, 2020 9:52AM 
Hamilton, Michael C.; Joe Faust; Voikan Jeremic 
Tuttle, Alex; Roney, Delaney; Densmore, Jeff@Waterboards; Paeter Garcia 
Compilation of modifications to engineering design specifications 

As you all are aware, there have been a large number of modifications and stipulations related to the Mattei's Tavern 
wastewater treatment system design over the past many months. The good news these discussions have culminated in a 
design that the Regional Board feels comfortable permitting and will be protective of groundwater quality and potable 
water supplies. However, given the large number of modifications and stipulations that have occurred in the various 
meetings, emails, and engineering design documents, I want to make sure that we're all in agreement with respect to 
the major changes to the engineering design and monitoring that have been discussed over the past months. I've also 
included some monitoring requirements and permit limitations that will need to be included in the permit. 

I ask that the three of you please review the specifications and stipulations described below and respond to this email 
and let me know if what I outlined below reflects the engineering designs that the Mattei's group will include in the final 
engineering technical document. If the list below does accurately reflect the engineering design as discussed over the 
previous months and weeks, I will need a final engineering technical document that incorporates all of these changes for 
our records. 

An agreement between the Mattei's Tavern engineering and development group and the Regional Board regarding the 
issues outlined below will serve as the trigger that Santa Barbara County Building and Planning needs for issuing their 
permits. 

Below is a Jist of engineering design specifications and modifications proposed by the Mattei's Tavern engineering 
group to meet applicable Regional Board and Division of Drinking Water requirements: 

Wastewater treatment 
• Because the bottom of the seepage pit may have less than 10 feet of vertical separation from groundwater, 

wastewater will be UV disinfected and treated such that total nitrogen is less than 10 mg/L. 

Wastewater dispersal design 
• The seepage pits shall be designed such that the bottom of the pit has a minimum of two feet of vertical 

separation from highest observed groundwater. Highest observed groundwater was 15 feet below ground 
surface in a monitoring well located on the Mattei's parcel. 

• All wastewater dispersal systems, including leach lines, subsurface drip irrigation, and seepage pits, will have at 
least 25 feet of horizontal separation from the water district's potable water main 

• Seepage pit and leach line effluent distribution will be at an elevation that is lower than the elevation of the 
bottom potable water main. 

• The dispersal system will include an effluent distribution system that achieves uniform distribution of 
wastewater throughout the dispersal facility and helps to avoid saturated soil conditions. Rotating wastewater 
distribution through various zones combined with a dosing tank and a pressured dosed system can achieve this 
result. 

• The dispersal system shall include periodically spaced observation ports for the leachlines and seepage pits that 
allow for observation of soil saturation. 

1 



• A monitoring well shall be installed to monitor groundwater elevation and evaluate compliance with the 
requirement to maintain 2 feet of vertical separation with bottom of seepage pits and provide an indication of 
conditions that may cause saturation of the potable water main by effluent dispersed in the 
subsurface. Monitoring well location to be determined based on the slug testing, subsurface lithologic 
evaluation, and after consultation with the Regional Board. 

• Slug testing shall be performed to verify that adequate infiltration capacity exists to accommodate maximum 
design flows. 

• During seepage pit excavation, an evaluation of subsurface lithology shall be conducted by a qualified 
professional to identify whether laterally continuous low permeability geologic units exist in the dispersal area 

Below is a list of enforceable limits and monitoring requirements that the Regional Board will include in the permit: 

Permit limits 
• wastewater dispersal shall not occur if groundwater separation from the bottom of the seepage pit is less than 2 

feet. Groundwater monitoring well shall be used to verify this permit limit. 

• wastewater dispersal shall not occur if saturated soil conditions exist. Observation ports and inspection of 
ground surface conditions shall be used to verify this permit limit. 

• Effluent quality must comply with UV system manufacturers requirements for turbidity. 
• Maximum influent flows shall not exceed 11,100 gpd 

• Effluent limits: Total N<10 mg/L; BOD<10 mg/L; TSS <5 mg/L 

Monitoring Frequencies 
• groundwater monitoring shall occur once during each of the following months, with each measurement at least 

20 days apart: October, November, December, January, February, March, April, July. If groundwater elevations 
are ever within 10 feet of the bottom of the deepest seepage pit (regardless of the time of year), monitoring 
frequencies will be increased to once every two weeks until groundwater is less than 10 feet from the bottom c 
the seepage pit. If groundwater elevations are ever within 5 feet of the bottom of the deepest seepage pit, 
monitoring frequencies will be increased to once per week. The discharger may choose to monitor groundwater 
elevations with a transducer as long as annual calibration of the transducer occurs. 

• For the first three months of operation, leach line and seepage pit observation ports shall be monitored weekly 
for saturated soil conditions. If after three months saturated soil conditions aren't observed, monitoring shall 
occur as follows: Observation ports shall be observed at least monthly. Observation ports shall be observed 
after any rain even that exceeds 0.25 inches in 24 hours. 

• Total coliforms shall be monitored weekly for the first three months to ensure system performance and 
quarterly thereafter if system performs appropriately. If groundwater elevation is less than 10 feet below the 
bottom of the deepest seepage pit, total coliforms shall be monitored monthly. If depth to groundwater is less 
than 5 feet below the deepest seepage pit, total coliforms shall be monitored weekly. 

• Total nitrogen shall be monitored quarterly 

It is unclear to me if the proposed design is still planning to utilize subsurface drip irrigation as incidental reuse. Pleads 
provide some clarification on this matter. If incidental reuse is proposed in the final design, please include specifics in 
the final report and make sure it achieves at least 25 feet of horizontal separation from the potable water main. 

This is not an exhaustive list of permit limits and requirements. The list only reflects the changes we have discussed over 
the last few months that allow the applicant to comply with applicable regulations. The final permit will require 
compliance with the Statewide General Order for Small Domestic Wastewater Treatment Systems (2014-0153), the 
OWTS Policy, the Santa Barbara County Local Area Management Plan, and the Water Quality Control Plan for the Central 
Coast Basin (Basin Plan). 

Thanks, 
James 

2 



James Bishop 
Engineering Geologist, PG 
Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) Program 
(805) 542-4628 
895 Aerovista Place, Suite 101 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

3 



Water Boards 

J y.;.;:..::;_~ .... 
~':~4:q~-~o;.~ GAVIN NEWSO~ 
'(_j;;..P GOVER~OR 

~ J ARED BLUMENFELD 

#...-..............~ SECRET"RV FOR 
~ E'NVrRON MENTAL PROTECTtON 

State Water Resources Control Board 
Division of Drinking Water 

November 6, 2020 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District ID #1 
P.O. Box 157 
Santa Ynez, CA 93460 

Attention: Mr. Eric Tambini, Water Resources Manager 

RE: Mattei's Tavern Water Main Separation 

Thank you for including the Division of Drinking Water (DOW) in the discussions regarding 
the proposed wastewater disposal system at Mattei's Tavern and its proximity to a water 
main owned by Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District 10#1 (District). At issue is 
an existing 6-inch potable water main and its proximity to the proposed construction site 
for a series of septic leach fields and seepage pits. The water main parallels the proposed 
disposal system's location and must be at least 25 horizontal feet from the leach lines 
and seepage pits in accordance with drinking water regulations (§64572 (f)). The District 
will be relocating their water main to at least 25 horizontal feet from the disposal facilities 
and is obtaining a property easement for the new location. Additional concerns regarding 
the location of the proposed disposal system include shallow, subsurface conditions 
which may restrict wastewater percolation rates and promote shallow groundwater after 
a period of wet weather. The District, Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 
{RWQCB) and DOW met several times to discuss these concerns and potential 
mitigations including requiring the disposal system be no higher than the bottom of the 
District's water main. The outcome is a project, which in the opinion of DOW, adequately 
protects the District's 6-inch potable water main from the proposed wastewater disposal 
system at Mattei's Tavern. The agreed upon mitigations were outlined in a November 2, 
2020 email from Mr. James Bishop at the RWQCB (attached). Thank you to the District 
and RWQCB for your time and consideration regarding this issue. 

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact Jeff Densmore at 
jeff.densmore@waterboards.ca.gov or 805.566.1326. 

Sincerely, 
Digital!>' signed by Jeff 

J ff D o_ensmore 
e ens more oaie! 2020J1.0609:01 :17 

. , ,..ps:op: 
Jeff Densmore, P.E., District Engineer 
State Water Resources Control Board 
Division of Drinking Water 
Santa Barbara District 

E. JOAQUIN ESQUIVEL, CHAIR I EILEEN SOBECK, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

1180 Eugenia Place, Suite 200, Carpinteria, CA 93013 I www_ waterboards.ca.gov 



cc: Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Attn: Mr. James Bishop, Engineering Geologist, PG 

Santa Barbara County Environmental Health 

Page 2 of2 



From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Bishop. James@Waterboards 
Hamilton. Michael C.;~; l{ojkan JeremiC 
Tuttle Alex; Roney Delaney; Densmore. Jeff@Waterboards; Paeter Garcia 

Compilation of modifications to engineering design spedfications 
Monday, November 2, 2020 9:51:55 AM 

Hi Mike, Joe, and Voikan, 

As you all are aware, there have been a large number of modifications and stipulations related to the 

Mattei's Tavern wastewater treatment system design over the past many months. The good news 

these discussions have culminated in a design that the Regional Board feels comfortable permitting 

and will be protective of groundwater quality and potable water supplies. However, given the large 

number of modifications and stipulations that have occurred in the various meetings, emails, and 

engineering design documents, I want to make sure that we're all in agreement with respect to the 

major changes to the engineering design and monitoring that have been discussed over the past 

months. I've also included some monitoring requirements and permit limitations that will need to 

be included in the permit. 

I ask that the three of you please review the specifications and stipulations described below and 

respond to this email and let me know if what I outlined below reflects the engineering designs that 

the Mattei's group will include in the final engineering technical document. If the list below does 

accurately reflect the engineering design as discussed over the previous months and weeks, I will 

need a final engineering technical document that incorporates all of these changes for our records. 

An agreement between the Mattei's Tavern engineering and development group and the Regional 

Board regarding the issues outlined below will serve as the trigger that Santa Barbara County 

Building and Planning needs for issuing their permits. 

Below is a list of engineering design specifications and modifications proposed by the Mattei's 

Tavern engineering group to meet applicable Regional Board and Division of Drinking Water 

requirements: 

Wastewater treatment 

• Because the bottom of the seepage pit may have less than 10 feet of vertical separation from 

groundwater, wastewater will be UV disinfected and treated such that total nitrogen is less 

than 10 mg/L. 

Wastewater dispersal design 

• The seepage pits shall be designed such that the bottom of the pit has a minimum of two feet 

of vertical separation from highest observed groundwater. Highest observed groundwater 

was 15 feet below ground surface in a monitoring well located on the Mattei's parcel. 

• All wastewater dispersal systems, including leach lines, subsurface drip irrigation, and seepage 

pits, will have at least 25 feet of horizontal separation from the water district's potable water 

main 

• Seepage pit and leach line effluent distribution will be at an elevation that is lower than the 

elevation of the bottom potable water main. 



The dispersal system will include an effluent distribution system that achieves uniform 

distribution of wastewater throughout the dispersal facility and helps to avoid saturated soil 

conditions. Rotating wastewater distribution through various zones combined with a dosing 

tank and a pressured dosed system can achieve this result. 

• The dispersal system shall include periodically spaced observation ports for the leachlines and 

seepage pits that allow for observation of soil saturation. 

• A monitoring well shall be installed to monitor groundwater elevation and evaluate 

compliance with the requi rement to maintain 2 feet of vertical separation with bottom of 

seepage pits and provide an indication of conditions that may cause saturation of the potable 

water main by effluent dispersed in the subsurface. Monitoring well location to be 

determined based on the slug testing, subsurface lithologic evaluation, and after consultation 

with the Regional Board. 

• Slug testing shall be performed to verify that adequate infiltration capacity exists to 

accommodate maximum design flows. 

• During seepage pit excavation, an evaluation of subsurface lithology shall be conducted by a 

qualified professional to identify whether laterally continuous low permeability geologic units 

exist in the dispersal area 

Below is a list of enforceable limits and monitoring requirements that the Regional Board will 
include in the permit: 

Permit limits 

• wastewater dispersal shall not occur if groundwater separation from the bottom of the 

seepage pit is less than 2 feet. Groundwater monitoring well shall be used to verify this permit 

limit. 

• wastewater dispersal shall not occur if saturated soil conditions exist. Observat ion port s and 

inspection of ground surface conditions shall be used to verify thi s permit limit. 

• Effluent quality must comply with UV system manufacturers requirements for turbidity. 

• Maximum influent flows shall not exceed 11,100 gpd 

• Effluent limits: Total N<10 mg/L; BOD<10 mg/L; TSS <5 mg/L 

Monitoring Frequencies 

• groundwater monitoring shall occur once during each of the following months, with each 

measurement at least 20 days apart : October, November, December, January, February, 

March, April, July. If groundwater elevations are ever within 10 feet of the bottom of the 

deepest seepage pit (regardless of the t ime of year), monitoring frequencies will be increased 

to once every two weeks until groundwater is less than 10 feet from the bottom of the 

seepage pit. If groundwater elevations are ever within 5 feet of the bottom of the deepest 

seepage pit, monitoring frequencies will be increased to once per week. The discharger may 

choose to monitor groundwater elevations with a transducer as long as annual calibration of 

the transducer occurs. 

• For the first three months of operation, leach line and seepage pit observation ports shall be 

monitored weekly for saturated soil conditions. If after three months saturated soil 

conditions aren't observed, monitoring shall occur as follows: Observation ports shall be 

observed at least monthly. Observation ports shall be observed after any rain even that 



exceeds 0.25 inches in 24 hours. 

• Total coliforms shall be monitored weekly for the first three months to ensure system 

performance and quarterly thereafter if system performs appropriately. If groundwater 

elevation is less than 10 feet below the bottom of the deepest seepage pit, total coliforms 

shall be monitored monthly. If depth to groundwater is less than 5 feet below the deepest 

seepage pit, total coliforms shall be monitored weekly. 

• Total nitrogen shall be monitored quarterly 

It is unclear to me if the proposed design is sti ll planning to utilize subsurface drip irrigation as 

incidental reuse. Pleads provide some clarification on this matter. If incidental reuse is proposed in 

the final design, please include specifics in the final report and make sure it achieves at least 25 feet 

of horizontal separation from the potable water main. 

This is not an exhaustive list of permit limits and requirements. The list only reflects the changes we 

have discussed over the last few months that allow the applicant to comply with applicable 

regulations. The final permit will require compliance with the Statewide Genera l Order for Small 

Domestic Wastewater Treatment Systems {2014-0153). the OWTS Policy, the Santa Barbara County 

Local Area Management Plan, and the Water Quality Control Plan for the Central Coast Basin {Basin 

Plan). 

Thanks, 

James 

James Bishop 

Engineering Geologist, PG 

Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) Program 

{805) 542-4628 

895 Aerovista Place, Suite 101 

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 



SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT N0.1 

WATER MAIN AND FACILITIES REPLACEMENT AGREEMENT 
(CONSTRUCTION BY APPLICANT) 

This Water Main and Facilitjes Replacement Agreement (Agreement) is made by and between 
the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, In_;provement District No. I (District) and 
Railway Jonata, LLC (Applicant) on ~Jc.-e ftA~ ..} , 2020 (Effective Date). The District 
and Applicant may be referred to herein individually as a "Party" and col1ectively as the "Parties." 

IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Water Service. Applicant has applied to the District for water service to real property in the 
County of Santa Barbara, State of California, commonly referred to as: 2350 Railway Avenue, Los 
Olivos, California 93441; and more particularly described as Assessor's Parcel Numbers 135-064-
002, 135-064-004, 135-064-011, 135-064-020, 135-073-00, 135-073-021, 135-073-003 
(collectively, the Property). The Property is cunently subject to development by Applicant in 
connection with what is commonly referred to as the "Mattei's Project" (Project) . Applicant is the 
owner of the Property. 

The Property and the Project are situated within the service area boundary of the District. In order 
for the District to provide the Property and the Project with water service in accordance with the 
plans and specifications submitted by the Applicant, it will be necessary to relocate, replace, and 
otherwise construct or reconstruct ce1iain of the District's existing water supply facilities, including 
but not limited to a water main, water service connections, two public fire hydrants, and related 
facilities (collectively, the Reconstructed Facilities). 

2. Limited Scope of Agreement. The Parties recognize and agree that the scope of work 
addressed in this Agreement is limited to the Reconstructed Facilities and that additional work by 
the District beyond that covered by this Agreement, including, but not limited to, hydraulic 
modeling and potential upsizing water lines and other improvements to District infrastructure may 
be needed to accommodate Applicant's new private flre protection system for the Property md the 
Project, which will need to be undertaken at Applicant's expense to provide water service to the 
Property and the Project. Any such additional work, conditions, and costs to Applicant shall be 
addressed and administered through an amendment to this Agreement. 

3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue 
until one (1) year after the date that the notice of completion is recorded for the Reconstructed 
Facilities. 

4. Applicant's Obligations. The design, planning, permitting, and construction of the 
Reconstructed Facilities as described in this Agreement shall be performed by Applicant in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement at Applicant's sole cost and expense, 
with construction to be completed within six (6) months from the Effective Date of this Agreement, 
regardless of whether Applicant proceeds with development ofthe Property and the Project. 



5. Construction Standards. All design and construction of the Reconstructed Facilities shall 
be performed by Applicant and all plans and engineering shall be prepared by Applicant in 
accordance with District's Standards and Specifications and also shall comply with all requirements 
of the Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board, the State Water Resources Control 
Board Division of Drinking Water, and the County of Santa Barbara. All of the construction and 
engineering specifications and plans, including the underlying design calculations, for the 
Reconstruced Facilities (collectively, Contract Documents) shall be submitted to the District for its 
written approval, in its sole and absolute discretion, prior to Applicant's award of any construction 
contract and prior to the commencement of any construction work by Applicant. Applicant shall 
incorporate the District's written comments and revisions into the Contract Documents. The 
Contract Documents submitted to the District for review shall be in a size and scale acceptable to 
the District. Each set of Contract Documents must include: Title Sheet, Construction Notes, Plan 
View, Profiles, Detail, and Grading Sheets, including cut and fill calculations for the Reconstructed 
Facilites. Applicant shall furnish the District with one complete set of duplicate originals and two 
copies of the approved Contract Documents. All work shall be subject to field inspection and 
approval by the District in its sole and absolute discretion. The District shall not be held liable or 
responsible for errors, omissions, or changes required by site conditions or conflicts that may arise 
during constmction or deviation from the District-approved Contact Documents. 

6. Letter of Credit or Performance Bond. Prior to the start of any constmction of the 
Reconstruced Facilities, Applicant shall furnish the District with a letter of credit or performance 
bond conditioned upon Applicant completing construction within six (6) months after the Effective 
Date of this Agreement and in accordance with the Contract Documents as approved by the District, 
the District's Rules and Regulations, and this Agreement. The letter of credit or performance bond 
shall be in a form approved by the District and issued in an amount equal to at least the contract 
amount for the t:Onslruction work or an Engineer' s Cost Estimate for the entirety of the construction 
to be performed, which amount must be approved by the District. The letter of credit or 
performance bond shall be released one year after the completion of construction, final approvals, 
and dedication of the water system facilities as provided in this Agreement. 

7. Indemnification. Applicant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the District, and its 
elected officials, officers, employees, contractors, consultants, agents, and representatives from any 
and all liabilities, losses, costs, expenses, claims, suits, actions, damages, and claims of damages 
caused by or arising out of the Project, the Reconstructed Facilities, or any of the activities under 
this Agreement whether by Applicant or its owners, officers, managers, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, consultants, agents, or representatives, including, but not limited to, activies relating 
to design, planning, permitting, construction, testing, maintenance, or repair of the Reconstructed 
Facilities, except to the extent of any liabilities, losses, costs, expenses, claims, suits, actions, 
damages, or claims of damages are caused by the District's active negligence or willful misconduct. 
Applicant shall cause to be inserted in any construction contract(s) for the work to be performed 
under this Agreement an indemnification clause substantially similar to the one in this Section 7 and 
running to the benefit of the District. 

8. Insurance. Prior to and all times during which any construction of the Reconstructed 
Facilities are being carried out under this Agreement, Applicant shall require its construction 

2 



contractor(s) to procure and maintain in full force and effect, the following insurance coverages, 
with certificates of insurancee provided to the District: 

8.1. Commercial General Liability. Commercial general liability insurance for bodily 
injury (including death), personal injury, property damage, owned and non-owned equipment, 
blanket contractual liability, completed operations, explosion, collapse, underground excavation, 
and removal of lateral support covering the contractor's activities under this Agreement, which 
coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) Occurrence Form CG 0001 , 
and with a limit in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). If insurance with a 
general aggregate limit or products-completed operations aggregate limit is used, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately (with the ISO CG 2503, or ISO CG 2504, or insurer's 
equivalent endorsement provided to the District) or the general aggregate limit and products
completed operations aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

8.2. Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance. Workers ' 
compensation insurance covering employees in accordance with statutory requirements, and 
employer's l.iability insmance with limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each 
accident, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) policy limit, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each 
employee. 

8.3. Automobile Liability. Automobile liability insurance for bodily injury and property 
damage, which coverage shall be at least as broad as ISO Business Auto Coverage (Form CA 
0001), covering Symbol 1 (any auto), and with a limit in an amount of not less than One Million 
Dollars ($1, 000, 000) each accident. 

8.4. Builder's Risk. Builder' s Risk insurance shall be ofthe "alJ risk" type, shall be 
written in completed value form, and shall protect the contractor and the District against risks of 
damage to buildings, structures, and materials and equipment. The amount of such insurance shaH 
be not less than the insurable value of the work at completion. The policy shall provide for losses to 
be payable to the contractor ·and the District as their interests may appear. The policy shall contain 
a provision that in the event of payment for any loss under the coverage provided, the insurance 
company shall have no rights of recovery against the contractor or the District. The policy shall 
insure against all risks of direct physical loss or damage to property from any external cause 
including flood and earthquake. 

8.5. General Provisions. The commercial general liability and automobile liability 
policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: (1) the District, its 
elected officials, officers, agents, and employees shall be named as additional insureds; (2) the 
insurance shall be primary with respect to the District, its elected officials, officers, agents, and 
employees, and any insurance, self-insurance, or other coverage maintained by the District, its 
elected officials, officers, agents, and employees shall not contribute to it; (3) any failure to comply 
with the reporting or other provisions of the policies, including breaches and warranties, shall not 
affect coverage provided to the District, its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees; and 
( 4) the insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom the claim is made or suit is 
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability. Each insurance policy shall state, 
or be endorsed to state, that coverage shall not be canceled by the insurance carrier, except after 

3 



thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the District in accordance with the standard 
ISO Accord Form. Thirty (30) days written notice shall be provided to the District prior to the non
renewal of any policy or policies required by this Agreement. All insurance coverages, as initially 
provided and as modified or changed, shall be subject to reasonable approval by the District. Any 
deductible or self-insured retention must be declared to and approved by the District. Upon demand 
of the District, certified copies of the required insurance policies and receipts for payment of 
premiums for a1l policies shall be made available for inspection by the District. The insurance 
coverages required under this Agreement shall not limit the indemnification obligations of the 
Applicant under this Agreement, and the failure to maintain the insurance coverages required above 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 

9. Deposit for District Expenses. Prior to or concurrent with the District's approval of the 
Contract Documents as provided in this Agreement, Applicant shall deposit with the District 
twenty-thousand dollars ($20,000.00) as an initial amount estimated by the District to be the 
District's costs and expenses in connection with its review, approval, inspection, and general 
administration activities under this Agreement. These District-related costs and expenses may 
include, but are not limited to, plan checking, engineering review, legal review, survey work and 
review, inspections, as-built plans review, administrative time, overhead costs, and miscellaneous 
costs as determined by the District. Upon completion of all work under this Agreement, and upon 
final approval and acceptance of the Reconstructed Facilities by the District in its sole and absolute 
discretion, the District shall furnish Applicant with a complete written accounting of all of the 
District's costs and expenses incurred under this Agreement. If the actual costs incurred by the 
District are in excess of this initial deposit amount, the District will bill Applicant for such excess 
which shall be due and payable to the District immediately upon Applicant's receipt of such billing. 
If the actual costs incurred by the District are less than this initial deposit amount, the District shall 
refund such excess to Applicant, provided that Applicant is in compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

10. New Easements. The Parties acknowledge that some of the work to be undertaken pursuant 
to this Agreement, including work to relocate, replace, and otherwise construct the Reconstructed 
Facilities, will need to occur in areas that are outside existing easements held by the District; 
therefore, Applicant shall grant any new permanent easement(s) to the District that are needed for 
the location of any and all of the Reconstructed Facilities located on the Property. Each easement 
granted by Applicant shall be in a format acceptable to the District, and shall be accompanied by a 
preliminary title report from a title insurance company dated within fourteen (14) days prior to the 
date that the easement(s) is granted and delivered to the District. For each easement(s) granted to 
the District, Applicant shall provide to the District, for each parcel affected by the easement(s), 
proof of written subordination by any person or entity holding a deed of trust on the affected parcel. 
Upon granting oftbe new easement(s) to the District, Applicant immediately shall record each 
easement in the official records of the Santa Barbara County Clerk-Recorder Division, and 
conformed proof of such recording shall be provided to the District. The requirements of this 
Section shall be undertaken at Applicant's sole cost and expense, and shall be conditions precedent 
to, and must be satisfied in full to the District's satisfaction in its sole and complete discretion prior 
to the commencement of any work under this Agreement. After construction and dedication to the 

4 



District of the Reconstructed Facilities are completed in accordance with this Agreement, the 
District will quitclaim to Applicant any portion(s) of existing easements or rights-of-way currently 
held by the District that are no longer necessary for the District to maintain, as determined by the 
District in its sole and absolute discretion. 

11. Construction. 

I 1.1. Requirements. Applicant's construction of the Reconstructed Facilities under this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with the Contract Documents as approved by the District. 
Applicant shall provide the District at least seven (7) days notice, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of any construction work described in this Agreement. A pre-construction 
conference shall be scheduled and conducted at least three (3) business days prior to the 
commencement of any construction, where Applicant, the District's General Manager, and/or the 
Parties' respective designees shall have the opportunity to attend. Prior to the commencement of 
any construction work, the District will undertake the shutdown and/or isolation of the existing 
water line(s) and water service facilities, as determined by the District, and thereafter the District 
shall provide notice to Applicant that work may commence on the Reconstructed Facilities. At no 
time shall Applicant or Applicant's contractor(s), subcontractor(s), representatives, or agents 
operate District valves, hydrants, or other components of the District's water service facilities. 

I 1.2. District Access and Inspection. Throughout all construction activities covered by 
this Agreement, the Applicant shall at all times provide the District with full and free access to 
inspect all work in progress and as completed. Inspections are for the sole benefit of the District 
and do not relieve the Applicant or Applicant's contractor(s) of any responsibility for the quality of 
work or damages to or loss of any work prior to acceptance by the District. Inspection of materials 
and work shall be at the District's sole and absolute direction. Applicant shall notify the District in 
writing at least two (2) business days in advance of the time inspection is required. Any work or 
water system facilities covered without District inspection shall be completely uncovered for 
inspection by the District at Applicant's expense. 

12. Construction Contracts. Upon Applicant's award of any construction contract to perform 
the work described in this Agreement, Applicant shall furnish the District with two complete copies 
of said contract(s). Unless expressly named in any construction contract awarded by Applicant, no 
sub-contractors or sub-consultants shall be authorized to perform any work described in this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the District. 

13. Dedication. Promptly upon completion of the work described in this Agreement, Applicant 
shall record or cause to be recorded a Notice of Completion in the manner, form, and time required 
by the California Civil Code, and shall furnish the District with a conformed copy of said recorded 
Notice of Completion (or the original thereof as endorsed and filed by the County Recorder). Not 
less than thirty-five (35) days and not more than seventy (70) days after the recording of said 
Notice, Applicant shall furnish 'to the District evidence that no claim of lien or stop notice has been 
recorded against the Reconstructed Facilities, or if any lien or notice has been recorded, evidence 
that any claim has been satisfied or bonded against, which evidence may include a lien guarantee 
from a title insurance company. In addition to the above requirements, Applicant shall dedicate the 

5 



constructed works and facilities to the District on a fmm approved by the District, and shall provide 
the District with redline drawings, and a digital copy and hard copy of the final as-built plans. 

14. Guaranty. 

14.1. Requirements. Applicant guarantees that the entire work and facilities constructed 
by Applicant under any contract(s) shall fully meet and satisfy all requirements ofthis Agreement 
as to the quaWy of workmanship and materials used in undertaking the work and facilities. 
AppUcant agrees to make, at its own expense, any repairs or replacements made necessary by 
defects in materials or workmanship that become evident within one (1) year after the completion 
date specified in the Notice of Completion, and to restore to full compliance with the requirements 
of this Agreement any part of the work or facilities which during the one-year period is found to be 
deficjent with respect to any provision of this Agreement. 

14.2. Failure to Comply. Applicant shall make all repairs and replacements promptly upon 
the receipt of a written demand by the District. If Applicant fails to make such repairs and 
replacements promptly, the District may perform the work and Applicant shall be liable to the 
District for the full costs and expenses incurred by the District. 

15. Connection of Other Lands. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or constructed 
to preclude the District from allowing lands other than those described in this Agreement from 
connecting to the District's water main facilities as replaced and constructed under this Agreement. 

16. Easements and Rights-of-Way. Applicant shall ensure that all facilities constructed, 
relocated, or replaced under this Agreement shall be situated within new easement(s) to be granted 
to the District or within existing public rights-of-way available to the District. 

17. Environmental Analysis. The activities to be carried out under this Agreement are limited 
to work on public water supply facilities that already are in existence and previously have been 
installed and operated by the District. Accordingly the District has determined that this Agreement 
and the activities to be carried out under this Agreement are categorically exempt or otherwise 
excepted from review under the California Environmental Quality Act. (See State CEQA 
Guidelines Sections 15282(k); 1530l(b); 15302(c).) 

18. No Effect on Water Service Applications. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall have 
the effect of or be construed as eliminating the need for the Applicant to submit application(s) to the 
District to receive water service for the Property and the Project in accordance with the District's 
Rules and Regulations, applicable costs, and regular processes. 

19. General Provisions. 

19.1. Notices. In order to be effective, all notices, approvals, acceptances, requests, 
demands, and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement (collectively, a 
Notice) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, either in person, via confmned electronic mail, or 
by mailing the same by United States mail (postage prepaid, registered or certified, return receipt 
requested) or by Federal Express or other similar overnight delivery service, to the Party to whom 
the Notice is directed at the address of such Party as follows: 

6 



To District: 

With a copy to: 

To Applicant: 

Santa Ynez River Water Conser;ation District, ID No.1 
Attn: General Manager 
P.O. Box 157 
Santa Ynez, Californ.ia 93460 

Gary M. K vistad 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
2021 Anacapa Street, Second Floor 
Santa Barbara, California 931 01 

Brian Strange 
Railway Jonata, LLC 
12100 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1900 
Los Angeles, Californ.ia 90025 

Any Notice given by mail shall be deemed delivered two (2) business days after such mailing date, 
and any Notice given by overnight delive1y service shall be deemed delivered one (1) business day 
after the dispatch date. Either Party may change its address by giving the other Party written notice 
of its new address. 

19.2. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the 
benefit of the Parties and their respective heirs, successors, and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement, 
express or implied, is intended to confer on any person other than the Parties or their respective 
heirs, successors, and assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities under or by reason of 
this Agreement. 

19.3. Assignability. This Agreement shaJl not be assignable by Applicant without the 
prior written consent of the District, which shall have the sole discretion to consent or not to consent 
to any proposed assignment. Any attempted assignment without the prior written consent of the 
District shall be void. 

19.4. Waiver. No waiver by either Party of any provisions of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless explicitly stated in writing and executed by the Pruty so waiving. Except as 
provided in the preceding sentence, no action taken pursuant to this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, any investigation by or on behalf of either Party, shall be deemed to constitute a waiver 
by the Party taking such action regarding compliance with any representations, warranties, 
covenants, or provisions of this Agreement. The waiver by either Party of a breach of any provision 
of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. No 
waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed, or shall constitute, a waiver of 
any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver. 

19.5. Headings. The section beadings contained in this Agreement are for convenience 
and reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

19.6. Severability. If any te1m, provision, covenant, or condition ofthis Agreement shall 
be or become illegal, null, void, or against public policy, or shall be held by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal, null, void, or against policy, the remaining provisions of this Agreement 

7 



shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired, or invalidated. The term, 
provision, covenant, or condition that is so invalidated, vo ided, or held to be unenforceable, shall be 
modified or changed by the Parties to the extent possible to carry out the intentions and directives 
set forth in this Agreement. 

19.7. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

19.8. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and interpreted in 
accordance with, the laws ofthe State of California, with Superior Court venue proper only in the 
County of Santa Barbara, State of California. 

19.9. Parties in Interest. Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is 
intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any persons other 
than the Parties to it and their respective successors and assigns, nor is anything in this Agreement 
intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of any third persons to either Party to this 
Agreement, nor shall any provision give any third persons any right of subrogation or action against 
either Party to this Agreement. 

19.10. Attorneys' and Consultants' Fees. If any legal proceeding (lawsuit, arbitration, etc.), 
including but not limited to an action for injunctive and/or declaratory relief, is brought to enforce 
or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover actual 
attorneys' and consultants' fees and costs, which may be determined by the court in the same action 
or in a separate action brought for that purpose. The attorneys' and consultants' fees award shall be 
made as to fully reimburse for all attorneys' fees, paralegal fees, consultants' fees, and costs and 
expenses actually incurred in good faith, regardless of the size of the judgment, it being the 
intention of the Parties to fully compensate for all attorneys' fees, paralegal fees, consultants' fees, 
and costs and expenses paid or incurred in good faith. 

19 .11. Good Faith. The Parties agree to exercise their best efforts and good faith to 
effectuate all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and to execute such further instruments 
and documents as are necessary or appropriate to effectuate all of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

19.12. Construction. The provisions of this Agreement should be liberally construed to 
effectuate its purposes. The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be construed simply 
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either Party, as each Party 
has participated in the drafting of this document and had the opportunity to have their legal counsel 
review it. 

19.13. Several Obligations. Except where specifically stated in this Agreement to be 
otherwise, the duties, obligations, and liabilities of the Parties are intended to be several and not 
joint or collective. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create an association, 
trust, partnership, or joint venture or impose a trust or partnership duty, obligation, or liability on or 
with regard to either Party. Each Party shall be individually and severally liable for its own 
obligations under this Agreement. 

8 



19 .14. Authmity. The individuals executing this Agreement represent and wammt that they 
have the authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform all acts required by this Agreement, 
and that the consent, approval, or execution of or by any third pruiy is not required to legally bind 
either Party to the tem1s and conditions of this Agreement. 

19.15. Amendments. This Agreement may be altered, amended, or modified only by an 
instrument in writing, executed by the Par1ies to this Agreement and by no other means. Each Party 
waives its future right to claim, contest, or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, 
superseded, or changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver, or estoppel. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date set fmih above. 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No. 1 

By: 

By: 

Paeter E. Garcia 
General Manager 

Mary Martone 
Secretary 

Railway Jonata, LLC 

By: 
anager 

9 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 
Attn: General Manager 
P.O. Box 157 
Santa Ynez, California 93460 

THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDER 
(Gov. Code§ 27361.6) 

No Fee Per Government Code § 61 03 
No Document Transfer Tax per 
Rev. & Taxation Code§ 11922 

GRANT OF EASEMENT 

This Grant of Easement ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of A,;.x ... ?.• • .ltv :;" , 2020 
by and between Railway Jonata, LLC , a California limited liability company ("Grantor") and the 
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 , a California public 
agency ("Grantee» or "District»), at Santa Ynez, Santa Barbara County, California, with reference to 
the following facts and intentions: 

A. Grantor is the owner of certain real property located at 2350 Railway Avenue, Los 
Olivos, California 93441 , described as Assessor's Parcel Numbers 135-064-002, 135-064-004, 135-
064-011, 135-064-020, 135-073-00, 135-073-021, and 135-073-003, and more particularly 
described in the legal description set forth in the attached Exhibit A , which is incorporated by this 
reference ("Property") ; 

B. Grantee currently has an existing easement across portions of the Property for use in 
conjunction with its water distribution facilities , as described in the legal description set forth in the 
attached Exhibit B, which is incorporated by this reference ("Existing Easement"); and, 

C. In order to facilitate in Grantor's development of the Property, Grantor desires 
Grantee to relocate some of Grantee's water distribution facilities and agrees to grant a new 
easement to Grantee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Easement. For valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
acknowledged, Grantor grants to Grantee a non-exclusive, permanent easement in gross under, 
over, through, and across the Property for the following purposes (collectively, "Easement"): 

a. Ingress and egress related to Grantee's existing and future water distribution 
facilities; and, 

b . To survey, install , construct, reconstruct, enlarge, alter, operate, patrol , remove, 
renew, replace, inspect, repair, monitor, and maintain Grantee's water distribution facilities 
including, but not limited to, water mains and pipelines, water service connections, fire hydrants, 
meters, valves, and other facilities which are necessary or convenient for Grantee's water 
distribution system. 



Grant of Easement 
Page 2 

2. Easement Area. The Easement shall be located on that portion of the Property which is 
described in the map and legal description set forth in the attached Exhibit C, which is incorporated 
by this reference ("Easement Area"). 

3. Grantor's Use of the Easement. Grantor reserves the right to improve the Easement Area 
for any purpose provided such activities do not unreasonably interfere with the Easement or impair 
Grantee's reasonable exercise of its rights under this Agreement. Grantor shall not erect or 
construct, nor permit to be erected or constructed, in the Easement Area any permanent structures, 
walls, or fences (collectively, "Structures"), except as permitted by the prior written approval of 
Grantee. 

4. Maintenance of Easement Area. Grantor shall keep, maintain, and preserve Grantor's 
improvements located within the Easement Area in good condition at all times. 

5. Right to Access. Grantee shall have twenty-four (24) hour access to the Easement Area, 
without prior notice to Grantor, for the purposes described in Section 1, above. 

6. Damage to Improvements. Each party hereto shall repair any damage to the other party's 
property (real or personal) and/or improvements located on the Property which occurs as a result of 
that party's acts or omissions, except that Grantee shall not be liable to Grantor for damage to any 
Structures which impermissibly encroach upon the Easement Area. To determine the existence 
and extent of any damage, the party discovering the damage shall notify the other party. The parties 
shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, jointly inspect the damaged property and/or improvements 
and use their best reasonable efforts to mutually agree as to the cause, responsibility, extent and 
repair/replacement of the damaged property and/or improvements. 

7. Earth Cover. Grantee shall have the right to maintain at least three (3) feet of earth and/or 
pavement related cover, as determined in Grantee's sole discretion, over the top of Grantee's water 
main in the Easement Area. Grantor shall not conduct, or permit others to _conduct, grading 
operations or the use of explosives within or proximate to the Easement Area to avoid damaging 
Grantee's water distribution facilities. Grantor shall not, and shall not allow others to, change the 
ground surface elevation within the Easement Area without Grantee's prior written consent. 

8. Maintenance of Facilities. Grantee shall maintain its water distribution facilities in 
accordance with applicable laws and Grantee's ordinances, and Rules and Regulations. Grantee 
shall repair all damage or disturbance to the Property, including any of Grantor's improvements, 
within or outside the Easement Area, caused by Grantee's ingress, egress, construction, 
reconstruction, operation, maintenance, repair, or replacement of its water distribution facilities. All 
such work shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner. In undertaking such work, 
Grantee shall reasonably repair any surface improvements disturbed by Grantee's work by patching 
or replacing only those portions of such surface improvements disturbed by Grantee, wherein the 
parties recognize and agree that such patched or replaced portions may not conform exactly with 
the pre-existing appearance or condition of the surface improvements. 



Grant of Easement 
Page 3 

9. Non-potable Treated Wastewater System. 

9.1 Special Indemnification. Grantor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify 
Grantee, and its elected officials, officers, employees, contractors, consultants, agents, and 
representatives from any and all liabilities, losses, costs, expenses, claims, suits, actions, damages, 
and claims of damages caused by or arising out of the non-potable treated wastewater system on 
the Property, except to the extent of any liabilities, losses, costs, expenses, claims, suits, actions, 
damages, or claims of damages caused by the District's active negligence or willful misconduct. 

9.2. Insurance. Grantor shall purchase and maintain commercial general liability 
insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1 ,000,000.00) per occurrence for 
bodily injury and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for property damage, naming Grantee as an 
additional insured , in connection with the non-potable treated wastewater system on the Property, 
and provide proof of such insurance to Grantee. In any event that non-potable treated wastewater 
from the non-potable treated wastewater system adversely impacts any of Grantee's existing or 
future water distribution facilities, Grantor, at its sole cost and expense, shall be responsible for 
remedying the adverse impacts to Grantee's water distribution facilities as determined in Grantee's 
sole discretion. Grantor's obligations under this Section shall continue for so long as any non
potable treated wastewater is dispersed in any way on the Property, and such obligations of Grantor 
shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

9.3. Limitations on Grantor's Use of the Property. No portion or component of the non-
potable treated wastewater dispersal system on the Property shall be located within twenty-five (25) 
feet horizontally of Grantee's potable water main that is located within the Easement Area, and no 
portion or component of the non-potable treated wastewater dispersal system shall disperse treated 
wastewater at an elevation higher than the bottom of Grantee's water main that is located within the 
Easement Area. Grantor shall not allow non-potable treated wastewater from the non-potable 
treated wastewater system to migrate to or adversely impact Grantee's potable water distribution 
facilities located within the Easement Area. 

10. Remedies. Grantor's breach of its obligations under this Agreement will cause irreparable 
harm to Grantee with respect to its water distribution facilities. Accordingly , Grantor acknowledges 
that any remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will be inadequate and 
agrees that in the event of a breach or threatened breach by Grantor of the provisions of this 
Agreement, Grantee shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity 
to: (i) suspend water service to the Property; (ii) obtain an injunction or injunctions restraining, 
preventing, or curing any breach of this Agreement; and (iii) enforce specifically the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond 
or other security being required. 

11. Covenants Running with the Land. This Agreement and the rights, duties, and obligations 
of the parties hereto shall be construed as covenants running with the land pursuant to California 
Civil Code section 1468. 

12. Subordination. Grantor shall obtain a title insurance report showing the current status of 
title for the Property as of the date of this Agreement. Grantor agrees to obtain a subordination of 
any easement deed of trust or other encumbrances located within the Easement Area that are 
recorded on or before the date of the title insurance report. Grantor further represents and warrants 



Grant of Easement 
Page 4 

to Grantee that it shall not cause any easement or other encumbrance located within the Easement 
Area to be recorded prior to the recordation of this Agreement. The subordination(s) shall be in a 
form reasonably satisfactory to Grantee. 

13. Indemnification. In addition to the indemnification obligations set forth in Section 9, above, 
Grantor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify Grantee, and its elected officials, officers, 
employees, contractors, consultants, agents, and representatives from any and all liabilities, losses, 
costs, expenses, claims, suits, actions, damages, and claims of damages caused by or arising out 
of: (i) Grantor's ownership, use, and activities related to the Property and the Easement Area ; and 
(ii) Grantor's breach of this Agreement, except to the extent of any liabilities, losses, costs, 
expenses, claims, suits, actions, damages, or claims of damages caused by the District's active 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

14. General Provisions. 

14.1 Cooperation and Good Faith. The parties hereto agree to exercise their best efforts 
and utmost good faith to effectuate all the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Each party shall, 
whenever and as often as reasonably requested to do so by the other party, execute, acknowledge 
and deliver or cause to be executed, acknowledged, and delivered any and all documents and 
instruments as may be necessary, expedient, or proper in the reasonable opinion of the requesting 
party to carry out the intent and purposes of this Agreement, provided that the requesting party shall 
bear the cost and expense of such further instruments or documents, except that each party shall 
bear its own attorneys' fees and consultants' fees. 

14.2 Authority. The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they 
have the authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform all acts required by this Agreement, 
and that the consent, approval, or execution of or by any third party is not required to legally bind 
either party to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

14.3 Construction. The provisions of this Agreement should be liberally construed to 
effectuate its purposes. The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be construed simply 
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either party, as each party 
has participated in the drafting of this document and had the opportunity to have their counsel 
review it. Whenever the context and construction so requires, all words used in the singular shall 
be deemed to be used in the plural. 

14.4 Notice. All notices, approvals, acceptances, demands and other communications 
required or permitted hereunder, to be effective shall be in writing and shall be delivered either in 
person or by mailing the same by United States mail (postage prepaid, registered or certified, return 
receipt requested) or by Federal Express or other similar overnight delivery service to the party to 
whom the notice is directed at the address of such party as follows: 

Grantor: Brian Strange 
Railway Jonata, LLC 
12100 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1900 
Los Angeles, California 90025 



Grant of Easement 
Page 5 

Grantee: 

With Copy to: 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 
Attn: General Manager 
P.O. Box 157 
Santa Ynez, California 93460 

Gary M. Kvistad 
Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
1 021 Anacapa Street, Second Floor 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Any written communication given by mail shall be deemed delivered two (2} business days after 
such mailing date and any written communication given by overnight delivery service shall be 
deemed delivered one (1) business day after the dispatch date. Either party may change its address 
by giving the other party written notice of its new address as herein provided. 

14.5 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors , and 
assigns. 

14.6 Governing Law. The validity and interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the State of California without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws, with 
venue for all purposes to be proper only in the County of Santa Barbara, State of California. 

14.7 Severability. If any term, provision, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is 
determined to be unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is the parties' intent that the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected, 
impaired, or invalidated by such a determination. 

14.8 Attorneys' and Consultants' Fees. If any arbitration or action at law or equity, 
including an action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover actual attorneys' fees and consultants ' 
fees which may be determined by the court in the same action or in a separate action brought for 
that purpose. The attorneys' fees and consultants' fees to be awarded shall be made to fully 
reimburse for all attorneys' fees, paralegal fees, consultants' fees, costs, and expenses actually 
incurred in good faith, regardless ofthe size of the judgment, it being the intention of the parties to 
fully compensate for all attorneys' fees, paralegal fees, consultants' fees, costs, and expenses 
incurred in good faith. 

14.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original , and all of which shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

14.1 0 Waiver. The waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement by any party to 
this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any proceeding or subsequent breach under 
the Agreement, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver. No waiver shall be binding 
unless executed in writing by the party making the waiver. 



Grant of Easement 
Page6 

14.11 Amendments. This Agreement may be altered, amended , or modified only by an 
instrument in writing , executed by the parties to this Agreement and by no other means. Each party 
waives its future right to claim, contest, or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled , 
superseded, or changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver, or estoppel. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
first above written. 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 

By: 
Jeff Clay, Board President 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Mary Martone, Clerk of the Board 

Railway Jonata, LLC 

By: 



Grant of Easement 
Page? 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

This Certificate of Acceptance certifies that the interest in real property conveyed by the above 
Agreement dated , 2020 between the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 , a California public agency, and Railway Jonata, LLC, a 
California limited liability company, is hereby accepted by the undersigned officer on behalf of the 
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1, pursuant to authority 
conferred by the Board of Trustees of the Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No.1, adopted on , 2020, and consents to the recordation of the 
Agreement by its duly authorized officer. 

Dated: , 2020 Santa Ynez River Water Conservation 
District, Improvement District No.1 

By: 
Mary Martone, Clerk of the Board 



Grant of Easement 
Page8 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A rwtaJ)' public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTYOF ) 

On before me,---- ---------- ----
(insert name and title of the officer) 

personally appeared , who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument, the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) 
acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature (Seal) 



Grant of Easement 
Page9 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY oF{ 0 ~ f'hsvlo_Y.;.) 
On ~OV · ·:), ODOO before me, Sv~.n5w\.\% LJCx.?oP--1->. ~...lo-kA..v \>u...b 'ltC... 

•. , t (insert name and title of the officer) 
personally appeared £::> ~---""' Sj:\0\ vo.Cf.Q.., , who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(:;? whose name~) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he/sh~tt11-e..y executed the same in his/h&fftae.ir authorized capacity(~, and that by 
his/henLtlreir signature~ on the instrument, the person,01, or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s.r' 
acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my ~and official seal. 

Signature ~00{)..9-~ 
SUSAN SMITH-WOODEN 
Notary Public - California 

Ventura County ~ 
Commission# 2170139 ~ 

My Comm. Expires Nov 27. 2020 



DocuSign Envelope ID: EEA8D267-D759-42B4-882F-A148387AAC21 

G 
,-..' ,,n "t ,~~"/-. 

:' • ~r - ~ 

: ' ; ,: ~- ~ 
/ ··~ _ ...... - .. 

J ..... : ~; ~ - \ ...... 

' ·-It ;1 (Jh 

~iiii -~ ~7"ER DISt~\ 

Agenda !tem XIII.- Reports 

The Cachuma Project Member Units 
Goleta Water District 
City of Santa Barbara 

Montecito Water District 
Carpinteria Valley Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No. 1 

October 16, 2020 

Michael P. Jackson, P.E. 
Area Manager 
United States Bureau of Reclamation 
South-Central California Area Office 
1243 N Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 

Re: Cachuma Project- Yield Study Matters 

Dear Mr. Jackson: 

As the Cachuma Project Member Units, we are writing to follow-up on the important process of 
analyzing yield issues for the Cachuma Project. Please understand, we would like to 
collaboratively work with Reclamation, the Santa Barbara County Water Agency, and others in 
tackling this fundamental topic. Indeed, yield goes to the heart of the Congressionally
authorized purpose of the Cachuma Project- water supply for domestic and agricultural needs 
-and it is without question that Cachuma Project water supplies are critical to the Member 
Units, communities, businesses, farms, and families we serve. 

The Member Units believe this process must involve a transparent and candid dialogue 
regarding the underlying objectives of Project yield, how it relates to other Project issues, and 
how working together, we may develop the most effective means for achieving the intended 
outcome. For the last 25 years, the Project has been administered under Master Contract No. 
175r-1802R according to an operating yield of 25,714 afy. Recently, the same yield number was 
used as the basis for the Amendment to the Master Contract (Amendatory Contract No. 175r-
1802RA), which will remain in place for up to the next three years. In finalizing the Amendatory 
Contract, Reclamation told the Member Units that the ensuing interim period will enable the 
parties to analyze and negotiate the substantive, policy, and operational issues related to 
establishing Project yield for the next long-term water supply contract. We completely agree. 
Yield and various other issues affecting long-term administration of the Cachuma Project require 
meaningful and collaborative deliberation with all parties, particularly the Member Units. 



DocuSign Envelope 10: EEA80267-D759-42B4-882F-A148387AAC21 

Consistent with the process of negotiating Project yield issues during the interim period, Term 
16(f) of State Water Resources Control Board Water Rights Order 2019-0148 requires 
Reclamation to confer with the Member Units regarding Project yield, and together our agencies 
must consider various factors and assumptions as part of the analysis. (See Order WR 2019-
0148, p. 137.) The Member Units are ready for that process ·and, as you know, we have 
committed to undertaking an independent yield study for Reclamation to consider alongside the 
draft study recently published by the County Water Agency, entitled "Draft, June 2020, Safe and 
Operational Yields of the Cachuma Project" (herein, the "County Study"). As set forth in our 
letter to the County Water Agency dated August 21 , 2020, the Member Units disagree with the 
County Study for various reasons, including the fact that the Member Units were not consulted 
with prior to or during the preparation of that work regarding the objectives, assumptions, or 
other factors that led to its conclusions. We believe the approach referenced contravenes the 
deliberative negotiation process described by Reclamation, and is inconsistent with the 
requirements of State Board Order 2019-0148. 

In sum, the Member Units should have a direct role in the process of evaluating and 
establishing Project yield. We have financed the Project, pay for the supplies, and are directly 
responsible for purveying those supplies to users throughout our communities. For the life of the 
Cachuma Project, we have fiercely defended Reclamation's water rights and have invested 
multimillions of dollars to ensure environmental stewardship and compliance with all federal, 
state, and local regulatory requirements. In addition to the County Study and ongoing input from 
the County Water Agency, the Member Units believe Reclamation should give appropriate 
consideration to perspectives and analyses provided by the Member Units. 

We appreciate your consideration in this matter and look forward to collaborating with 
Reclamation, the County Water Agency, and others in analyzing yield issues for the Gachuma 
Project. We are open to discussing any of these issues at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

~
DocuS;gned by: 

~ At(,/LAJ..U,S 
~~tlft'~cesg ... 

General Manager 
Goleta Water District 

~
DocuSigned by: 

N~s~ 
~tfemfg'"MjYner 

General Manager 
Montecito Water District 

~
DocuSigned by: 

tU1t.r WclA
e~r~rC~" 

General Manager 

G.:f!~~k 
)isnua Haggmar 
Water Resources Manager 
City of Santa Barbara 

~
DocuSigned by: 

~ut/lA.JJ~ 
B~~[Y6nald 

General Manager 
Carpinteria Valley Water District 

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, Improvement District No.1 

Cc: Ernest Conant, Regional Director, USSR; Russell Calleja, Deputy Regional Director, 
USSR; Tom Fayram, Deputy Director of Public Works, County of Santa Barbara; Matt Young, 
Manager, Santa Barbara County Water Agency 



Paeter Garcia 

=rom: 

Sent: 
To: 

Mary Martone 
Thursday, November 12, 2020 8:53 AM 
Paeter Garcia 

Agenda Item XIII. Re ports 

Subject: FW: Opposition to Retail Cannabis storefronts in the Valley 
Attachments: Info Sheet - Recreat ional Marij uana Storefronts.d4 (00000003).docx; Marijuana letter 

template 1 0-20.docx 

----Original Message-----
From: Abello, Kyle <kabello@ucsd.edu> 
Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 2:43 PM 
To: general@syrwd.org 
Cc: Jeff Clay <jclay@syrwd.org> 
Subject: Opposition to Retail Cannabis storefronts in the Valley 

Hello President Clay and Mr. Garcia, 

The SYV Youth Coalition has been working to educate Valley residents on the actions of the Board of Supervisors relating 
to cannabis storefronts in the unincorporated Valley areas, especially the township of Santa Ynez. The Youth Coalition 
opposes retail cannabis storefronts and the negative impact they would have by lowering barriers to underage use, 
access, and acceptability of marijuana. I've attached an Info Sheet and sample opposition letter from the Youth 
Coalition. We are asking any and all local agencies, chambers of commerce, schools, and other organizations to join us 
in sending a letter of opposition to the Board of Supervisors. Please let me know the best way to bring this request to 
your Board's attention. 

Thank you, 
Kyle Abello 

1 



Youth Marijuana Use Is Dangerous 

Greater Access to Marijuana = Greater Use of Marijuana by Our Youth 

a Rethin~ing Access 
• to ManJuana 

DID YOU KNOW? 

.. •o····'"'oJ-· ... :··· 
....... ,,/~0 .. \ ; 

of 4lme·riqp;W.,~ha 
dru·l proltl~,~~r.t;.. 
amold~J. -drin~Jnl:o( 
using·~·~~.._ ... ........ , ••.• ,~ 

·ftttttltt.i ·:- . ' . . 
''·' 

ttt.t·tflttt . ' ._ •' 

H••VJ mariJuana:••• 
~arti11g il.t' J,o~r,t.en.s.'or 
JOUng .... C,i'n;~~~·i' J.OIIr··· ·· 
lq .. , ..... , : ..... , ... : .. 

. , ••. ,.~~ <: ·. . ' 

'_;t} ~ .:: r-~:(.~' ·~\. : 

National Institute on Drug Abuse for Teens- teens.drugabuse.gov 
Above the Influence -www.abovetheinfluence.com 

Marijuana Fact Check- www.mjfactcheck.org 

A Retail Cannabis Shop in SYV Could Harm Our Youth! 

"Emerging studies of marijuana commercialization show 

pronounced negative effects. And more comprehensive studies 

of even medical marijuana show harm to youth. "2 

Marijuana commercialization, and the subsequent 

normalization of marijuana use, plays a significant role in 

the increased use of marijuana among youth. "1 

23% of SYV High Schoolll th graders report 

regular use of Marijuana Products! 

A 2017 study found that the longer duration of legalization 

and higher dispensary density was associated with 

increased use of vaping (inhaling vaporized marijuana oils) 

and consumption of edibles by 14- to 18-year olds. "1 

A 2019 study found that recreational legalization of 

Marijuana was followed by a 25% increase in 

adolescent Cannabis Use Disorder (CUD). "1 

"Marijuana-related businesses should not be located near areas 

youth frequent such as schools, parks, and playgrounds. "3 

How can you help protect our kids? 

• Advocate for policies that protect our youth 

• Write to your SB County Supervisors 

• Talk with your kids about youth substance use 

• Educate your adult family and friends about 

keeping cannabis products away from youth 

• Stay informed and educate yourself 

1. SAM. https:/ /lea rna boutsam.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/2020-
1 mpact -Report. pdf 

2. Hudson. https:/ /www.hudson.org/research/ 11457-legal-marijuana

and-youth-new-evidence 

3. RAM. www.lacountyram.org 

Interested in learning more? 
Contact Mary Conway at the SYV Youth Coalition 

mary@syvphp.org or 805-686-0295 



Did You Know: 

,6 SANTA YNEZ VALLEY 
~YOUTH COALITION 

Retail Marijuana Storefronts 
In the Santa Ynez Valley 

• SB Board of Supervisors voted to allow one recreational Cannabis storefront in each of the six county's 

"community plan areas": Santa Ynez Valley, Orcutt, Los Alamos, Eastern Goleta Valley, and Isla Vista 

• Vandenberg Village area and Montecito unincorporated areas have already been exempted earlier 

• Just 18 of the state's 58 counties permit cannabis businesses in unincorporated areas 

• Fewer than one in three California cities (144 out of 482) allow any kind of cannabis business 

• Cities not allowing storefronts are: Buellton, Solvang Guadalupe, Santa Maria, Carpinteria, 

• Cities allowing storefronts are: Santa Barbara, Goleta, Lompoc 

• Deadline for retailers to submit their business application to the County was November 2nd 2020 

• Possibly Marijuana storefront in the Santa Ynez Valley w ill open by Spring 2021 

Location Criteria: 

• Must be zoned as commercial, shopping center, or light industry; and cannot be within 750 feet of a school, 

daycare center, or youth center. 

• Locations in the Santa Ynez Valley that meet zoning criteria are: 

o A strip of land along Mission Drive at the western edge of Solvang); 

o Two lots in Los Olivos 

o Nearly all of downtown Santa Ynez, (92% of the potential locations.) 

SB County Process: 

• Permit awarded on a "merit-based" process to score applicants. 

• Two scoresheets: One for Business Operations {record of operations in SB County, finance plan, 

procurement and delivery plan, communications and marketing plan, employment plan, labor peace 

agreement, site security plan 

• One for Neighborhood Compatibility {customer education, community education, community involvement, 

design, odor control, parking). 

• Only residents within 1000 feet of the proposed storefront will be given notice 

This info does not include medical marijuana dispensaries, administrative offices, or test facilities 
More information can be found at Cannabis.countyofsb.org 



Date _____ _ 

Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
105 East Anapamu St 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
Dear County Supervisors, 

Cannabis retail business has already been banned from the Cities of Solvang and Buellton and 
does not belong in the unincorporated towns of the Santa Ynez Valley either. It is my/our/on 
Behalf of appeal that the Board of Supervisors take action to ban retail cannabis 
storefronts from the townships of Santa Ynez and los Olivos too. At the very least, a permit to 
sell addictive consumables should be in an industrial area away from homes and children. 

1/We was/were totally surprised to learn that applications were already being taken to set up a 
marijuana storefront in our community. The county process has apparently not been very 
transparent and has used outreach and language that has been misleading and confusing to 
residents. Who would have ever thought that our Valley would be home to a retail marijuana 
store? 

The county's ordinance does exclude areas near schools, day care centers and youth 
centers. That's a big city-oriented thought process though, that doesn't work in the 
unincorporated SYV. In our small communities we have licensed childcare in homes that are not 
even on the radar of a 750-foot barrier. We don't have youth centers. Instead, our kids ride 
their bikes, and skateboard all throughout downtown Santa Ynez and los Olivos. In effect, our 
commercial areas that are being considered, are giant youth centers. A marijuana storefront in 
these small townships will forever change the valued character of our community. 

There are already more than a dozen marijuana storefronts available a short drive away, in the 
same places most of us already go for regular shopping. Marijuana is also delivered to the 
Valley and unfortunately, with little oversight, is getting into the hands of our youth. 

The residents of the Santa Ynez Valley have already borne the majority of negative effects of 
the county's pro-marijuana programs. We should not be asked to bear any more. As we carry 
the burden of increased crime, increased drugged driving, and the Stench in our air, we don't 
even reap any of the benefits of the taxes collected that could reduce harm. 

Just as you exempted the unincorporated lompoc Valley and Montecito from recreational 
marijuana storefronts, I ask that you exempt the Santa Ynez Valley. Please respect the values of 
our neighborhoods, and don't permit a storefront that will ultimately destroy the character and 
safety of our community. 

Thank you, 

Signature 



\ : ... \\ '• ""' . ~ 
"' I ' .-->,.,_1 1--f~·~~ ~ ::- .- -~: ·- ~:-_' ~ 

- J : - '.: "" ,..., -' ' r-"';. -- i 1'1' -
··=-·' ~~:~ "'!'~ 

r -=;;-.:;, .. ' 
It IJ.O\t'' 

Contact: 
Kelly Odion 
kod ion@cosbpw. net 
(805) 568-3541 

Agenda Item XIII. Reports 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

123 E. Anapamu St. • Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
{805) 568-3000 • FAX (805} 568-3019 

www.countyofsb.org/PWD 

PRESS RELEASE 
OCT. 29, 2020 

VIDEO CONTEST CHALLENGES COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS 
Water Wise English and Spanish video submissions are due March 5, 2021 

(Santa Barbara, Calif.)- The Santa Barbara County Water Agency is pleased to announce the 
opening of applications for the 22"d Annual WaterWise High School Video Contest. Every year, 
students compete to create entertaining and informational 30-second videos that convey the 
importance of water use efficiency in Santa Barbara County. The contest theme is "Do it Yourself 
the Water Wise Way''. The themewas inspired by the unusual circumstances of this year, as people 
are staying home and taking on new projects and students are faced with the added challenge of 
learning remotely. 

The contest meets several California State Department of Education Content Standards, including 
implementing world languages. As the County Water Agency Manager Matt Young states, "We are 
excited to continue this long-standing program and to see the creative videos that our local high 
school students submit." Up to six videos, three English and three Spanish, may be submitted per 
school. The winning videos will receive prizes and have their videos aired on local TV and in movie 
theatres. 

While the County Water Agency and water providers arrange for monetary prizes to the winning 
schools, local private sector sponsors provide awards for the students: 

• First Place (English): $500 provided by Carollo Engineers. 

• First Place (Spanish): $500 provided by Univision. 
• Second Place: $250 provided by Geosyntec. 

• Third Place: $150 provided by Ewing Irrigation. 

• Two Honorable Mentions for North and South County submissions: 
o North County: Car wash vouchers provided by Splash N' Dash Car Wash. 
o South County: Film festival tickets provided by the Santa Barbara International Film 

Festival. 

• People's Choice Award (voted by the public on the WaterWiseSB YouTube Channel): $500 
provided by Flume Water. 

In order to be eligible to win prizes, student participants must submit their videos and completed 
Application Packet online by 11:59 p.m. on Friday, March 5, 2021. The student winners will be 
publically announced in May 2021. 

The County Water Agency and local water providers thank our community sponsors for their 
generous support and look forward to seeing the creative videos that students submit for the 
contest! 

To learn more and to apply for the contest, visit WaterWiseSB.org/HSVC. 



Agenda Item XIII. Reports 

MID-PACIFIC 
WATER USERS' CONFERENCE 

Planning Committee 

Chris Dahlstrom, Chair 
Santa Ynez River 
WCD ID #/ (retired) 

Larry Bauman 
CVP Water Asscciation 

Jeff Bryant 
Firebaugh Canal 
Water District 

Anthea Hansen 
Del Puerto Water District 

Dan Keppen 
Family Fann Alliance 

Sheryl Looper 
Bureau of Reclamation 

Bob Oakden 
Truckee-Carson 
Irrigation Districr 

Jason Phillips 
Friant Water Authority 

Paul Simmons 
Klamath Water Users 
Association 

Jeff Sutton 
Tehama-Colusa Canal 
A uthority 

Jane Townsend 
Debbie Murdock 
Q.mference Coordinatot·s 

S.Y.A.W.C.D.ID. #1 

NOV - ~ ?n?n 

RECEIVED 

It is with great regret that the conference planning committee has decided to 
cancel the January 2021 Mid-Pacific Water Users' Conference. 

This decision was not made lightly or without careful cons_ideration of our 
options. With the global COVID pandemic, and the uncertainty that 
surrounds us during this difficult time, the committee feels it is not in the 
best interest of our attendees to move forward at this time. 

Your safety and wellbeing are our primary concerns. Many of you, 
understandably, do not feel comfortable travelling or attending a large 
event. Travel restrictions currently in place by the Bureau of Reclamation 
and other government agencies would prevent their in-person participation. 
In consideration of these factors, the committee feels that cancelling the 
conference is the most prudent course of action. 

It is our sincere hope that by January 2022, the situation will have 
significantly improved, and we can move forward with confidence. In the 
meantime, we wish you and your families health and prosperity in the 
coming year. 

Should you have questions or concerns, please feel free to contact Jane 
Townsend at (916)206-7186 or by email jane@agamsi.com. 

S.Y.R.VV.C.D. 10.#1 
• , '> '}11?0 

.. ~u ..... 

RECEIVED 

1521 I Street * Sacramento, California 95814 * (916) 448-1638 * Fax (916) 446-1063 
www.waternsersconference.com 



Protecting Water for Western I"igated Agriculture 

onthl Briefing 
A S11.111111tuy of the AUitmce~'s Recent and Upcoming .Adivitin and Important Watn New!J 

President Trump Signs Executive Order 
On Water Resource Management and Infrastructure 

President Donald Trump earlier this month signed an 
Executive Order (EO) on "Modernizing America's Water 
Resource Management and Water Infrastructure." This his
toric action ensures 
Federal coordination 
on water policy is 
standard practice now 
and into the future by 
formally establishing a 
Water Subcabinet of 
senior Federal agency 
officials to facilitate 
efficient and effective 
management and mod
ernization of our water 
supplies and systems 
while also eliminating 
duplication between 
agencies. 

bureaucratic red tape and improve water infrastructure." 
The formal establishment of the Water Subcabinet was 

applauded by the Family Farm Alliance, which hosted sever
==~..,., al members of an ear= ··· ' · 1 

lier, more informal 

"The Trump Ad
ministration has made 
it a priority to ensure 
communities across 
the nation receive safe, 
reliable water," said 
U.S. Secretary of the 
Interior David Bern

version of the Subcab
inet at the organiza
tion's annual confer
ence last February in 
Reno (NEVADA); At 
that event, Aubrey 
Bettencourt, Deputy to 
Tim Petty (Assistant 
Secretary for Water 
and Science, Depart
ment of the Interior), 
acted as master of 
ceremonies for a 90-
minute discussion, 
providing Western 
farmers and ranchers 
with a first-hand op
portunity to see how 
the highest level water 
officials from multiple 
departments in the 

T. . <- ··- · Trump Administration 
hardt. "Today's action by President Trump furthers our in
credible efforts over the past three and a half years to cut 

are coordinating on Western water challenges. 

Continued on Page 2 



Monthly Briefing October 2020 

I Presidential Water EO (Cont'd (rom Pg. 1) 
"An informal Water Subcabinet has been working togeth

er under thls Administration for the past several years," said 
Dan Keppen, Alliance Executive Director. "We are already 
seeing improved coordination among the multiple federal 
agencies who have jurisdiction over Western water matters. 
Formally establishing the Water Subcabinet with this execu
tive order should further improve agency coordination and 
decision-making, necessary components to managing Western 
water resources 
and moderniz
ing our aging 
water infrastruc
ture." 

Trump for establishing a streamlined, dedicated Water Sub
cabinet to address such a critical issue for Western states." 

Completion of Actions Under the Western Water PM 

The President's EO followed up on a meeting conduct
ed earlier in the month, where CEQ joined the Departments of 

the Interior, Com
merce, Energy, 
the U.S. Army 
Corps ofEngi
neers, and EPA in 
announcing the 
completion of all 
actions directed 
by the October 
2018 Presidential 
Memorandum on 
Promoting the 
Reliable Supply 
and Delivery of 
Water in the West 
(Western Water 
PM). 

Under Presi
dent Trump's 
earlier directive, 
agencies coordi
nated to complete 
the environmental 
reviews of major 
water infrastruc
ture projects in 
California, Ore
gon, Washington, 
Idaho, and Mon-

The new, 
formalized Wa
ter Subcabinet 
will be co
chaired by Inte
rior Secretary 
Bernhardt and 
U.S. Environ
mental Protec
tion Agency 
(EPA) Adminis
trator Andrew 
Wheeler, and 
will include 
senior officials 
from the U.S. 
Department of 
Agriculture 
(USDA), the 
Department of 
Commerce, the 
Department of 
Energy, and the 
Department of 
the Army (Civil 
Works). 

;]J-;j;i;~ijj}j't'f_i4!iJ,ii?J~TtffJY'aJ.-Jui.-:;iJri~"tij,-;d[jjp~tjfiiJ1Ji~~~·se~;;t;;;y-;,jii,~-;i,... tana, to mee~ the 
,~y);J'!tftj~~PJ/Ftiili_Jl1i~d~~ Family FarmAlliifiice);~~~fit "Kepp~ (Alliance Exe~- . needs ofagnc~
:Dir.J,;-1jJf!l!f~DiX(!!JjJstlif!(S~~ret~ryfor Wf!ter aluJ.:s~finpf/J!ep!t ofll!tenor), Jim·:Riilly · tural commuruties "President 

Trump is com
mitted to mak

, (Dir!-£!tfti~V~Jf§)i'fif!_(IJ!li,Y.i! ll:.,o#s (Assistant At!~1nWJ;!ltpi, :Qj]ke of JJ"atelj .EP,A). and oth~thinr ~atther ·· ·· --- -··--- ···· - · .. ·· · --···- - · usersWI e 

ing it easier for farmers be successful and to ensure they are 
the most innovative in the world," said USDA Under Secre
tary for Farm Production and Conservation Bill Northey. 
"Today's Executive Order is evidence of that commitment." 

The Water Subcabinet will work in close coordination 
with senior officials from the White House Council on Envi
ronmental Quality (CEQ), the Office of Management and 
Budget, and the Office of Science and Technology Policy, 
and other federal agencies. 

Infrastructure is a priority in the EO, which was greeted 
with enthusiasm by some Western lawmakers. 

' 'Reliable water supply administered through sound water 
infrastructure is essential for Nebraska's farmers, producers, 
and consumers alike," said Congressman Adrian Smith (R
NEBRAKSA). "We saw that firsthand with the Gering-Ft. 
Laramie irrigation tunnel collapse last year, which impacted 
100,000 acres of Nebraska farmland. I commend President 

region. The Family Farm Alliance's support for these accom
plishments were noted in a Trump Administration press re
lease. 

Follow-Up Actions to Presidential EO 

Following the announcement of the Presidential Executive 
Order, the National Drought Resilience Partnership (NDRP) 
staff provided an overview of the NDRP's role under the EO 
at the National Integrated Drought Information System Execu
tive Council fall meeting. Established in 2016, the NDRP is an 
interagency task force responsible for enhancing coordination 
of federal drought resilience policies and monitoring the im
plementation of the activities and goals as set out in the Presi-

Continued on Page 3 

Pagel 



'onthly Briefing October 2020 

f New Rule Makes Enhancements to EQIP 
The "U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) earlier this Coalition (W ACC). The February 17, 2020 WACC letter 

month released the final rule for its Environmental Quality raised several issues on the interim-final EQIP rule that were 
Incentives Program (EQIP). The rule updates USDA's flag- addressed in the final rule. 
ship program as ~ected by the 2018 Farm Bill and integrates The interim-final EQIP rule required that 50% of national 
feedback from agncultural producers and others. EQIP funding be allocated for livestock operations. The 

'This final rule enables us to continue helping produc- W ACC letter suggested that final rule clarify that the 50% 
ers manage their land in the most beneficial ways possible," requirement is a statutory requirement and is not simply a mat-
said Kevin Norton, acting Chief of USDA's Natural Re- ter of developing funding priorities in individual states. No 
sources Conservation Ser- changes were made to the 
vice (NRCS). "EQIP offers EQIP text language, but NRCS 
producers more than 150 will consider these comments 
conservation practices and in its allocation process. 
helps bridge the gap be- The W ACC letter sought 
tween their concerns and the explicit language in the rule 
opportunity to implement regarding grazing on public 
solutions." lands. NRCS responded with 

NRCS provides produc- an explanati_on in th~ rule pref-
ers with :financial resources ace. Regarding pubbcly-owned 
and one-on-one help to plan land, NRCS considers land to 
and implement conservation be within applicant's control 
practices through EQIP. when: 1) The land is a working 
Popular EQIP practices in- comp~nent of the pro~ucer's 
elude cover crops, nutrient . operatiOn; 2) The ap~ltcant can 
management, forest stand improvement, prescribed grazing, ~plement_terms ofEQIP contract; ~d 3) Conservation prac-
irrigation efficiency improvement, and water quality improve- ti~es to b~ unplemen~ed on the pub_lic Ian? are_ necessary and 
ment practices. Implementing conservation practices can lead will contnbute to an unprovement m the tdenttfied resource 
to cleaner water and air, healthier soil, and better wildlife hab- concern. 
itat while improving agricultural operations. The W ACC sought clarifying language on whether ditch 

EQIP applications are accepted on a continuous basis. If a and canal companies are eligi?~e for EQIP. ~.the .preface to 
producer's application is funded, NRCS will offer an EQIP the ~e, ~CS ~otes that enb~es may be e~g:tbl~ if they ar~ 
contract for financial assistance to help address the cost of seDll-public (which can be a pnvate or public enbty), meanmg 
implementing the practices. Payment rates for conservation they serve a "public purpose". 
practices are reviewed and set each fiscal year. The final EQIP rule was viewed favorably by the Family 

NRCS received nearly 600 comments on the interim final Farm Alliance, as well as W ACC leaders. 
rule, which was published December 17,2019. The Family "WACC victory?", asked JeffEisenberg, who coordinates 
Farm Alliance commented on the proposed rule through its WACC activities in D.C. "Let's claim it!" 
involvement with the Western Agriculture and Conservation -Note: Excerpts of USDA NRCS press release reprinted 

in this article -

I President Signs EO on Water (Cont'd (rom Page 2) 
dential Memorandum that established the partnership. Under 
the EO, tbe NDRP will implement the "Priority Actions Sup
porting Long-Term Drought Resilience" document issued on 
July 31,2019. 

"Our agencies have been working together for years to 
address water concerns, including drought," said Under Sec
retary Northey, First Co-Chair of the NDRP. "These partner
ships are a large part of how we can protect our food and wa
ter supply and build resilience on our farms and ranches and 
in our communities and businesses." 

The EO was also a topic of discussion at the Western 
States Water Council (WSWC) special session on "Mapping 
Waters of the United States" (WOTUS). At that session, Inte
rior Assistant Secretary for Water and Science Tim Petty fo
cused specifically on the EO's directive to improve geospatial 

mapping collaboratively with States, Tribes and local govern
ments, and the work being done to use available tools for im
proved water resource forecasting and modeling. Dave Ross, 
Assistant Administrator for Water at EPA, noted that there are 
currently no maps delineating federally-regulated waters. 

"In the past, there have been concerns with our capacity to 
develop such maps," said Mr. Ross, adding that he believes it 
is possible with ''the resources and talent across the federal 
agencies". 

He described his vision as eventually producing a map 
that will identify jurisdictional waters, as well as any associat
ed regulatory data, such as water quality standards and wheth
er monitors are present. 
- Note: Excerpts of White House CEQ press release 

reprinted in this article -

Page3 



Monthly Briefing October 2020 

First Alliance Virtual Farmer Lobbyist "Trip" a Success 
A group of Family Farm Alliance members spent much of 

the first week of this month in front of their computers, virtu
ally meeting with Trump Administration officials and Con
gressional staffers as part of the Alliance's 2020 "virtual" 
Farmer Lobbyist trip. 

The Family Farm Alliance annual farmer lobbyist trip is 
one of the cornerstone pro
grams of the organization. It 
was created to allow farm
ers, ranchers and water man
agers to interact directly 
with elected officials and 
other policymakers in Wash
ington, D.C. 

"This year's farmer lob
byist trip was a ''virtual" 
event, presenting a unique 
opportunity for our members 
to share with Congress and 
the Administration the im
portant issues that impact 
our industry," said Mark 
Limbaugh, the Alliance's 
representative in Washing
ton, D.C. "The virtual 
farmer lobbyist meetings 
allowed us to again deliver 
the diverse but unified voice of irrigated agriculture champi
ons in Washington." 

This year's farmer lobbyist group included representatives 
from Arizona, California, Idaho, Nevada, New Mexico, Ore
gon, Washington and Wyoming. 

"Our members can be proud of the performance of this 
year's farmer lobbyists," said Alliance Executive Director 
Dan Keppen. "Once again, Mark Limbaugh of The Ferguson 
Group was our fearless leader, and he was ably assisted by 
Chris Kearney and Zach.Israel from TFG." 

Political Backdrop 

Later this fall, depending on what happens with the elec
tions, a separate water infrastructure package may be negoti
ated. While the Supreme Court confirmation of Judge Amy 
Coney Barrett and COVID-19 negotiations have been the 
recent focus on Capitol Hill, a sprawling water infrastructure 
bill is still advancing qUickly behind the scenes. Staffs in both 
chambers are hashing out what's in and out of a final package, 
and despite some sticking points, they anticipate the legisla
tion moving to conference and receiving a final vote later this 
year. 

A final bill will include language from the House-passed 
"Water Resources Development Act of2020" (H.R 7575), 
and the Senate Environment and Public Works (EPW) Com
mittee-passed "America's Water Infrastructure Act of 
2020" (S. 3591) and ''Drinking Water Infrastructure Act of 
2020" (S. 3590). Aides on the Senate EPW and the House 
Transportation and Infrastructure committees involved in pre
conference discussions aimed at resolving differences be-

tween those two measures are hitting some speed bumps, ac
cording to sources. These challenges include determining how 
to pay for projects and permitting language that has proved 
unpopular among industry groups. Other items may also make 
it into the final WRDA package, including several water
related provisions from the House-passed $1.5 trillion Moving 

Alliance Messaging 

Forward Act (H.R 2); a reau
thorization of the Clean Water 
State Revolving Fund; and 
hundreds of millions for 
EPA's water funding pro
grams. 

The Trump Administration 
continues to make encourag
ing progress on modernizing 
implementation of decades
old federal environmental 
laws, and taking other actions 
to improve water supply relia
bility and management flexi
bility for Western irrigators. 
Meanwhile, out West, a burn
ing siege of massive, destruc
tive wildfires threatens rural 
communities and important 
watershed areas (see related 
story, Page 8). 

Against this backdrop, the primary focus for the 2020 
Farmer Lobbyist virtual meetings was for Alliance representa
tives to discuss critical Western water policies and issues, 
through three key actions: 

1. Express support for congressional action and Administra
tion efforts to modernize implementation of federal envi
ronmental laws. Encourage continued efforts that improve 
water supply reliability, agency coordination, water man
agement flexibility, and wildfire management. 

2. Advocate to Congress for the need to expand and improve 
water supply and management infrastructure, including 
extending and expand federal funding/financing tools for 
aging water storage and delivery infrastructure. 

3. Tell impactful stories about producer and water manager 
efforts during the pandemic, and underscore the im
portance of irrigated agriculture to our food supply chain 
and national security. 

''This year's Alliance participants did a great job of de
scribing local water challenges and experiences - in the Co
lumbia River Basin, the Central and Imperial Valleys of Cali
fornia, the Colorado River and the desert Southwest - and how 
federal programs and policies helped or hindered developing 
solutions to those challenges," said Alliance President Patrick 
O'Toole. ''The amount of time this year's participants put into 
these meetings essentially equated to a full workday.l'm in
credibly grateful for their time and professional performance." 

Page4 



onthly BTiefing October 2020 

COVID-19: Federal Response Update 
With COVID-19 cases spiking in some areas of rural 

America and President Donald Trump and the First Lady test
ing positive for the virus in the past month, Capitol Hill law
makers and the White House failed to reach a deal on a fifth 
coronavirus relief package before Congress left town one 
week before the 2020 election. 

The U.S. Commerce Department's latest report shows that 
the U.S. economy bounced back in the third quarter at a 33.1 
percent annualized rate, marking the fastest pace of annual
ized growth on record just after the worst drop on record. But 
it still left U.S. economic output below pre-pandemic levels. 

"Consumers and businesses led the way to the fastest peri
od for economic growth on record," Ben Ayers, senior econo
mist at Nationwide Insurance, told POLITICO. "While this is 
an extremely fast start to the next expansion, the level of real 
GDP remains 3.5 percent below the peak from the fourth 
quarter of2019." 

The White House continues to emphasize the resiliency of 
the U.S. economy, and that the COVID-19 test positivity rate 
is down among all age groups, dropping below 5%. Individu
als under the age of 50 have a 99.98 percent rate of survival 
from COVID-19. 

Rural Areas See Spike in COVID Ca.ses 

Meanwhile, The Hill reported that Center for Disease 
Control {CDC) Director Robert Redfield warned governors 
that small gatherings are "increasingly becoming a source of 
COVID-19 infection around the country." CDC data shows 
that counties with greater social vulnerability were more like
ly to become areas with rapidly increasing COVID-19 inci
dence {hotspot counties), especially counties with higher per
centages of racial and ethnic minority residents and people 
living in crowded housing conditions, and in less urban areas. 
Hotspot counties with higher social vulnerability had high and 
increasing incidence after identification. 

Most of the worst coronavirus outbreaks in the United 
States right now are in rural counties with inadequate health 
care resources to handle a surge of infections. A recent analy
sis in the New York Times found that one in four deaths from 
COVID-19 is in a rural county. In March and April, almost 
every death was in a metropolitan areas of the Northeast, the 
Seattle area and populous parts of California. Across the Mid
west, cases have climbed on average nearly 60 percent in re
cent weeks, compared to about 35 percent nationwide. 

"Non-metropolitan counties have now recorded at least 
100 cases or more per 10,000 people since the pandemic be
gan," the Times analysis found. "That's almost double what it 
was in early September." 

Impacts in Farm Country 

According to Bloomberg, Farm Credit System officials 
warn that a surge in corona virus could deal another economic 
blow to U.S. agriculture and require more federal aid. Farm 
Credit System is a network of 72 borrower-owned lending 
institutions that provides credit to farmers, ranchers and rural 
customers. 

Farmers' financial situation has "generally started to stabi-

lize" with the help of federal aid since the pandemic-related 
disruptions in the food system during spring and summer, says 
Mark Jensen, president and CEO of Farm Credit Services of 
America. 

Farm customers "were experiencing huge losses very 
quickly" during pandemic earlier this year, he said. Farmers 
are increasingly dependent on federal assistance following two 
rounds of trade and pandemic aid, with direct government help 
accounting for about a third of net cash income forecast for 
2020. 

Meanwhile, Progressive Grocer reports that a new gro
cery consumer research study finds there are 18% more online 
grocery users now, compared with pre-COVID times. The 
survey of 615 American shoppers was released this month by 
New York-based digital shopper marketing platform, Chicory. 
The latest survey, conducted earlier this month, found that 
Walmart (55%) and Amazon (40%) are front-runners in the 
online grocery wars, but other retailers are gaining ground. 

"Interestingly, Shipt, Stop & Shop, and Giant Foods had 
the largest increases in market share compared to other retail
ers frompre-COVID-19 to present," said Yuni Sameshima, 
Chicory's CEO and co-founder. 

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to affect demand for 
fresh fruits and vegetables. Farmers and produce marketers say 
they expect demand from restaurants and other food-service 
buyers to stay muted due to ongoing, pandemic-related re
strictions. But demand at supermarkets and other retailers re
mains strong, according to the California Farm Bureau Federa
tion. 

"People will still crave and eat fresh fruits and vegetables, 
and will seek them out at the retail level," said Mark Shaw, 
vice president of marketing for the Markon produce coopera
tive in Salinas (CALIFORNIA). 

Administration Response to COVID-19 Pandemic 

Earlier this month, President Donald Trump and First Lady 
Melania Trump announced they had tested positive for the 
coronavirus. The President spent a weekend at Walter Reed 
National Military Medical Center in Bethesda, Maryland, and 
was discharged, in high spirits. The second presidential debate 
was cancelled, but the third debate between President Trump 
and Joe Biden was viewed by millions on national television. 

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration has announced 
that they approved the first treatment for COVID-19, V eklury 
(remdesivir). The approval of Veklury was supported by the 
agency's analysis of data from three randomized, controlled 
clinical trials that included patients hospitalized with mild-to
severe COVID-19. 

''Today's approval is supported by data from multiple clin
ical trials that the agency has rigorously assessed and repre
sents an important scientific milestone in the COVID-19 pan
demic," said FDA Commissioner Stephen Hahn, M.D. "As 
part of the FDA' s Coronavirus Treatment Acceleration Pro
gram, the agency will to continue to help move new medical 
products to patients as soon as possible, while at the same time 
determining whether they are effective and if their benefits 

Continued on Page 6 

PageS 



Monthly Briefing October 2020 

COVID-19 Response (Continued (rom Pg 5) 
outweigh their risks." 

One week later, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (CMS) announced that it had "released a comprehen
sive plan with proactive measures to remove regulatory barri
ers and ensure consistent coverage and payment for the ad
ministration of an eventual vaccine for millions of Ameri-
cans.,, 

"CMS is acting now to remove bureaucratic barriers 
while ensuring that states, providers and health plans have the 
information and direction they need to ensure broad vaccine 
access and coverage for all Americans," said CMS Adminis
trator Seema Verma. 

Corona virus Food Assistance Program (CFAP) 

U.S. Secretary of Agriculture Sonny Perdue recently an
nounced that in the first month of the application period, the 
U.S. Department 
of Agriculture 
(USDA) Farm 
Service Agency 
(FSA) approved 
more than $7 bil
lion in payments 
to producers in the 
second round of 
the Coronavirus 
Food Assistance 
Program. CF AP 2 
provides agricul
tural producers 
with financial 
assistance to help 
absorb some of 
the increased mar
keting costs asso
ciated with the 
COVID-19 pan
demic. 

"America's 
agriculture communities are resilient, but still face many chal
lenges due to the COVID-1~ pandemic. These payments di
rected by President Trump will continue to help this critical 
industry recoup some of their losses from ongoing market 
disruptions and associated costs," said Secretary Perdue. 
''This program builds upon the over $10 billion disbursed 
under the first round of CF AP. Agricultural producers who 
have been impacted by the pandemic since April 2020 are 
encouraged to apply for assistance." 

Through CFAP 2, USDA is making available up to $14 
billion for agricultural producers who continue to face market 
disruptions and associated costs because ofCOVID-19. The 
Farm Services Agency will accept CFAP 2 applications 
through December 11,2020. 

Farmers to Families Food Box Program 

USDA also recently announced it has authorized $500 
million for a fourth round of purchases for the USDA Farmers 

to Families Food Box Program. USDA is issuing solicitations 
for the fourth round to existing Basic Ordering Agreement 
holders and expects to. award contracts by Oct. 30 for deliver
ies offood boxes from Nov. 1 through Dec. 31 , 2020. 

In the fourth round, as in the third round, states have been 
allocated boxes based on the internal need of the state. The 
program will continue the purchase of combination boxes to 
include fresh produce, dairy products, fluid milk: and meat 
products. 

"Across the country, I have seen firsthand how the 
Trump Administration is fueling millions of American fami
lies through the Farmers to Families Food Box Program," said 
Advisor to the President Ivanka Trump. "President Trump's 
commitment to extend this impactful program is ensuring 
healthy and nutritious produce, dairy and meat will continue to 
reach our Nation's most vulnerable communities while sup
porting our farmers!" 

COVID-19 Relief 
Deal Unlikely Be
fore Election Day 

Negotiations over 
another COVID-19 
relief package, 
mainly between 
House Democrats 
and the White 
House, have not 
progressed far 
enough to result in 
an agreement before 
the November 3 
election, according 
to the parties in
volved. 
The Senate in recent 
weeks failed to ad
vance a $500 billion 
"skinny" corona

virus relief bill put forth by Senate Republicans titled, the De
livering Immediate Relief to America's Families, Schools and 
Small Businesses Act. 

Within minutes of Majority Leader McConnell's an
nouncement that the bill would be brought before the Senate, 
President Trump tweeted, "STIMULUS! Go big or go 
home!!!," a message that appeared to be at odds with the Ma
jority Leader's more conservative approach. 

The legislation needed 60 votes to move forward but only 
garnered 51 votes in favor. This bill is identical to the "skinny" 
relief package the Senate failed to advance on September 10. 
The legislation contains no additional relief funding for state 
and local governments; however, the bill does extend the peri
od to utilize Coronavirus Relief Funds from December 30 to 
September 30, 2021 . 

Days later, the Senate also failed to advance the Continu
ing the Paycheck Protection Program Act, which would pro-

Continued on Page 7 

Page6 



'onthly BTiefing October 2020 
---

Alliance Weighs in on Critical Habitat Designation Rule 
The Family Farm Alliance earlier this month formally 

responded to revisions proposed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service (FWS) to regulations for designating critical habitat, 
under section 4(b )(2) of the Endangered Species Act (ESA). 

This section directs FWS to consider the impacts of desig
nating critical habitat and permits exclusions of particular 
areas following a discretionary exclusion analysis. 

Implementation of the ESA impacts the management of 
land and water throughout the West. Given the nature of wa
ter storage and delivery, Alliance members are often directly 
impacted by the implementation of the ESA and other federal 
Jaws. 

The ESA has at times been interpreted to empower federal 
agencies to take action intended to protect listed species with
out consideration of the societal costs of such action. even 
when it is not clear that the action taken will actually yield 
conservation benefits for the particular species. 

"We strongly support efforts to reform the ESA and its 
implementing regulations to provide clearer direction to the 
agencies in applying and enforcing the law," said Alliance 
Executive Director Dan Keppen. 'We appreciates FWS 's 
efforts in the Proposed Rule to provide additional clarity to 
the critical habitat exclusion process." 

The Alliance letter provides general support for FWS 's 
revisions to: 

• Clarify the scope of economic and other impacts that. will 
be considered; 

• To assign weight to impacts and benefits based on the 
expertise of the exclusion proponent and the recognition 
that nonbiological impacts are outside ofFWS 's expertise; 
and 

• To always exclude an area when the benefits of exclusion 
outweigh the benefits of inclusion, unless extinction of the 
species would result. 

The Alliance letter also expressed concerns and noted sup
port for the recommendations outlined in the October 8, 2020 
letter submitted to FWS by the National Endangered Species 
Act Reform Coalition on this matter. 

California Attorney General Xavier Becerra, co-leading a 
coalition ofblue states, filed a comment letter opposing the 
FWS proposal. In the comment letter, the coalition of 17 attor
neys general argue that FWS's proposal is contrary to the plain 
language of the ESA and arbitrarily limits its ability to protect 
endangered or threatened species as required by the Act. 

"With every blow the Trump Administration deals to the 
Endangered Species Act, iconic species like the California 
condor and Chinook salmon are pushed closer to extinc-
tion." said Attorney General Becerra. "If we want to avoid j 
bitting the point of no return, we need to be strengthening en
vironmental protections, not weakening them." 

r COVID-19 Response (Cont'd {rom Pg 6) 
vide $257.64 billion in funds to support the Paycheck Protec- reached until after Election Day, but he remained optimistic a 
tion Program (PPP) and PPP Second Draw Loans and makes deal will eventually be secured. 
numerous changes to "After the election, we will get 
"improve" the PPP. the best stimulus package you have 

House Speaker Nancy ever seen." President Trump told 
Pelosi (D-CALIFORNIA) reporters at the White House. 
and White House chief of The Senate last month passed the 
staff Mark Meadows pointed "Continuing Appropriations Act, 
fingers at each other as to the 2021 and Other Extensions 
cause of the delay in getting Act" (H.R. 8337), to keep the federal 
to a deal. Speaker Pelosi and government funded through Decem-
Secretary talked by phone on her 11 at enacted FY2020 levels and 
the day that the Senate ap- avoid a government shutdown. The 
proved Supreme Court nomi- House passed the bill earlier in the 
nee Amy Coney Barrett month by a vote of 359-57-1. Presi-
about a coronavirus relief dent Trump signed the bill into law. 
deal. But there was still no 'The Continuing Resolution also 
agreement in hand and both includes one-year reauthorizations 
chambers left town, with just • • . for programs that would have other-
one week left before the Wh•~e House Chtef of Stll/f Mark Meadows, ':'Kht, accom- wise lapses at the end of September, 
election. Both parties have pamed by Treasury Secretary Steven Mnuchm, left~ speaks including the National Flood Insur-
said there could be an open- to reporters on August 7. AP Photo/ Andrew Hamik ance Program and the expiring 2015 
ing for a pandemic reliefbill FAST Act surface transportation 
during the lame-duck session after the election. although the bill," said Mark Limbaugh, the Family Farm Alliance's repre-
size and timing will be dependent on the outcome. sentative in Washington, D.C. 

President Trump acknowledged that a deal will not be 

Page 7 



Monthly Briefing October 2020 

Western Wildfires Rage in October 
Projected La Nina conditions do not bode well for 2021 

Record wildfires continued to rage in Western states for 
much of October. As the autumn temperatures dropped and 
the days become shorter, wildland fire activity generally start
ed to diminish, although the Silverado and Blue Ridge Fires 
in California sparked up late in the month. 

The 194,000-acre East Troublesome Fire, which sent resi
dents of Estes Park 
(COLORADO) flee
ing earlier this 
month, was tempo
rarily stifled when 6-
12 inches of snow 
fell in Grand County. 
As of press time, the 
second largest fire in 
Colorado's history 
was 30% contained. 
NBC 9 reported that 
lowte~ratures 
kept much of the 
new snow from melt
ing throughout the 
fire area. Fire offi
cials feared that dry
ness in the air might 
cause sublimation, 
where much of the 
snow would evapo
rate instead of melt 
into the dry fuels and 
ground. 

"To be frank, the 
fuels were extremely dry; I know we've been through a num
ber of snowstorms so far," Incident Commander Noel Living
ston said during a briefmg. "One concern is this isn't a season
ending event, this is a season-slowing event" 

Below average temperatures will continue in much of the 
Intermountain West, Plains, and Midwest. However, in South
ern California, strong Santa Ana winds have renewed high 
fire risk. The 12,000-acre Silverado Fire has forced tens of 
thousands of California residents to evacuate as it grows. The 
fire is one of fifty- 18 of them in the Golden State - currently 
burning near 3.5 million acres in the West. This year, fires 
have so far scorched over 8.5 million acres in the West, over 
2 million acres above the average for the past decade. 

Efforts in Congress 

The Family Farm Alliance is on record for supporting S. 
4431, the bipartisan Emergency Wildfire and Public Safety 
Act of2020, sponsored by Senators Feinstein (D-CA) and 
Daines (R-MT). This bill would direct the U.S. Forest Service 
(USFS) to complete three landscape-level, collaborative pro
jects proposed by governors to decrease the risk of wildfire. 
Eligible activities would include mechanical thinning, slash 
and ladder fuel reduction and controlled burns utilized to im-

prove wildlife habitat, watershed quality and landscape health. 
Senator Ron Wyden (D-OREGON) has also introduced a 

bill that would require the USFS and the Bureau of Land Man
agement to use prescribed fire more frequently to preemptively 
burn off excess vegetation that can otherwise become fuel for 
out-of-control conflagrations. 

Grim Drought Outlook 

"I want to be able 
to call this the day the 
Senate got serious 
about fire preven
tion," Senator Wyden 
said last month on the 
Senate floor. 

Unfortunately, 
Congress left Wash
ington, D.C. before 
the election recess 
without passing any 
meaningful wildfire 
prevention legislation. 
The wildfire problem 
is unlikely to diminish 
any time soon, and 
Western Republicans 
and Democrats will 
likely have plenty of 
opportunities to put 
forward legislative 
proposals for address
ing what is annually 
becoming an urgent 
issue. 

The drought has already been a major contributor to record 
wildfire activity in California and Colorado, and it is expected 
to continue. More than one-third of the West is in "extreme" or 
"exceptional" drought, the two most severe categories, accord
ing to the federal government's U.S. Drought Monitor. Cli
mate regions covering California, Nevada, Arizona, Colorado, 
New Mexico and Utah had record heat and record-low precipi
tation in the three-month period from July through September, 
according to NOAA data. 

This winter is likely to be warmer and drier than average 
for most of the continental United States, conditions typically 
associated with a La Niiia year. La Niiia years do not typically 
generate historic winter snowstorms like El Niiio years do, but 
they can instead intensify drought conditions. 

"This is the most widespread drought that we have seen in 
the continental U.S. since September 2013," Mike Halpert, 
deputy director ofNOAA's Climate Prediction Center, said at 
a teleconference earlier this month. "And the winter forecast 
doesn't bode well for many of the areas around the nation cur
rently experiencing drought with the exception of the Pacific 
Northwest, the Northeast, and Hawaii and Alaska." 

Page 8 



'onfhly Briefing October 2020 

Title Transfers Continue Under New Authorities 
U.S. Department of the Interior Deputy Secretary Kate "With the title transfer now complete, the Dickey-Sargent 

MacGregor earlier this month joined U.S. Senator John Irrigation District will be able to make needed upgrades to the 
Hoeven (R-NORTH DAKOTA) and other officials {pictured Oakes Test Area, ensuring this infrastructure will benefit the 
below) to finalize the transfer of the Oakes Test Area to local region's agriculture producers for years to come," said Senator 
ownership. This is the third water-related facility transferred Hoeven. ''We appreciate the irrigation district' s leadership, the 
under a law signed by President Garrison Diversion and the Bureau of 
Trump last year. The John D. Dingel/ Reclamation for joining with us in the 
Jr. Conservation, Management and effort to finalize this agreement, which 
Recreation Act expedites the title wi11 save taxpayers money while also 
transfer process for eligible projects preventing this facility from being 
including diversion dams, canals and abandoned." 
other water-related facilities. This The Oakes Test Area title transfer 
latest action conveys full ownership aligns with the Department of the Inte-
to the Dickey-Sargent Irrigation Dis- rior's priorities to work with local wa-
trict in Oakes, North Dakota, after the ter users to stimulate infrastructure 
district paid for the Oakes Test Area investment through local ownership. 
facilities and lands. This authorization saves money for the 

"This title transfer will improve taxpayers and the federal government 
local control and fulfill the Trump . while enhancing facility use and in-
Administration's goals to streamline creasing flexibility for the irrigation 
bureaucratic processes and facilitate district. 
local investment to help maintain and Title transfer is an important issue 
rebuild American infrastructure," to the Family Farm Alliance. In late 
said Deputy Secretary MacGregor. ''The new title transfer 1997, the organization launched an initiative to encourage 
process under the Trump Administration has created unprece- Congressional action on pending project title transfer legisla-
dented opportunities throughout the West, and I'm proud to tion. That effort was successful, and ultimately led to the his-
be part of this historic effort." toric transfer of title to the Burley Irrigation District in Idaho 

The Oakes Test Area was designed as a 5,000-acre proto- two years later. Since then, title to over a dozen other projects 
type irrigation test area. It includes three pumping plants, a and facilities have been transferred to local interests who have 
canal, pipelines, laterals, drainage system, wells, roads, an paid off construction costs of the project. 
office building and several outbuildings. The Dickey-Sargent "Early on, approximately 1.2 transfers per year were com-
Irrigation District will now own and manage these facilities to pleted by Reclamation," said Alliance Executive Director Dan 
meet current needs in compliance with all applicable federal, Keppen. ''With the new Interior authority and Dingell Act pro-
state and local laws under the terms of the title transfer agree- visions, six transfers will likely be completed in 2020 alone." 1 
ment. -Note: Excerpts of Bureau of Reclamation press release j 

reprinted in this article - 1 
-J 

WaterSMART Watershed Management Grants Available 
The Bureau of Reclamation has released the FY 2020 

WaterS~T Grants: Coope~tive.Watershed Managem_ent 
Progranf(Pbase II). r. 

Thi~ g~pgr~.mpro\.i~.es fw?..ding to implement on-.the-', 
ground '\valeishea mailagenientpi6jects, coll~boratively de-

• r' · -· • -+..,.:~· : ,, c' ' .~ . ·,\;.<•·\ ', , ;_ ..,•~. ·• ' \. ,), ,, . ~ r,,,. r · ' 

velope~}?.:Y;~~mberp;'of a w~te:r:t>h~~ gr~up,. th.~t Will addte_~s 
~tica}~ti:J;· ~upply 1,1ee~.' 'w~~ qlilllity·concerns, andre~so.:: 
rationn~eds; h~lping water'User8 meet_ competing demandS 
and avoid conflicts over 'water. · 

Eligibl~ ~PJ>licants are established watershed groups, an~ 
are lo.ca~ in .. tbe We~tem U~ted'S_!ates and U.S. temtone:S: 

In zy 2 0.20, ~proximately $2 million is ayailable to ~p
port up )o $JOO,PQO per award.· Awardees must also j rQvide 
50 p~tc~t or: ~o,re ofproje'ct ,co.~"f!>? arid cost share ~Y be , 
PJ,a:de thiougll c·ll$~ . costs c~nfril?ilfed py the applicant, oj' ··,: 
third-pwin-Jci.nd contributi!;)nS.< . . 

Ap~Ji·eaq_ons· are due Ji.l'ove~be(.l 7, 2020. 

@) RE~~Z~~ON 

Wa.terSMART Coop~rative 
Watershed Maha!fement Program 
Phase II 

r~~-_.~,..,~-oa.zt..fOOl 

IJ.S.._._...Oif!toll~ 

_ .... .,.. 

Page9 



lllonfhly Briefing October 2020 

Grassland Water District Intervenes in Clean Water Act Lawsuit 
Grassland Water District (CALIFORNIA), a water agency history the District has successfully secured and managed a 

serving one of the largest wetlands in the West, earlier this long-term water supply to preserve and enhance one of the 
month received permission from the federal Eastern District nation's most valuable wildlife resource areas. 
Court of California to defend its interests in the case of Pacif- The litigation has been closely monitored by the Family 
ic Coast Federation of Fishermen's Associations v. Glaser. Farm Alliance and other Western water user organizations. 

"Wetland managers rarely get involved in litigation, but in "The Grassland Water District's involvement in this case is 
this case, the stakes are too high," the District stated in a press a welcomed development," said Norm Semanko (IDAHO), 
release. "The plaintiffs, commercial fishing and river advoca- General Counsel for the Family Farm Alliance. "The District 
cy groups, lost their argument that farmland drainage is sub- will help the court understand the significant impacts that 
ject to the strictest permitting requirements of the Clean Wa- would occur from an adverse decision, not just to farmers but 
ter Act. In an attempt to keep the case alive, they now claim also to wetlands and other features that rely upon the existing 
that groundwater seepage from wetlands requires a strict per- irrigation and drainage system." 

mit." The project was designed to avoid the type of damage that 
The District's General Manager, Ricardo Ortega, ex- caused an ecological disaster at Kesterson Reservoir in the 

plained the decision to intervene. 1980s. High groundwater in the low-lying San Joaquin River 
"The Clean Water Act was intended to protect wetlands, basin naturally seeps into canals, sloughs, creeks and rivers. 

not attack them,'' he said. "Unfortunately, the Grassland wet- Increasing regulatory costs continue to pose a threat to 
lands are caught up in this case, which could have wide- wetland managers, and a new National Pollutant Discharge 
ranging implications for all wetlands. With less than 5% of Elimination System (NPDES) permit requirement under the 
freshwater wetlands remaining in California, we take all Clean Water Act could mean serious financial hardship for 
threats seriously. We reached out to the plaintiff organiza- wetland owners. Located at a critical point on the Pacific Fly-
tions, but they were unwilling to discuss the collateral damage way, the wetland habitat served by the District is a recognized 
that this lawsuit could create for wetlands everywhere. We "Wetland of International Importance" under the Ramsar Con-
saw no choice but to defend these issues in court." vention on Wetlands. 

The lawsuit involves the Grassland Bypass Project, which It is also designated as a Wetland of Global Significance 
routes agricultural stormwater runoff around the wetland and a critical component of the Western Hemispheric Shore-
complex to protect water quality. Over its sixty-seven year bird Reserve Network. 

Alliance Comments on Proposed NHPA Streamlining 
The Family Farm Alliance earlier this month submitted 

formal comments to the Bureau of Reclamation 
(Reclamation) on its proposed request for National Historic 
Preservation Act (NHP A) Program Comment for Water Dis
tribution Infrastructure. 

In 1966, Congress enacted the well-intended NHP A in 
response to fears that properties with historical significance 
faced destruction or substantial alternation. It was seen as a 
means to protect the nation's cultural heritage. Now, it is used 
by some parties as a tool to impede necessary development. 

"Our organization represents hundreds of irrigation dis
tricts in the West," said Dan Keppen, Alliance Executive Di
rector. "Many of them routinely encounter the NHP A in the 
context of their ongoing irrigation maintenance, moderniza
tion, and water efficiency efforts. Section 1 06 compliance can 
result in repetitive and burdensome processes for water distri
bution infrastructure that provide minimal historic value, un
necessarily delaying projects that would reduce water trans
mission losses and increase water efficiency." 

Section 1 06 most profoundly impacts irrigation and water 
districts who interact with federal agencies like Reclamation. 
Because the identification of sites and the evaluation of ef
fects are collapsed into the same process, opponents of pro
posed projects can use historic designations as surrogates for 
other agendas. Essentially, those opposed to change look for 

eligible sites and use their presence to delay or prevent pro
jects they oppose. 

For example, opponents of irrigation district piping in 
Oregon have attempted to leverage the NHP A to thwart irri
gation modernization projects. Central Oregon Irrigation Dis
trict (COlD) and other nearby districts are wrestling with wa
ter availability challenges brought on by the Oregon spotted 
frog, a threatened species. The districts have pursued piping 
as a more efficient way to divert water for irrigation. 

Piping opponents (i.e. proponents of the National Register 
listing for an existing, open canal) submitted voluminous ma
terials to the Oregon State Historic Preservation Office, which 
were eventually sent on to the National Park Service. This 
ultimately led to the successful designation of a section on 
either side of the canal as a "historic district" under the 
NHP A. The designation led to multiple years of local hear
ings and subsequent appeals. Eventually, COlD had to under
take a district-wide historic resource analysis of its entire ca
nal system. The effort ultimately resulted in mitigation 
measures that included leaving some of its canal system open 
and "protected" from piping. 

"Our letter expressed support for Reclamation's proposal 
to streamline the NHP A Section 1 06 process through a Pro
gram Comment, but we also provided some examples as to 
why the final Program Comment should be carefully crafted 
to avoid unintended impacts," said Mr. Keppen. 

PagelO 



Monthly Briefing October 2020 
------- - ---

Trump Administration Moves to 
Cut Red Tape, Bolster Scientific Integrity: Critics Push Back 

The Trump Administration earlier this month took actions 
stemming from presidential direction to improve integrity in 
government sponsored scientific work and cut through bu
reaucratic red tape. 

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has 
finalized its "scientific integrity'' rule required by a 2009 pres
idential memo, which mandates that government contractors 
read and comply with the agency's policy requiring that scien
tific information be insulated from bias or censorship . 

The rule, published in the Federal Register, says federal 
contractors, including universities and consultants, will 
"ensure all scientific work developed and used by the Govern
ment is accomplished with scientific integrity." 

The final scientific integrity rule faced little pusbback 
from science groups usually critical of the Administration, but 
they stressed that enacting the policy is only the first step. An 
inspector general report issued in May found that EPA fell 
short of applying its current policy on scientific integrity. 

President Trump also recently signed an Executive Order 
(EO) that calls government management practices 
"inadequate" and gives federal agencies 90-days to review all 
career employees who supervise attorneys, draft regulations 
or work on policy, and determine whether to classifY them 
under a new "Schedule F" employment category. The purpose 
of the EO is to enhance the ability to dismiss poorly perform
ing career government workers, the order says, and make the 
bureaucracy more efficient. 

''Unfortunately, the Government's current performance 
management is inadequate, as recognized by Federal workers 
themselves," the EO states ''For instance, the 2016 Merit Prin
ciples Survey reveals that less than a quarter of Federal em
ployees believe their agency addresses poor performers effec
tively." 

Critics of the EO argue that the order is an attempt to get 
rid of career government experts whose advise has run coun-

ter to Administration priorities, potentially blurring the line 
between the political leadership and the career civil service. 

"President Trump 's newest executive order, signed without 
fanfare this week, could prove one of his most insidious," the 
Washington Post editorial board intoned earlier this month. 

Other critics in recent weeks have ramped up claims that 
the Trump Administration has "dismantled" important envi
ronmental rules. The New York Times earlier this month listed 
nearly 100 Administration actions that the paper claims are 
''reversing" environmental rules. 

For example, one of those actions listed by the Times 
claims that the Trump Administration ''relaxed environmental 
protections for salmon and smelt in California's Central Valley 
in order to free up water for farmers." 

The list was compiled by the Times, based on research 
from Harvard Law School, Columbia Law School, and other 
sources. Many of the sources identified by the Times were 
articles that previously appeared in their own paper. 

While other administrations have emphasized cutting regu
lations, calling them burdensome to industries like coal, oil 
and gas, the scope of actions under Mr. Trump is 
"fundamentally different," Hana V. Vizcarra, a staff attorney 
at Harvard Law School's Environmental and Energy Law Pro
gram, told the Times. 

Another Harvard. Law School environmental initiative an
nounced this month provides a "comprehensive road map to 
guide a potential Bide.n administration overhaul at the Interior 
Department", including calls for reversing a Trump-era reor
ganization and empowering career employees, according to 
E&EDaily. 

"If a Biden administration takes office, DOl will need to 
reverse some of the Trump administration's management deci
sions in order to back away from the energy dominance agen
da and restore Interior's capacities," the study said. 

WaterSMART Drought Contingency Grant Application Deadline Extended 

The Department of the Interior has upda~~ the FY21 appli
cation deadline for the FY 2021 WaterSMART Grants: Drought 
Conpngency Pl,apning Grants ~olicitation .tQ. lanllafY 6, 2Q21.. 

, The . program,iprgV:iaes funqiog for j>lahning @.lt when i,rhpl~~ 
''1:riented will'·inGiease watei' reliability' and .iipprove wilter IIiari.
agement thiough the use of 'expanded technologies and · iin:-
I>ro~~ n;tod~lin'g ·c_apabilities. Eli~bl~ appli~-~f#'·~ state1, :iffi
gation distn~ts, and other orgaruzatiO!l$ ~tit watc<r or po~er 
qelivery authority located in the Western UniiedStates. 

" In FY 2o2i; a maximuni ainount; of $200,000 in federal 
fi,mding may 11e allocated to proposals. The fedenu share for my 
J>rojects·generally shall not exceed 50 percent of the total costs. 
For more infom1ation, go to https://www.usbr.gov/drought/ 

r«il - l l!Jt£At! Ot -

• R£CLAMATION 

, ..... ~~-toa.OO•lf.fOGI 

WaterS MART 
Drought Jlesponse Program; 
Drought Contlng_ency Planning Grants 
fO< Flsai.Yn..-2020·iNid 2021 .. ~..,. 

o. -,..-. • : '_:__; ~. _':,_-'1__: .. __ . _r _ ~I' l 

planning.html ·. · . I I ~---..:.. -- I J 
Pagel] 



Monthly Briefing October 2020 

lA hosts Agricultural Irrigation Summit 
Thursday, Nov. 5, 2020 111 a.m.-3:30p.m. Eastern 

Tentative schedule 
Conference times are Eastern time zone. Times and schedule 
are subject to change. 

11:00 a.m. 
Welcome & Keynote Address: Global Water Challenges 
Need Global Solutions 
Henk Ovink, Special Envoy for International Water Affairs 
for the Kingdom of the Netherlands (invited) 

11:30 a.m. 
Agricultural Irrigation Manufacturer CEO Roundtable 
Panelists 
Len Adams, Valley Irrigation 
Mike Hemman, Netafim 
Aric Olson, Jain Irrigation 
Randy Wood, Lindsay Corporation 
Moderator 
Jobn Farner, Irrigation Association 

12:30 p.m. 
Break 

1:00 p.m. 
Innovating America -The Role of Irrigation in the 
USDA's Ag Innovation Agenda 
Kevin Norton, Acting Chief, NRCS (invited) 

1:30 p.m. 
Breakout- Growing With Efficient Irrigation: 
A Conversation With Producers 

2:15p.m. 
Break 

2:30p.m. 
Ag Irrigation Technology Showcase (will be streamed on 
!A's Facebook page) 
Presentations from Jain, Lindsay, Netafim and Valley 

Agricultural irrigation is experiencing a renaissance in technology development to help growers maximize 
yield, while conserving water. The lA is excited to expand on this current environment and bring the in
dustry this Agricultural Irrigation Summit. This special event will not only highlight these technologies, but 
it will also go behind the curtain for a conversation with industry CEOs about the future of agricultural irri
gation. Be sure to join us for this one-of-a-kind opportunity, as we hear from a panel of growers and see 
the best products available in the technology showcase. Together we'll look toward the future and talk 
about what irrigation technology means for U.S. agriculture. Registration will open Oct. 1. 

Go to https://www.irrigatlon.org/2020Show/Conferences/Agrlcultural_lrrigation/ 
2020Show/Conferences/Agricultural_lrrigation.aspx for more information about this summit 

Page12 



CORRESPONDENCE LIST 
NOVEMBER 2020 

Agenda Item XIV. 

1. Letter from District dated October 15, 2020 to Mr. M. Colicchio re: Can & Will Serve letter- new 
single-family residence and new guest house with fire protection and agriculture use-La dan Drive 
- APN 137-620-013 

2. Letter received October 15, 2020 from US Bureau of Reclamation re: Cachuma Downstream Water 
Rights Operations - Santa Ynez River Downstream Water Users Accounting Report (ANA/BNA) 
for the months of July, June, May, and April2020 

3. Memo received October 19, 2020 from Central Coast Water Authority re: CCWA FY 2020/ 2021 
First Quarter Interest Income Statement 

4. Notice and agenda received October 19, 2020 from Central Coast Water Authority re: Finance 
Committee and Board of Directors Meeting October 22, 2020 

5. Letter from District dated October 20, 2020 to Mr. D. Murphy and Ms. M. Chan re: can and will 
serve letter- new detached additional dwelling unit with garage- North Refugio Road- APN 141-
111-024 

6. Letter from District dated October 20, 2020 to Mr. F. Sohaei and Ms. L. Williams re: Can and Will 
Serve letter - new single-family residence, detached additional dwelling unit, and private fire 
protection- Baseline Avenue - APN 137-070-067 

7. Letter received October 20, 2020 from County of Santa Barbara Planning and Development re: 
Resident/Occupant Notification- Filming Permit 

8. Letter received October 21, 2020 from California State Controller re: Upcoming Reporting Change 
for Government Compensation in California 

9. Notice and agenda received October 22, 2020 from Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board 
re: Board of Directors Meeting of October 26, 2020 

10. Letter received October 22, 2020 from Ms. Wilds Request for water service account payment 
arrangement request for Refugio Road 

11. Letter from District dated October 23, 2020 to United Investments Real Estate re: existing water 
service letter - agriculture storage building conversion, pool equipment, restrooms, outdoor 
kitchen, and private fire protection- Park Street- APN 135-220-048 

12. Response letter from District dated October 23, 2020 to Ms. A. Wilds re: water service account 
payment schedule 

13. Copy of letter received October 29, 2020 from Central Coast Water Authority to Santa Barbara 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District re: Amendment No. 21 (The Water 
Management Amendment) to the State Water Contract 

14. Notice and agenda received October 28, 2020 from Santa Barbara County LAFCO Board of 
Directors Meeting or November 5, 2020 

November 2020 Correspondence List Page 1 of 2 



15. Letter from District dated October 28, 2020 to Mr. D. Noonan re: private fire protection service 
meter 

16. Letter from District dated November 6, 2020 to Mr. & Mrs. J. Johnston re: existing water service 
letter- garage conversion to additional dwelling unit- Sagunto Street- APN 143-153-011 

17. Letter from District dated November 6, 2020 to Ms. J. Kennedy re: existing water service- detached 
artist studio - Keenan Drive - APN 135-340-007 

18. Letter received November 9, 2020 from CalPERS re: Circular Letter discussing Governor's 
Executive Order N-81-20 - CalPERS retirees employed as retired annuitants with all CalPERS 
employers 

19. Letter receiv~d November 9, 2020 from CalPERS re: notice of Addition of information to 
rulemaking file- State Social Security Administration Fees 

20. Letter received November 9, 2020 from District Customer Ms. Cody re: payment arrangement 
request on water service account for Alamo Pintado Road 

21. Letter from District dated November 9, 2020 to Ms. D. Harmon and Mr. F. Goeringer re: water 
service requirements letter - New single-family residence, detached garage, and private fire 
protection; Alamo Pintado A venue - APN 135-085-017 

22. Response letter from District dated November 9, 2020 to District Customer Ms. Cody re: Payment 
Arrangement Request response - Alamo Pintado 

November 2020 Correspondence List Page 2of2 


